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Important: The board of directors (“Board of Directors”) and the supervisory committee (“Supervisory Committee”)
and each of the directors (“Directors”), the supervisors (“Supervisors”) and the senior officers (“Senior Officers")
of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the “Company”) hereby confirm that there are no false
representations, material omissions or misleading statements contained in this report, and they, severally and
jointly, accept full responsibility for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the contents of this report.

The chairman (Ms. Guo Qin), financial controller (Mr. Zhao Songguo) and the chief of the finance department
(Mr. Wang Jianxin) of the Company hereby declare that the financial report of the Company for 2007 is true
and complete.

This report has been prepared in both Chinese and English. In the event of any discrepancy between the two
versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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EPEEEARHN_=-2 1.
StFEEETEEHE
($EEEH)

Key financial data for the year ended 31
December 2007 prepared in accordance
with PRC accounting standards (Audited)

HE Items —EEL
2007

AR T

RMB

EEFIbE Operating profit 35,453,438.79
IEECEE Profit before taxation 46,510,493.48

5FERN LT A RIRCR R

BEN LT ARKRERNMER
FEEERRRAFFE B L)

REEHEENREREFH

Profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of company

Profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of company
after extraordinary (Note)

Net cash flow from operating activities

32,723,034.60

9,959,541.29
120,591,043.84

Bt - SEEBIEREMMBIRR REEWT ¢

Note:  Extraordinary items include:

A Items AE#%T

RMB
FRBEEREER Profit or loss from disposal of non-current assets 2,041,150.42
AR BB BFHE Government subsidies in the current profit or loss 5,479,121.00
B bl =SNG H At R INK R F R Non-operating income or cost except items above 3,536,783.27

RHUEMEELAAEBEEDES
AR E SR EE D RS
REEDHERERS

FRSHE &
BERDERROFLR RS

Change in fair value of held-for-trading
financial assets
Income distributed from available-for-sale
financial assets
Income from disposal of held-to-maturity investment
Income tax
Net non-routine profit or loss attributable

15,763,060.17

747,200.00
1,647,025.56
(6,517,768.70)

to the minority shareholders 66,921.59
&5t Total 22,763,493.31
BRAAREEHENEA Items by fair value
HEHHE
HmesE HIRERE EHen HEEeH
Amount Amount
as at as at Amount
1 January 31 December impact the
HEA®B Item 2007 2007 Change  current profit
(AR#T) (AR%T) (AR%T) (AR%T)
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB)
MTHESREE Derivative financial assets 133,672.68 15,896,932.85 15,763,060.17  15,763,060.17
&5 Total 133,672.68 15,896,932.85 15,763,060.17  15,763,060.17
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2. HBEBRE 2.

Financial Summary

(i) BEBLRBREMN ST RAGRS (i) In accordance with Hong Kong Generally Accepted
(25 51) Accounting Principles (‘HKGAAP") (Audited)
ReEex Consolidated income statement
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
ARBFT AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFR
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
(E5))* (E7))*
(restated)* (restated)*
BB Turnover 1,865,568 1,685,367 1,712,102 1,524,409 1,341,788
BREADEH Profit before taxation 37,364 29,733 13,194 (52,352) 61,907
FEHES(FY) Income tax credit (expense) 400 (7,784) (13,696) (1,119) (10,200)
AEERF/ (B8) - Profit/(Loss) for the year: 37,764 21,949 (502) (53471) 51,707
DEURRER Minority interests 5,946 (812) (1,731) (986) (87)
KRR E( S Profit attributable 31,818 22,761 1,229 (52,485) 51,794

to the equity holders
of the Company

ReEERBE Consolidated balance sheet
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
ARBFRT AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(E5))+ (E5)*
(restated)* (restated)*
BEE Total assets 2,260,100 1,881,575 2,211,328 2,315,440 2,106,065
BEE Total liabilities (526,061) (509,088) (841,191) (941,834) (663,321)
PUREER Minority interests (50,793) (3,343) (1,092) (4,284) (3,968)
BEEFE Net assets 1,683,246 1,369,144 1,369,045 1,369,322 1,438,776
* R 2005F 12 A31A R E B G5 * Prior periods have been adjusted to reflect the change in

ERIRH 2 A BRI Z B3t
B2 B8 DA DB -

@ WRHMEFREROBER QA
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accounting policy to the consolidated financial statements
prepared under HKGAAP for the year ended 31 December
2005.



2. HMEBHRE @ 2. Financial Summary (continued)

(i) IRPBEEFERRS (KE) (i) In accordance with PRC accounting standards
(Audited)
REL R (%)
HH 2007 2006 Change as 2005
Item ARWT ARET compared to the ARET
RMB RMB last year (%) RMB
AEm HER ARk HER AER
Before adjusted After adjusted After adjusted Before adjusted After adjusted
BERA 1,886,978,951.19 1,722,899,961.83 1,722,899,961.83 9.52 1,739,799,081.86 1,739,799,081.86
Operating income
HEasE 46,510,493.48 29,306,790.76 29,357,300.80 58.43 12,459,940.21 12,543,102.85
Profit before taxation
SER AR AREHEFNE 32,723,034.60 22,705,557.86 23,567,389.39 38.85 5,415,850.71 3,640,382.90

Profit attributable to the equity

shareholders of company
SER ETRAREHNE

FBBEBRENTFHE 9,959,541.29 16,760,873.31 17,701,666.54 (43.74) (9,621,604.75)  (11,397,072.56)
Profit attributable to the equity

shareholders of company

after extraordinary items

BEE 2,270714,981.14  1,880,020,275.73  1,887,769,371.36 2029 2207,053451.14  2,213,712,724.86
Total assets
GERETARREES 1,665,960,952.04  1,343,336,960.31  1,351,117,628.22 2330 1343492,616.72  1,350,151,890.44

Total equity attributable to
holders of company

BREDEENRERETE 120,591,043.84 133,303,506.08 133,303,506.08 (9.54) 178,859,107.49 178,859,107.49
Net cash flow from operating activities
BREEEHELNRENETE 0.26 0.29 0.29 (10.34) 039 0.39

Net cash flow from operating
activities per share

Bkl 0.07 0.05 0.05 40.00 0.01 0.01
Earning per share
BERTHAARRBRFAE 3.64 2.94 2.95 23.39 2.94 2.95

Net assets per share attributable

to holders of company
FEERAEY%) 1.96 1.69 174 HO2EEHY 0.40 0.27
Return on equity (%) Increase 0.22 points

~
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(iii)

BEEE @) 2. Financial Summary (continued)

L B e ET 2 RIAR B /O A B R B & (i)  Appendix to the profit and loss account prepared in
(25 51) accordance with PRC accounting standards (Audited)
BREKEBE (%) SRKE ARWT)
Return on equity (%) Earnings per share (RMB)
BERNE 2EHE miEFy EFERKE RESREG
Reported Profit Fully Weighted Basic earnings Diluted earnings
diluted average per share per share

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

FER LTARARRAFIE 1.96 1.74 2.40 1.75 0.07 0.05 0.07 0.05

Profit attributable to the equity

shareholders of company
GBRN LHARRRMMGIFEEY

BRENFNE 0.60 1.31 0.73 131 0.02 0.04 0.02 0.04
Profit attributable to the equity

shareholders of company

after extraordinary items

RIFE AR EREIRE B AND TARAR R EE 4 8 There has been no change in the share capital of the Company from the end
{t o of the financial year 2007 to the publication date of the results announcement
of 2007.

WRHMEFREROBER QA
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ERAOEEHENNERE 3

Reconciliation of accounts prepared in

BB RNz & & IR B ER H accordance with PRC accounting
REZER standards and HKGAAP
BE
20074
12A31HI1E
FEFLNH
B R R
Profit
20075 attributable to
12A31H equity holders
BEE of the Company
HH Net assets at  for the year ended
Item 31 December 2007 31 December 2007
(AR#TFT) (AR % TFT)
RMB’000 RMB’000
R E gt E R R 1,665,961 32,723
Prepared under PRC accounting standards
BREBEBRM ST RAMMEZAE -
HKGAAP adjustments:
RIERIE (3,036) 8,766
Deferred taxation
ArFEErmELEZTEER (19,459) (449)
Depreciation charges due to revaluation
in previous years
HELEER 13,407 950
Provision for education fund
B EH 4,993 (10,304)
Provision for welfare expenses
RHR ERREGHZ EEIEE 21,300 —
Surplus from revaluation for listing of H Shares
HAth 80 132
Others
BREBEBIRM &5 RAGRS 1,683,246 31,818

Prepared under HKGAAP

WRHMEFREROBER QA
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1. Kfrgmmis

Bz {7 % B

Class of shares

1. Share capital structure

2007 1A 1A
1 January 2007

2007%# 128 31H
31 December 2007

Bz BE 0k 44y Bz & 111k 440
Number of % of the total Number of % of the total
Shares share capital Shares share capital
(share) (%) (share) (%)
1. EREFHERBREE 204,544,593 44.73 187,816,881 41.07
Total number of shares
subject to conditions of trading
B R R 163,258,735 35.70 163,258,735 35.70
Stated-owned shares
BNEAFR 16,719,500 3.66 0 0
Domestic legal person shares
AREREGRERER 38,758 0.01 30,546 0.01
Senior management A shares
subject to conditions of trading
Hth 24,527,600 5.36 24,527,600 5.36
Others
2. BREGHNRBRE T 252,768,237 55.27 269,495,949 58.93
Total number of unconditional
tradable shares
AR EAR (AK) 102,768,237 22.47 119,495,949 26.13
Renminbi ordinary shares
(A shares)
BN ETINE IR (HAR) 150,000,000 32.80 150,000,000 32.80
Overseas listed foreign shares
(H shares)
3. BpuEE 457,312,830 100.00 457,312,830 100.00
Total number of shares
Hiet: BREAARESBEREBEHEHER Note:  Domestic legal person shares were listed on 6 June 2007

20076868 AEARRA £
B - BE2007F 128318 FEE
& B35 28 A 7] 2,500,0004% A% 4 4 7
AR+ 32,470,000 8% B 19 1 E 48
A

according to the share reform proposal. As at 31 December
2007, a total of 2,500,000 shares and a total of 32,470,000
shares held by SXPGC in the Company have been judicial
frozen and mortgaged.

WRHMEFREROBER QA
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i EEERE @) 1. Share capital structure (continued)
RERHEHERE Change of conditional tradable shares
B R
Share
SERR FERM
3 £:40) EORERY BERY BERE FXRERY BERR BREERY
Number of
shares
subject to
Number of Increase conditions
shares subject Number of in shares of trading
to conditions  unconditional subject to as at
of trading as at tradable conditions 31 December Date of removing
Name of shareholders 1 January 2007 shares in 2007 of trading 2007 Conditions the conditions
WRHEBREEEBEREELA 163,258,735 0 0 163,258,735 Rl 2009067 06H
Shandong Xinhua Special undertaking 6 June 2009
Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited
EERRREERERLA 15,000,000 0 0 15,000,000 BYHEREBAAR 2009506706
Qingdao Haowei Investment Compliance with the 6 June 2009
Development Company Limited special undertaking
of SXPGC
AEEHRTRRRERDERAF 7,632,600 0 0 7632600  ETHEEERHAGE 2009706706 H
Zibo High-Tech Venture Compliance with the 6 June 2009
Capital Company Limited special undertaking
of SXPGC
TERRRAERARAA 2,100,000 2,100,000 0 0 EF-REE 2007067068
Shanghai Zhengda Investment Compliance with 6 June 2007
Management Company Limited general provision
HES\FTREARALLA 1,550,000 0 0 1550000  ETHEEEFHIEE 2009506706
Huludao Bajiazi Mining Compliance with the 6 June 2009
Industry Company Limited special undertaking
of SXPGC
FEHEETERA 1,540,000 1,540,000 0 0 BY—R#E 2007406 706 A
China National Pharmaceutical Compliance with 6 June 2007
Industry Corporation general provision
HEmPRARERAEAAT 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 0 ETF-RRE 20074067068
Benghu Zhongke Information Compliance with 6 June 2007
Company Limited general provision
PEREHINEHLA 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 0 EF-RIAE 20074067068
China National Pharmaceutical Compliance with 6 June 2007

Foreign Trade Corporation

general provision

WRHMEFREROBER QA
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(12]

1. BRHhEBHEIE 1.

Share capital structure (continued)

R EHIERE (&) Change of conditional tradable shares subject to
conditions of trading (continued)
B o R
Share
FERR FEEM
3 £ FORERY BERR BERE EXHERR BERE RERERN
Number of
shares
subject to
Number of Increase conditions
shares subject Number of in shares of trading
to conditions  unconditional subject to as at
of trading as at tradable conditions 31 December Date of removing
Name of shareholders 1 January 2007 shares in 2007 of trading 2007 Conditions the conditions
WRHEBZEEEBRA 860,000 860,000 0 0 EBY¥-REE 2007406067
REERELLA
Zibo All-purpose Service Compliance with 6 June 2007
Company Limited of general provision
Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group
PEBEREFERD 800,000 800,000 0 0 ET-%EE 20074067067
China Pharmaceutical Compliance with 6 June 2007
Research Development Center general provision
TEMEABEERAA 345,000 0 0 345,000 EFNEEER A 20094067068
Shangrao Daiwu Industrial Compliance with the 6 June 2009
Company Limited special undertaking
of SXPGC
EBERRR 9,419,500 9,419,500 0 0 EF-HHE 20074067065
Others Compliance with 6 June 2007
general provision
A 204,505,835 16,719,500 0 187,786,335 — —
Total
i EREFRIEG - BTRRERARE Note:  SXPGC has undertaken that between the 36th month and 48th

SrmREgEZAEIBEARN T
BIBEHZ S TEN L E - 200956
HA6HZ%E2010F686H ' BiRRIIF
HRX SRR E TR T AR
AR ABI5% - INRHFEEEBR
FRYEHRZ SRR 5 EER
AR - HEEBRTER4.8T - A
MEREARTISEERESEAEM
B AT30 8 [F7EE Rk ARRE T TS
WABRER150% (B ERIEDERE
FEEHR BREHERHHMER
BB BAQTESEERH SR
BEE EHZERETHRER
IB) o HEEBMERBRZALDN
BHERS  BLESHEIRmER s
FiA -

WRHMEFREROBER QA
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month since the listing of the non-tradable shares of the Company,
it shall not sell any of its shares of the Company on the SZSE at
a price less than RMB4.8 per share, (such price will be on an ex-
rights basis if there is any declaration of dividends, bonus issues or
capitalization of capital reserve during the period between the day
of implementation of the revised share reform of the Company and
sale of the shares by SXPGC) being 150% of the average of the
closing prices of the listed A Shares as quoted on the SZSE in the
thirty (30) trading days prior to the issuance date of the relevant
notice of the shareholders’ meeting. Should SXPGC breach any of
the provisions of this undertaking in the sale of its shares, the
proceeds resulting from such sale shall be owned by the Company.



B3R

0]

(ii)

"R & 2.

RZ—ZZEE L F+ = A
=t—H ARATEREEH
£45,605F © BIEHAR AR R
565  ARRA% B 45,5495 -

RZ—ZZEEELF + = A
—t+—BEBARAAE KA

Substantial shareholders

0]

(ii)

As at 31 December 2007, the Company had on record
a total of 45,605 shareholders, including 56 holders
of H Shares and 45,549 holders of A Shares.

As at 31 December 2007, the ten largest shareholders

of the Company were as follows:

AT RBRERBEAOT
Fi BRREE BiEE HRY {EHBRELLH (%)
Number of % of the total
No Name of Shareholder Class of shares shares held share capital
1 WRHEREREAREAAA BEAR 163,258,735 35.70
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical A Shares subject to
Group Company Limited conditions of trading
2 ERENREE (REA)BRAR MBHR 148,853,998 32.55
HKSCC (Nominees) Limited Listed H Shares
3 EERAREERARAA BEAK 15,000,000 3.28
Qingdao Haowei Investment Development A Shares subject to
Company Limited conditions of trading
4 EERHRMERRERN BRAT BEAR 7,632,600 1.67
Zibo High-Tech Venture Capital A Shares subject to
Company Limited conditions of trading
5 RS \XTEERRAALHF B EAR 1,550,000 0.34
Huludao Bajiazi Mining Industry Company Limited A Shares subject to
conditions of trading
6 HEBETENA TRBARR 1,540,000 0.34
China National Pharmaceutical Listed A Shares
Industry Corporation
7 HHE BAK 870,000 0.19
Zhuang Weixing Listed A Shares
8 i i BAR 637,000 0.14
Ling Guoyao Listed A Shares
9 TER nBAR 634,300 0.14
Li Huaxin Listed A Shares
10 BEN BAR 580,000 013
Su Yanxiang Listed A Shares

WRHMEFREROBER QA
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2.

BREBERNB @ 2.

(ii)

(&) (ii)
R-ZZEZLF+=_A=+—
BREBAQBRDA & &
PREFFRRBRAT

BRER

Name of Shareholder

Substantial shareholders (continued)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2007, the ten largest shareholders
holding the unconditional tradable shares of the
Company were as follows:

BEEREEHRHBE B @R

Number of unconditional

listed shares Class of shares

BEETREFE(REBA) BRAF 148,853,998 HAZ
HKSCC (Nominees) Limited H Shares
PEEETENF 1,540,000 AR
China National Pharmaceutical Industry Corporation A Shares
HEE 870,000 AR
Zhuang Weixing A Shares
7 B i 637,000 ARR
Ling Guoyao A Shares
TR 634,300 ARR
Li Huaxin A Shares
#HEAAN 580,000 A%
Su Yanxiang A Shares
RTE 577,058 A%
Zong Zixi A Shares
RR & 517,100 AR
Chen Liangzhong A Shares
WREFETIEROBERAR 500,000 AR
Shandong Pesticide Industry Company Limited A Shares
F A 445,000 AR
Yin Zhong A Shares
Hiat - Note:

1. RATESRARA - il +X 1. The Directors are not aware as to whether there is any

B BIR 2 MR B 7R
SRS T RESEEEIE
Z8g ([TEEEE]) R
ZAEMRRBRRFREE)
EEWBEERDREN
—HAITBA - thRAINER
R2Z MR FERBRERR
(EmARBRFREDE
BRBEEENE) REN—
HITBA °

ARRERARM LRERE
PR Z M~ B RS
Tl AR SR B A BER 2 [ =
LRERERE - BTN
BEAECET R RBRRF R
BEEENETEMEMR
ER—EITHA -

2. A RRARMD5%A L/ 2.

BRI S
BEREERT -

WRHMEFREROBER QA
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association amongst the ten largest shareholders of the
Company, nor the persons acting in concert as defined in
the “Rules for the information Disclosure of Changes in the
Shareholding of Listed Companies” issued by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC"). In addition,
the Directors do not know whether there is any association
amongst the shareholders of H Shares of the Company or
persons acting in concert as referred to above.

The Directors do not know whether there is any association
amongst the ten largest shareholders of unconditional
tradable shares of the Company, any association between
the ten largest shareholders of the Company and the ten
largest shareholders of the Company or the persons acting
in concert as defined in the Rules for the information
Disclosure of Changes in the Shareholding of Listed
Companies issued by the CSRC.

The only domestic shareholder with more than 5% of the
total issued shares of the Company is SXPGC.
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(iii)

RABERR AR E
BESBARETAR ([F
EEME])  HERERIN
—ANABEFRATHEB B
BEBEAR  EMELRR
AR#29,8508 7T - FEAR
KRFE HRZRERS -
RENERTIRRE - Bith
EFRE - B RBHAEE
HE  BREE (L THW
i RER BRRE
HE L TEMR BRLEEk
a) HE  KEEL DX
(EERBEARNLE) -

FEEBENERRRAER
EIRAR AR ([E&E
f&1) + AX 32 F2 2005418 28
B FMERARESET
BEEBERNR  EAREK
AERE CEBRER Y
fERE « BLEXERE  Hib
IEBISR (St 5 ) ZEIE T3
MEXRE  BEETE-

2. Substantial shareholders (continued)

(iii)

Information about the controlling shareholders

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company
Limited (the “SXPGC"), being the controlling
shareholder of the Company, was established as a
wholly state-owned company on 15 June 1995. The
registered capital of SXPGC is RMB298,500,000 and
its legal representative is Ms Guo Qin. SXPGC is
mainly engaged in the engineering design, real estate
and restaurants; production and sale of ointment;
packaging, manufacturing of chemical equipment;
production and sale of chemical engineering apparatus
and instrument; sales of chemical product (except for
hazardous chemicals) and import and export business
(within the scope approved).

Hualu Holdings Company Limited (“HHC”), a wholly
state-owned company, the controlling shareholder of
SXPGC, was established on 28 January 2005. The
registered capital of HHC is RMB800,000,000 and its
legal representative is Mr. Li Tongdao. HHC is mainly
engaged in the investment of fertilisers, petrochemical
industries and investment in sectors which are not
prohibited by the state (or the local community). HHC
is also engaged in asset management.

LWREREEELEBERLRES
Shandong Provincial State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission

| 100%

ERREK
HHC

| 100%

HERE
SXPGC

| 35.70%

RAF]
The Company
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Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Officers

Directors

Ms. Guo Qin, aged 49, is a senior engineer and practising pharmacist,
she graduated from Shandong Medical University, specialising in
pharmacy. Ms. Guo joined the Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Factory (the “Factory”) in 1982, and previously held the positions
of the deputy director of the preparation workshop and the preparation
sales department, the deputy director and the director of the quality
control department, as well as the deputy director and the director
of the Inspection Center for the Quality of Drugs, a subsidiary of
Shandong Pharmaceutical Administration. She was also the director
of the enterprise management department, the assistant to the
general manager, the deputy general manager of the Company and
the general manager of the Company. Ms. Guo is currently a member
of the Standing Committee of Zibo People’s Congress. Ms. Guo has
been appointed as the Chairman of the Company since 24 March
2006. Ms. Guo is also the Chairman of SXPGC and the Chairman
of Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company Limited.

Mr. Liu Zhenwen, aged 55, is a senior economist. He joined the
Factory in 1966 and was transferred to Shandong Jining Antibiotics
Factory in 1968 where he has served as the group leader, the
workshop section head, the deputy head and the head of the
workshop and the head of the Department of Production and
Technology. He has also served as the manager, deputy general
manager, director, vice-chairman, deputy secretary to the Company’s
Communist Party Committee and general manager of the Production
and Planning Department of Shandong Lukang Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. He is currently the deputy secretary to the Company’s
Communist Party Committee and the director and the general
manager of SXPGC. Mr. Liu has been elected as the director of the
Company with effect from 9 June 2006. Mr. Liu is the Chairman of
Shandong Xinhua Industry & Trade Company Limited and the
Chairman of Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical Company
Limited.

Mr. Ren Fulong, aged 45, is a senior engineer and practising
pharmacist. He graduated from Shandong Changwei Medicine
College in 1985. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Ren was a resident
physician. In 1991, Mr. Ren obtained his master of medicine from
Beijing Medical University and joined the Factory in the same year.
He previously held the positions of the deputy director and the
director of the Company’s research institute, the assistant to the
general manager and the deputy general manager of the Company,
the deputy general manager of SXPGC. Mr. Ren has been appointed
the general manager of the Company with effect from 24 March
2006 and has been elected as the director of the Company with
effect from 9 June 2006. Mr. Ren is also a director of SXPGC and
the Chairman of Shandong Xinhua Medical Trade Company Limited
and a director of Shandong Xinhua Longxin Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited.
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Officers (continued)

Directors (continued)

Mr. Zhao Songguo, aged 44, is a senior accountant. He graduated
from Shandong Television and Broadcasting University, specialising
in enterprise management, in 1986. He also completed a refresher
course in Qingdao Ocean University in 2004. Mr. Zhao joined the
Factory in 1980 and previously held the positions of the head and
the director of the finance department and the assistant to the
general manager of the Company. Mr. Zhao is the director, and the
deputy general manager and the financial controller of the Company.
He is also a director of Shandong Xinhua Medical Trade Co., Ltd.,
a director of Shandong Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd., a
director of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Europe) GmbH and
a director of Shandong Xinhua Longxin Chemical Co., Ltd., a director
of Zibo Xinhua Eastwest Pharmaceutical Company Limited and a
supervisor of Shandong Dadi Xinhua Chemical Company Limited.

Mr. Dai Qingjun, aged 65, graduated from Tsinghua University
specialising in macromolecule chemistry and joined the Factory in
1967. Mr. Dai previously held the positions of a technician, the vice
engineer-general and the deputy general manager of the Factory.
Mr. Dai was the former general manager of Shandong Provincial
Pharmaceutical Company, the director-general of Shandong
Pharmaceutical Administration, the director of science and education
department and the vice director general of the State Pharmaceutical
Administration of China and the vice director general of the State
Drug Administration of the PRC. Mr. Dai is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. Mr. Dai is also an independent
non-executive director of Shandong Lukang Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.

Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen, aged 43, is a partner of a law firm
in Hong Kong, Huen Wong & Co in association with Fried Frank
Harris Shriver & Jacobson LLP. Mr. Mok was admitted as a solicitor
of the Supreme Court of New South Wales, Australia in 1989, and
of England and Wales and Hong Kong in 1992. Mr. Mok was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in 2002. Mr. Mok resigned as director with effect from 16 April 2008.
For details, please refer to the Report of the Board of Directors.
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Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Officers (continued)

Directors (continued)

Mr. Xu Guojun, aged 45, is a doctorate class graduate in accounting
of Renmin University of China, professor, and tutor of postgraduates
and is currently an assistant to the president of Ocean University
of China. Mr. Xu is also the member of Qingdao Municipal
Government Expert Consultancy Committee and the vice chairman
of Qingdao Social Academy. With years’ experience in teaching
accounting and financial management courses, engaging in scientific
research and practical research as well as releasing lots of written
works in accounting and financial management theories, he has
been rewarded as the leader of Qingdao Youth Science and
Engineering many times and has been named as the Excellent
Teacher in Shandong Province and one of Ten Excellent Teachers
of Provincial Colleges. Mr. Xu was appointed as an independent
director of the Company in 2005. Currently, Mr. Xu is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Xu is also an independent
director of Shandong Xinhua Medical Instrument Co., Ltd., an
independent director of Qingdao Yellow Sea Rubber Company
Limited, and a director of Qingdao Haier Company Limited.

Mr. Sun Minggao, aged 43, is a doctorate degree holder in
Management of Tianjin University and a senior economist. Mr. Sun
founded Shenzhen Tactician Investment (Group) Co., Ltd. in 2001,
where he is the Chairman and President. He is also the standing
member of “China Investment Capital & High-Tech”, the financial
adviser of Shiyan Municipal People Government of Hubei Province
and the senior economics consultant of the People Government of
Linyi County of Shandong Province, the standing member of
Shenzhen Venture Capital Association, the deputy director of
Shandong Production Committee, and the deputy director of
Shandong Logistics & Procurement Committee. Mr. Sun was
appointed as an independent director of the Company in 2005.
Currently, Mr. Sun is an independent non-executive director of the
Company.

Mr. Ma Yong, former director of the Company, passed away on 3
August 2007.
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Officers (continued)

Supervisors

Mr. Yu Gongfu, aged 57, is a senior engineer. He graduated from
Shandong Engineering College in 1974, specialising in industrial
automation. He joined the Factory in 1968. Mr. Yu had previously
held the positions of the vice-chairman of the labour union and the
deputy manager of the Factory and was the deputy general manager
of the Company and was a director of the Company. He was also
a director, deputy general manager, deputy secretary to the
Communist Party Committee and the secretary to the Disciplinary
Committee of the Communist Party of SXPGC. Mr. Yu is the chairman
of the Supervisory Committee of the Company.

Mr. Gao Qinggang, aged 58, senior accountant, graduated from
Shandong Television and Broadcasting University, specialising in
finance and accounting. Mr. Gao joined the Factory in 1978 and was
previously the deputy director and the director of the finance
department of the Factory, as well as the chief of the Shareholding
System Reform Office, and the director, deputy general manager
and financial controller of the Company. Mr. Gao is a director, the
deputy general manager and the financial controller of SXPGC. Mr.
Gao is currently a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Liu Qiang, aged 53, was employed to work in the Factory since
1970. He has been employed in the past in different positions as
the secretary of the Party branch of the Production Workshop, the
secretary of the principal branch of the Party of the Factory Branch
and the supervisor to the Party Committee Office. Mr. Liu was
appointed as an employee supervisor of the Company by the
employee’s representatives meeting held on 2 February 2007.

Mr. Zhang Yueshun, aged 58, certified public accountant and certified
public assessor of the PRC. Mr. Zhang was the controller of an
enterprise, the deputy chief of Zibo Office affiliated to the Enterprise
Department of the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, the vice director
of the Zibo Municipal State-owned Assets Administration and the
chief accountant of Shandong Zibo Accountant Firm. Mr. Zhang was
appointed as an independent supervisor in 2002. Mr. Zhang is
currently a senior consultant of Zibo Puhua Accountant Firm and
an independent supervisor of the Company.
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Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Supervisors (continued)

Mr. Tao Zhichao, aged 38, graduated from East China University of
Politics and Laws and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law. Mr. Tao
was also awarded a master’s degree in law from Shandong University.
Mr. Tao was appointed as an independent supervisor of the Company
in 2002. Mr. Tao is a partner of Shandong Zhigong Associates, the
legal consultant for the People’s Government of Zibo, Shandong
and an independent supervisor of the Company.

Mr. LU Zhongde, aged 51, is a political work specialist. Mr. LU joined
the Factory in 1975 and held the positions of the deputy secretary
and the secretary to the Company’s Communist Youth Party
Committee and the vice chairman of labour union of the Company.
From 2 February 2007, Mr. LU has resigned as an employee
supervisor of the Company.

Senior Officers

Mr. Zhang Daiming, aged 45, is a senior economist. He graduated
from Qingdao Science and Technology University, specialising in
organic chemical engineering and obtained a master’s degree in
economics from Shanghai Financial and Economic University. Mr.
Zhang joined the Factory in 1987 and was previously the deputy
manager and manager of international trade department of the
Company. Mr. Zhang is a deputy general manager of the Company,
the chairman of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Europe) GmbH,
the chairman of Shandong Xinhua Import and Export Company
Limited, a director of Shandong Xinhua Medical Trade Company
Limited, a director of Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company
Limited and a director of Zibo Xinhua Eastwest Pharmaceutical
Company Limited.

Mr. Fu Henggian, aged 58, is a senior economist. He joined the
Factory in 1970. Mr. Fu previously held the positions of the workshop
engineer, the director of the workshop, the director of the dispatch
department and the director of the planning and statistics department
of the Factory, the director of the planning department of SXPGC,
the director of the planning department, the assistant to the general
manager and the deputy general manager of Xinhua Lukang
Pharmaceutical Group Corporation. Mr. Fu has been the deputy
general manager of the Company since 24 March 2006. Mr. Fu is
a director of Shandong Dadi Xinhua Chemical Company Limited.
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Senior Officers (continued)

Mr. Wang Xiaolong, aged 43, was a senior engineer. He graduated
from Shandong University of Technology, specialising in automation.
Mr. Wang joined the Factory in 1988 and previously held the positions
of the deputy director and the director of the electricity workshop
and the director of the machinery sub-factory. Mr. Wang is the
deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Wang is a director of
Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical Equipment Company Limited.
Mr. Wang has resigned from the position of deputy general manager
of the Company with effect from 3 September 2007.

Mr. Gao Xiangyou, aged 39, is a senior engineer. He graduated from
Tianjin University, specialising in organic chemistry and joined the
Factory in 1990. Mr. Gao had previously held the position of deputy
director of the workshop and director of the workshop and was the
general manager of Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company
Limited and was the assistant to the general manager of the
Company. Mr. Gao is a deputy general manager of the Company.

Mr. Huo Yong, aged 60, is a senior economist. He graduated from
Beijing Chemical Industry School. Mr Huo joined the Factory in
1969. Mr. Huo previously held the positions of the deputy chief of
the labour division, the deputy director and the director of the
personnel and cadre department of the Company. Mr. Huo retired
as deputy general manager of the Company on 23 March 2007.

Mr. Cao Changgqiu, aged 38, is a senior economist. He graduated
from Qingdao Ocean University, specialising in economic
management and joined the Factory in 1991. Mr. Cao is one of the
company secretaries of the Company.

Ms. Guo Lei, aged 39, has a master’'s degree in economics from
Beijing University and is an economist. She graduated from
Guangzhou Foreign Trade College, specialising in accounting and
joined the Factory in 1992. Ms. Guo is one of the company secretaries
of the Company.

The Director, Supervisors and General Manager of the Company
were appointed for a term of 3 years commencing from 22 December
2005. The Senior Officers of the Company were appointed for a
term to 22 December 2008.
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’

ERAEFLFERMENR Interests in Shares of the Company
#2007%12A31H #®2007%1A1H
As at As at
31 December 2007 1 January 2007
L] %5 3 3
Name Duty Number of shares Number of shares
E=
Directors
& E HER 12,639 16,852
Ms. Guo Qin Chairman
2R FHITES AEFE AEFE
Mr. Liu Zhenwen Non-executive director Nil Nil
E1REE HITESF  RK1% AFE AFE
Mr. Ren Fulong Executive director, General manager Nil Nil
iR /NG MITEE  BIRKLE MBEEA RIFE RFE
Mr. Zhao Songguo Executive director, Nil Nil
deputy general manager,
financial controller
5 K FEHRTTE S (R200748 A3H Att) RABE AEBE
Mr. Ma Yong Non-executive director Nil Nil
(died on 3 August 2007)
BER BUIFRITES ] AEFE
Mr. Dai Qingjun Independent Non-executive director Nil Nil
Bfre B I ITE E (70200854 A 168 BE )
Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen Independent Non-executive director KB KEFE
(resigned on 16 April 2008) Nil Nil
REE BAFRITES ] AEFE
Mr. Xu Guojun Independent Non-executive director Nil Nil
FHE BIUFRTES REFE AEFE
Mr. Sun Minggao Independent Non-executive director Nil Nil
E®
Supervisors
TR EEETR 6,075 6,075
Mr. Yu Gongfu Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
= R E=x 4,370 4,370
Mr. Gao Qinggang Supervisor
2 @ L (R2007F2 A2REREH) 4,370 4,370
Mr. Liu Qiang Supervisor (appointed on 2 February 2007)
= FrsXid B = (200742 A28 B ) RABE AEBE
Mr. LG Zhongde Supervisor (retired on 2 February 2007) Nil Nil
3k A IE BYEE REFE ]
Mr. Zhang Yueshun Independent supervisor Nil Nil
byt BYEE REFE AEFE
Mr. Tao Zhichao Independent supervisor Nil Nil
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’
Interests in Shares of the Company (continued)

20074 12A31H #2007%1A1H
As at As at
31 December 2007 1 January 2007
] B B8y B8y
Name Duty Number of shares Number of shares
REREEAR
Senior Officers
R Bl LR AFE AE

Mr. Zhang Daiming Deputy general manager Nil Nil

E X 248432 (20074 3 A 23 B BE () TBRSER 4,027
Mr. Huo Yong Deputy general manager Not senior
(retired on 23 March 2007) management shares
[EAEES EIEGEE: AEFE AFE
Mr. Fu Henggian Deputy general manager Nil Nil
=R Bl 42 4¢ 38 (2007468 H 6 H E S (E) AFHE AEE
Mr. Gao Xiangyou Deputy general manager Nil Nil
(appointed on 6 August 2007)
T B4 438 (200749 A3 B BE(E) 3,384 3,384

Mr. Wang Xiaolong Deputy general manager

(retired on 3 September 2007)

BRK BEEgwE 3,038 4,050
Mr. Cao Changgqiu Company secretary

I EEgNE AEFE AFFE
Ms. Guo Lei Company secretary Nil Nil
A&t 33,876 43,128
Total

ARBEE EENSREEABREE
RRBBAD D BARK »

B EBRER - REBBARE  R_&K

MHEEH -

Br EXFAEESN BLARIZEE SR E
BABREEFRMALE R_TTLF
TZA=1+—B REAXREZEE "
SREBABRESEARARARE HE
mEBEE (EER(EFRBMEHEM)F
XVER) HI R ~ MR &S fEHE (R
BRME) FHEAEAFTREGEZLHNE
GBI EXVEPETHESEH N F MG AR A
REBEEBZANERIORR (BREREGE
M BRI Z L SN AT HEFEL
B SREEASRESEHENRER
KA BRI CE SR BB R 35215
FRTE M AL ER A AR 2 R IR 17 B9 & RO i B9 #E a8
SRR - FRE L RRIKT R+ E [ £
RABEFETESFR ZNEERAANE
ARBREBHZIAHNERIAR

All shares held by the Director, Supervisors and Senior Officers are
A shares.

The changes in the number of shares held by the Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Officers were due to the shares sold on the
secondary market according to relevant provisions.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors, the Senior Officers
and the Supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31 December
2007, none of the Directors, the Senior Officers or the Supervisors of
the Company had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which was required to be
notified to the Company and The SEHK pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest and short position which
any such Director, Senior Officer or Supervisor is taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) of which was required to be
entered in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO or which was otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and SEHK pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing The Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).
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Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers

The remuneration policy of the Directors, the Supervisors and the
Senior Officers are based on State policies, the Company’s profit
realised in the corresponding period, individual achievement and
the average income of local residents determined in accordance
with State policies. During the year, the remuneration and examination
committee of the Company has passed The Proposal of 2007
Annual Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors and The Proposal
of 2007 Annual Remuneration of Senior Officers, and submitted the
above proposals to the Board of Directors for approval. The Directors’
and the Supervisors’ remuneration must be approved in a
shareholders’ meeting of the Company, whereas the remuneration
of the Senior Officers must be approved by the Board of Directors.

Remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Officers

2007 &
2007
AR¥ET
RMBO0’000
¢ Directors
5 = Ms. Guo Qin 20
B4k 3 Mr. Liu Zhenwen 17
EEs Mr. Ren Fulong 30
=R YNE! Mr. Zhao Songguo 22
N Mr. Ma Yong 11.67
BB Mr. Dai Qingjun 6
2w Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen 6
REE Mr. Xu Guojun 6
HHHE Mr. Sun Minggao 6
Ex Supervisors
FRE Mr. Yu Gongfu 20
= E Mr. Gao Qinggang 13
2 o8 Mr. Liu Qiang 6
a8 Mr. L Zhongde 0
sk A IE Mr. Zhang Yueshun 2.4
b 5 R Mr. Tao Zhichao 2.4
HttSREEAR Senior Officers
R ER Mr. Zhang Daiming 22
EEEE Mr. Fu Henggian 20
=R Mr. Gao Xiangyou 6.67
F/hEE Mr. Wang Xiaolong 13.5
E K Mr. Huo Yong 4.5
BHRK Mr. Cao Changgqiu 7
= & Ms. Guo Lei 7

“TTLEEEF  EENEMEHRAE
R FERINEZE A AR 249,148 T ©
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Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

The aggregate remuneration of the Directors and the Supervisors for the
financial year ended 31 December 2007 was approximately RMB2,491,400.
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Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Officers

As a result of job allocation, Mr. Li Zhongde has resigned as a
supervisor of the Company. Pursuant to a resolution of the employee's
representatives meeting held on 2 February 2007, Mr. Liu Qiang
has been appointed to replace Mr. LU Zhongde as a supervisor of
the Company.

Mr. Zhao Songguo was re-appointed as the deputy general manager
and financial controller of the Company in the eighth meeting of the
fifth Board of Directors held on 23 March 2007. At the same time,
Mr. Zhang Daiming, Mr. Fu Henggian and Mr. Wang Xiaolong were
re-appointed as the deputy general manager of the Company, Mr.
Cao Changgiu and Ms. Guo Lei were re-appointed as the company
secretaries.

Due to his age, Mr. Huo Yong has not been appointed as the deputy
general manager of the Company.

Mr. Ma Yong, a director of the Company passed away on 3 August
2007.

Mr. Gao Xiangyou was appointed as the deputy general manager
of the Company in the tenth meeting of the fifth Board of Directors
held on 6 August 2007.

As a result of job allocation, Mr. Wang Xiaolong resigned from his
position as the deputy general manager of the Company on 3
September 2007.

Staff and Remuneration

The Group’s staff remuneration was determined in accordance with
the State policies, the Group’s profit in the corresponding period
and the average income of local residents.

As at 31 December 2007, the number of staff employed by the
Group was 5,005, and the total amount of their salaries and wages
for the year 2007 was approximately RMB110,117,000.

WRFERERDBR LA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Staff and Remuneration (continued)

The Group’s staff can be categorised by their area of work and

educational level as follows:

BETImae BIAS®
Area of Work Number of

Employees
FEANE Staff in production 3,774
TREMAE Staff in engineering and technology 299
THEBAE Staff in administration 202
MHAE Staff in finance 79
EmAEAE Staff in research and development 130
KEAE Staff in procurement of raw materials 26
HEAER Staff in sales 271
EEERERAAER Staff in quality control and inspection 224
CE Total 5,005
BEI®TEE EIAE
Academic Qualification Attained Number of

Employees
RER A FERF University or above 543
RNEERF Tertiary Institutes 846
hEIERE Intermediate institutes 978
= REREE Senior high schools and technical schools 1,807
IR R AT EE Junior high schools or below 831
X Total 5,005

HE_TT+F+_A=t+—HILEXEKHE

BB T AEBAE2,276A

WRHMEFREROBER QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

As at 31 December 2007, the number of retired staff of the Group

was 2,276.
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1.

Information disclosed under the

requirement of CSRC

Self-examination for Standardisation

The corporate governance practice implemented by the
Company has complied with the rules and requirements of
corporate governance required to be observed by listed

companies in the PRC.

How independent non-executive directors performed

their duties

During the year, the Board convened eight Board meetings.
The independent non-executive directors’ attendance at the

EBERAT eight meetings are set out below:

RElE/

EERAR

Personally
BIUFRT E2mi & attended/ ZiTHE
EERE The number of written  Commissioned RE fifix
Name participants resolution to attend Absent Remarks
BEHR 7 1 0
Mr. Dai Qingjun
B 8 0 0
Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen
REE 8 0 0
Mr. Xu Guojun
%A 7 1 0

Mr. Sun Minggao

EXRFEAR  ARAREFEERE
BEERAMAREGH - BB
BExhEEREmERNT

During the year, the Audit Committee convened four meetings.
The independent non-executive directors’ attendance at the

four meetings are set out below:

BIEHT EEmAR& HEHE ZREHE

EEl4 The number of Personally Commissioned BRE 0§
Name participants attended to attend Absent  Remarks
HE® 3 1 0

Mr. Dai Qingjun

B 4 0 0

Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen

REIE 4 0 0

Mr. Xu Guojun

%HE 3 1 0

Mr. Sun Minggao

WRHMEFREROBER QA
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Information disclosed under the
requirement of CSRC (continued)

Self-examination for Standardisation

(continued)

How independent non-executive directors performed
their duties (continued)

During the year, the Remuneration and Examination
Committee of the Company convened one meeting. Mr. Dai
Qingjun, Mr. Xu Guojun and Mr. Sun Minggao all attended
the meeting.

During the year, the Nomination Committee of the Company
convened two meetings. Mr. Dai Qingjun, Mr. Xu Guojun and
Mr. Sun Minggao all attended the two meetings.

During the year, the independent non-executive directors did
not dispute the matters raised by the Company.

Auditing of the 2007 annual report by the Audit Committee

1)

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors issued
a written opinion in respect of the financial and
accounting statements issued by the financial
department of the Company in 2007:

The financial and accounting statement of the
Company was prepared with reference to the
accounting policy of the Company. The application of
the accounting policy is appropriate and the accounting
estimates are reasonable and in compliance with the
new accounting standards for business enterprises,
the Accounting Regulations for Business Enterprises
as well as the regulations promulgated by the Ministry
of Finance. Each financial statement consolidated in
the financial statements of the Company is complete
in contents and the basis of consolidation of the
statements is accurate. The Company’s financial
statements are objective, truthful and accurate, without
any material misrepresentations or omissions.

The Audit Committee considered that the financial
statements can be submitted to the certified
accountants engaged in annual auditing for auditing.
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Information disclosed under the
requirement of CSRC (continued)

Self-examination for Standardisation

(continued)

Auditing of the 2007 annual report by the Audit Committee
(continued)

@)

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial and
accounting statements for year 2007 of the Company
again after the issue of a preliminary audit opinion by
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited in respect of the
financial statements for year 2007 of the Company,
and expressed opinions as follows:

The Company was in compliance with the new
accounting standards for business enterprises and
regulations in relation to the financial system of the
Company. The preparation process of the financial
statements was reasonable and standardised and fairly
reflected the assets, liabilities, shareholders’ equity
and operating results as at 31 December 2007. The
content is truthful, accurate and complete.

The Audit Committee considered that the financial
statements for the year 2007 of the Company which
was preliminarily audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited can be submitted for consideration and
approval by the board of directors.

WRHMEFREROBER QA
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1.

Information disclosed under the
requirement of CSRC (continued)

Self-examination for Standardisation

(continued)

Auditing of the 2007 annual report by the Audit Committee
(continued)

3

4

Conclusive report of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
in respect of the auditing of the financial report of the
Company for 2007

On 7 March 2008, the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors approved the overall auditing plan for the
financial report of 2007 of the company as negotiated
and confirmed by the Company together with
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited was of the opinion
that the Company issued a standard auditing report
without any reserved opinions or conclusions. The
Company considered that SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited had audited in accordance with the regulations
under “Independent auditing code of certified
accountants of the PRC (FF Bl =& sHA BBz %
81]). There was ample time for auditing and reasonable
allocation of auditing staff who had attained the
corresponding qualification. The audited financial
statements fully reflected the financial condition of the
Company as at 31 December 2007 and the operating
results and cash flow in 2007. The conclusion upon
auditing was in line with the actual circumstances of
the Company.

In 17 April 2008, the Audit Committee of the board of
directors convened a meeting to review the audited
accounts and results announcement of 2007 and
recommended to appoint the financial auditing
institution for year 2008 with a term of one year.
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1.

Information disclosed under the
requirement of CSRC (continued)

Status of Independence

The Company is independent of its controlling shareholder
in respect of its business, assets, management, institutions
and finance. The Company’s production and operation are
also independent.

() The Company is mainly engaged in the business
of development, manufacture and sale of bulk
pharmaceuticals, preparations and chemical products.
SXPGC undertook that for so long as SXPGC is
regarded as a controlling shareholder of the Company,
it will not engage in any business directly or indirectly
in competition with the business of the Company.

(i) The Company has its own independent production
and supplementary production system and facilities.
Apart from certain patent technologies and the
trademark “Xinhua”, which are owned by the controlling
shareholder, the Company owns all of the other
intangible assets such as industrial property rights
and know-how technologies used by the Company.
The Company also has an independent procurement
and sales network.

(iii)  The Company is independent of its controlling
shareholder in respect of the management of its
workforce and their salaries. The Senior Officers of
the Company including the general manager and the
deputy general managers are paid by the Company.
Except for the general manager being a director of
SXPGC, deputy general managers do not hold any
position in the controlling shareholder of the Company.

(iv)  The Company holds its own shareholders’ general
meetings, and has its own board of directors,
supervisory committee, company secretaries and
management, which are responsible for the different
areas and functions of the Company. The office and
the production area of the Company are separate
from that of its controlling shareholder.

WRFERERDBR LA
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1.

Information disclosed under the
requirement of CSRC (continued)

Status of Independence (continued)

(v) The Company has an independent finance department
with an independent accounting and financial
management system. The Company also maintains its
own independent accounts with banks.

Corporate Governance

The Company strictly complied with various laws and
regulations such as the “Company Law”, “Securities Law”,
“Standard of corporate governance for PRC listed companies”,
“rules of shareholders’ meeting of listed companies” ({_ET7
NEIEAEHE)), “Securities Listing Rules” as well as
the requirements of relevant documents to establish a better
corporate governance structure and to standardise the
operation of the Company. The Articles of Association clearly
define the functions of the shareholders’ general meetings of
the Company with clear rules and procedures that were
effectively carried out. There is a clear division between the
duties of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory
Committee of the Company, with clear rules of procedures
that can be effectively implemented. All members of the
Board of Directors and supervisors diligently perform their
duties. The management of the Company is responsible for
the production and operation of the Company, the organisation
and implementation of resolutions of the board of directors,
and reported to the board of directors and was supervised
by the Supervisory Committee pursuant to the regulations of
the Articles of Association and Rules for the General Manager.
The Company has established a more comprehensive internal
control system without material deficiencies.

The Company has established a “Management Guidelines
for the Provision of Guarantee to External Parties” (9N E
REEHIE)), “Management Guidelines for Subsidiaries”
(FRRIEEMEE)), “Management Guidelines for Connected
Transactions”, “Management Guidelines for Raised Proceeds”
(EEEBLEEHIE)), “Working System of Independent
Directors” (JBZEF T {EHIE)) and Management Guidelines
for Investor Relations ({(#%& & BEEEHI/E)) . The Company
has formulated the code of work for the Nomination
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and Strategic and Development Committee under
the Board of Directors of the Company, which procured the
systematisation and standardisation of corporate governance
of the Company.
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1.

Information disclosed under the
requirement of CSRC (continued)

Corporate Governance (continued)

During the reporting period, the Company amended certain
parts of the Management Guidelines for Information
Disclosure in accordance with relevant regulations so as to
ensure that corporate governance documents are in
compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

During the reporting period, the Company conducted a self-
inspection of the corporate governance of the Company,
prepared the self-inspection report and reform plan with
reference to the requirements in respect of the instruction to
“Strengthen corporate governance of listed companies”
stipulated by the CSRC, thereby compiling the reform report
for the corporate governance of the Company. The report
was reviewed by the Board of Directors of the Company and
was published on the website for information disclosure
designated by the CSRC.

The establishment and implementation of
assessment and appraisal mechanisms
as well as the incentive mechanisms for
senior officers

The Company selects its senior officers from its staff on the
basis of talent and ability. Prior to selecting and appointing
the senior officers, the Board of Directors follows a strict set
of selection criteria, which include the assessment of each
of the candidates’ individual character, moral standard,
coordination ability, working ability and sense of responsibility.
Once appointed, the Board of Directors will evaluate the
senior officers periodically, particularly in respect of
achievements and their execution of resolutions passed by
the Board of Directors.

By analysing the duties of each of the Senior Officers, the
Company clearly sets out their job nature and scope of
responsibilities and has established a corresponding incentive
and penalty scheme to reward and sanction Senior Officers.

WRFERERDBR LA
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1.

Information disclosed under the
requirement of CSRC (continued)

Effect of execution of internal control
system

Through formulation and effective implementation of the
internal control system, the Company’s scale of operation
has gradually been expanded, followed by consecutive annual
increases in sales volume, representing a sound development
trend. The Company’s management level has been raised
and its internal control system has been improved. Therefore,
the quality of the Company’s products has been improved.
In addition, the technology of the Company has been
innovated and the competitiveness of the Company has been
increased. As a result, the Company has a strong foundation
for its future development.

The management of the Company considers that the
Company has established and refined a comprehensive and
reasonable internal control system with reference to laws
and regulations as well as the requirements of relevant
departments. Overall, the normal operation of the Company’s
production has been guaranteed which, to a certain extent,
has mitigated the management risk. The Company also
conformed to the standards of the control system as at 31
December 2007 and the material aspects of the accounting
statements.
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1.

Information disclosed under the
requirement of CSRC (continued)

Self-evaluation of the Company’s internal
control by the Supervisory Committee of
the Company

After auditing, the Company’s Supervisory Committee
considered that the internal control of the Company was in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Shares
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. The format of self-
evaluation of internal control was in compliance with
“Completion of 2007 annual report of listed companies”
(ShenzhengShan [2007] No.206) (% & +£[2007]206 5% (B R
ey ERAR)2007 FEFEE RS TEREA)) . The contents
truthfully, objectively and fully reflected the performance and
effect of the Company’s internal control system.

Self-evaluation of the Company’s internal
control by the independent directors of
the Company

After auditing, Xu Guojun, Dai Qingjun and Sun Minggao;
independent directors of the Company, considered that the
internal control of the Company was in compliance with the
“Guidelines of the internal control of listed companies on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange” (CRYIEHZZFr ETARAE
2 #]#53])) . The evaluation process of the Company’s internal
control conformed to the “Guidelines of the internal control
of listed companies on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange” ((%
NEHZ S L ARIASZESIFES))) . The self-evaluation
report of the internal control system truthfully, objectively and
fully reflected the performance and effect of the Company’s
internal control system.

WRHMEFREROBER QA
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Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Information disclosed under the
requirement of Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Save that the Company has exceeded the annual cap of the
continuing connected transactions for 2007 and that certain
connected transactions between the Company, including its
subsidiaries, and the connected persons, have not been
approved by the independent shareholders and have not
been disclosed, the Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors), are of the opinion that for the year
ended 31 December 2007, the Company has complied with
all requirements set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) including provisions contained in
Appendix 14 to Listing Rules.

The Company always endeavours to achieve the best
corporate governance practices in accordance with the code.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
Directors

The Group has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of a sufficient
number of independent non-executive directors and at least
one independent non-executive director with appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has appointed four
independent non-executive directors including one with
financial management expertise.

The four independent non-executive directors of the Company
have submitted confirmation of independence to confirm that
he / she has strictly complied with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the
Stock Exchange during the reporting period. The Company
considers each independent non-executive director to be
independent from the Company.
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Information disclosed under the
requirement of Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.(continued)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS (“MODEL CODE")

The Board of Directors

1) The Board consists of

Directors
Ms. Guo Qin (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Zhenwen (Non-executive director)
Mr. Ren Fulong (Executive director)
Mr. Zhao Songguo (Executive director)
Mr. Ma Yong (Non-executive director,
passed away on 3 August 2007)
Mr. Dai Qingjun (Independent non-executive director)
Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen
(Independent non-executive director)
(resigned on 16 April 2008)
Mr. Xu Guojun (Independent non-executive director)
Mr. Sun Minggao (Independent non-executive director)

Brief Introduction of the Board members are set out in the
“DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND
STAFF".

During the year, the Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors and Supervisors
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out
in the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Following specific enquiries made with the Directors,
the Company has confirmed that each Director and Supervisor
has complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code regarding securities transactions by directors.
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(D) REEBREXHFMER 2. Information disclosed under the
AT AHBES LHHREA requirement of Rules Governing the
HEE 2 Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.(continued)

EET ) The Board of Directors (continued)

(2 HEXFEERN X FLFREFRY (2)  During the year, the Board convened eight
HEMSREFEER ' & Board meetings. The details of Directors’
EFHE LEESEERM attendance at the eight Board meetings are set
T out below:

ERHE
E@&RR
Commissioned
E2mRy HAHE to attend/
BEERE The number of Personally written BE  fAE
Name participants attended resolution Absent  Remarks
# = 8 8 0 0
Ms. Guo Qin
2R 8 8 0 0
Mr. Liu Zhenwen
EiEse 8 8 0 0
Mr. Ren Fulong
HILE 8 8 0 0
Mr. Zhao Songguo
5 K 8 4 0 0 2007F8A3H At
Mr. Ma Yong passed away on
3 August 2007
BEH% 8 7 1 0
Mr. Dai Qingjun
B 8 8 0 0
Mr. Mok Chung Kwan,
Stephen
REE 8 8 0 0
Mr. Xu Guojun
BH® 8 7 1 0

Mr. Sun Minggao
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Information disclosed under the
requirement of Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.(continued)

The Board of Directors (continued)

©)

Operation of Board

The duties of the Board are to create value for
shareholders of the Company, to confirm the strategies,
targets and planning of the Company, and to supervise
staff in order to ensure that the planned targets can
be met. The members of the Board work in accordance
with principles of honesty and diligence and comply
with all relevant laws, regulations, the Articles of
Association of the Company and relevant requirements
to maximise the shareholders’ interests. With various
measures of internal controls and mechanisms for
checks and balances, the duties of the Board and the
management of the Company are clearly defined.

The Board’s role is clearly defined as directing and
supervising the affairs of the Company, establishing
its strategic direction and setting objectives and
business development plans. The management of the
Company is responsible for the implementation of the
strategies, and achieving the objectives and carrying
out the plans determined by the Board. The Board has
formulated the Rules for the Operation of the Board
and the Rules for the General Manager according to
the relevant PRC laws and regulations and the listing
rules of stock exchanges both in the PRC and
overseas, in which the duties and powers of the Board
are further defined and the internal operation
procedures of the Board were standardised. Therefore,
the Board can fully perform its function as the decision-
maker of the Company. Further, the procedures for
the appointment of the General Manger were laid
down. The power, the scope of work, the working
procedures and the responsibilities of the General
Manager have been specifically defined.
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Information disclosed under the
requirement of Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.(continued)

Chairman and General Manager

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to the
Board and ensuring that the Board acts in the best interests
of the Company. The Chairman ensures that the Board
effectively functions and discharges its responsibilities. The
Chairman is also responsible for approving the agenda for
each Board meeting, taking into account any matters proposed
by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.

The General Manager is responsible for the day-to-day
management and the business performance of the Company.

During the reporting period, Guo Qin was the Chairman of
the Company while Ren Fulong was the general manager of
the Company.

Term of independent non-executive
directors

The independent non-executive directors of the fifth Board
were appointed for a term of 3 years commencing from
22 December 2005.

Remuneration and Examination
Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration and
Examination Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
which is a special committee responsible to the Board. The
Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Dai Qingjun, Ms.
Guo Qin, Mr. Liu Zhenwen, Mr. Xu Guojun and Mr. Sun
Minggao. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Dai

Qingjun.

The Company has formulated the “Rules for Operation of the
Remuneration and Examination Committee”. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible for formulating the
remuneration policy of Directors and Senior Officers of the
Company, determining the standard of examination of
Directors and Senior Officers, assessing the performance of
Directors and Senior Officers during the year and approving
the terms of their service contracts and remuneration
packages and submitting the same to the Board for approval.
The terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee are
available upon request.
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Information disclosed under the
requirement of Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.(continued)

Remuneration and Examination
Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Remuneration
Committee convened one meeting for the purpose of passing
the “Proposal of 2007 Annual Remuneration of Directors and
Supervisors” and the “Proposal of 2007 Annual Remuneration
of Senior Officers”, which were submitted to the Board for
approval.

The remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Officers of the Company is determined with reference to
State policies, the Company’s profit realised in the
corresponding period, individual achievement and the average
income of local residents.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee,
which is a special committee responsible to the Board. The
Nomination Committee comprises of Mr. Dai Qingjun, Ms.
Guo Qin, Mr. Ren Fulong, Mr. Xu Guojun and Mr. Sun Minggao.
The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Dai Qingjun.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the following:

(a) formulating the policy for the nomination of Directors
or Senior Officers and the standard for selection of
such individuals;

(b) preliminary selection of Directors and Senior Officers
and submission of nomination proposals to the Board;

(c) selecting Directors and Senior Officers based on their
education qualifications, industry background and
experiences in the relevant field;

(d) reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of members of
the Board on a regular basis and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes;
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Information disclosed under the
requirement of Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.(continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

(e) assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and

) making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors or Senior Officers.

The terms of reference for the Nomination Committee are
made available upon request.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Nomination
Committee convened two meetings. Mr. Zhao Songguo was
nominated as the deputy general manager and financial
controller of the Company, Mr. Zhang Daiming, Mr. Fu
Henggian and Mr. Wang Xiaolong were nominated as the
deputy general managers of the Company, Mr. Cao Changqiu
and Ms. Guo Lei were nominated as the company secretaries
on 22 March 2007 and Mr. Gao Xiangyou was nominated as
the deputy general manager of the Company on 5 August
2007. These nominations were then submitted to the Board
for approval.

Auditors’ remuneration

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as the
International Auditor and ShineWing was re-appointed as the
Domestic Auditor in the 2006 annual general meeting held
on 15 June 2007.

In 2007, the auditors’ remuneration for audit services provided
was as follows:

SR (FE) BT EHEAER AT

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited

ERGR -y
ShineWing

2007 E 20065 &
USD75,000 USD75,000
USD45,000 USD45,000
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2.

Information disclosed under the
requirement of Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.(continued)

Audit Committee

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company set
up an Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”) comprising
of four independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Dai
Qingjun, Mr. Xu Guojun, Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen and
Mr. Sun Minggao in 2007. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Xu Guojun.

With reference to “A Guide for the Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants, the Board has set out terms of reference for the
Audit Committee, which define the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has to make sure that the Company’s
financial report reflects a fair view of the Company. In addition
to reviewing the financial information and statements of the
Company, the Audit Committee is also responsible for liaising
with the Company’s external auditor and overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control system
and risk management procedures. A copy of the terms of
reference for the Audit Committee is available upon request.

The Audit Committee has, together with the management,
reviewed the accounting principles, practices and methods
adopted by the Group and has discussed the auditing, internal
controls and financing reporting of the Company. The Audit
Committee has convened four meetings to review the audited
financial statements for 2006, the audited quarterly financial
statements and the unaudited interim statements for 2007.

The Audit Committee convened a meeting on 17 April 2008
to review the 2007 audited accounts and annual results
announcement.

For the record of individual attendance of members of the
Audit Committee, please refer to the attendance table set out
under the section headed “Information disclosed under the
requirement of CSRC” of the Corporate Governance Report.
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Information disclosed under the
requirement of Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.(continued)

Investor Relations

The Company actively and earnestly carried out work in
respect of the disclosure of information and investor relations
and nominated an individual to deal with the Company’s
investor relations. Meanwhile, the Company strictly complied
with the principles of truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness in the disclosure of information. The Company
also enhanced communication with investors and made efforts
in the improvement of the transparency of the Company by
way of issuing results announcements, publishing
announcements, launching the company’s website, meeting
investors and analysts and answering investors’ inquiries,
etc..

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior
Officers’ Interests in Shares

So far as the Directors, the Senior Officers and the
Supervisors of the Company are aware, the interests or short
position in shares of the Directors, the Supervisors and the
Senior Officers, according to the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which
was otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
are stated in the above subsection headed “Directors’ and
Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’ Interests in Shares of the
Company” under the section “DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS,
SENIOR OFFICERS AND STAFF”".

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Company’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board requires
the management to establish and maintain sound and effective
internal controls. Evaluation of the Company'’s internal controls
is independently conducted by the Supervisory Committee
on an on-going basis.

The Board confirms that it has reviewed the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The review covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions.
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2.

Information disclosed under the
requirement of Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.(continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in
Shares

Save as disclosed above in “Changes in Share Capital and
Shareholders” and so far as the Directors, the Senior Officers
and the Supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2007, no other person (other than a Director,
Senior Officer or Supervisor of the Company) had an interest
or short position in the Company’s shares or underlying
shares (as the case may be), which are required to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior
Officers’ Interest and Short Positions

Save as disclosed in “Directors’ and Supervisors’ and Senior
Officers’ Interests in Shares of the Company” under the
section headed “DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR
OFFICERS AND STAFF”, so far as the Directors, the Senior
Officers and the Supervisors of the Company are aware, as
at 31 December 2007, none of the Directors, the Senior
Officers or the Supervisors of the Company had any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares and/or
debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO")) which was
required to be notified to the Company and The SEHK
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interest and short position which any such Director, Senior
Officer or Supervisor is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) of which was required to be entered
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO or which was otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and SEHK pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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On 27 April 2007, the notice of 2006 Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”") was published in newspapers and served on the
shareholders of H Shares by prepaid post. The AGM was
convened by the Board of Directors and held at the Company’s
registered office on 15 June 2007. Five shareholders (including
those represented by their proxies) attended the AGM,
representing a total number of 167,562,735 shares and
accounting for 36.64% of the Company’s total share capital.
The AGM was convened in compliance with the provisions
of the Company Law of the PRC, the Notice for Matters
Concerned in respect of 1995 Annual General Meeting and
Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Overseas
Listed Companies as well as the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”). The AGM was chaired
by Ms. Guo Qin, the Chairman. The following ordinary
resolutions were passed at the AGM:

1. To approve the report of the Directors for the year
2006;
2. To approve the report of the Supervisory Committee

for the year 2006;

3. To approve the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year 2006;

4. To approve the profit distribution of the Company for
the year 2006;

5. To approve the appointment of SHINGWING (HK)
CPA Limited (Certified Public Accountants in Hong
Kong) and Shine Wing (Certified Public Accountants
in the PRC) as the international and domestic auditors
respectively for the year 2007 and authorise the Board
to fix their remuneration;

6. To approve the remuneration of the Directors and the
Supervisors for the year 2007;

An announcement of the above resolutions was
published in the domestic newspaper, Securities Times,
as well as the Hong Kong newspapers, Wen Wei Po
and The Standard, on 18 June 2007.

The election and replacement of the Directors and the
Supervisors are set out in the above section headed
“DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND
STAFF".
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Dear shareholders,

| hereby present for your review the annual report of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Results and Dividends

In the fiscal year ended 31 December 2007, the operating income
of the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) prepared under PRC
accounting standards was RMB1,886,979,000, representing an
increase of 9.52% as compared with that of year 2006. The Group
recorded its profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB32,723,000, representing an increase of 38.85%
as compared with that of year 2006, earnings per share was
RMBO0.07.

The Group’s sales prepared under HKGAAP were
RMB1,865,568,000, representing an increase of 10.69% as
compared with that of year 2006. A profit attributable to shareholders
of RMB31,818,000 was recorded, representing an increase of
39.79%. Earnings per share was RMBO0.07.

The Board of Directors has proposed a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2007 of RMBO0.03 per share (approximately
HK$0.033 per share, including income tax of A shares) on
307,312,830 A Shares and 150,000,000 H Shares. The proposed
dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company
at the annual general meeting of the Company for the year 2007.

Business Review

In 2007, the Group took active steps to deal with the issues such
as price rises of raw materials, price rises of energy and power, a
drop in the price of preparations, growing pressure for environmental
protection, appreciation of the RMB and a reduction in the rate of
export tax rebates. By means of implementing practicable and
feasible measures, the Group achieved the production and operation
targets for the year through success in core areas, including structural
adjustment, technical innovation, marketing promotion and sales,
energy-saving and emission reduction.

1. Speeding up structural adjustment with clear development
objectives. In 2007, adhering to the principle of “enhancing
efficiency”, the Group proactively launched various projects,
resulting in a growth in profit for the year far higher than the
growth of income. The sales of preparations tend to account
for a more substantial proportion of the Group’s sales turnover,
representing an increase of 2.27% as compared to the
previous year. The production capacity of pharmaceuticals,
tablets and injections such as theophylline and ibuprofen had
a considerable increase.
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Business Review (continued)

2.

Grasping foreign economic and commercial opportunities to
explore international markets. During the year 2007, the
revenue from the Group’s exports was US$122,615,000,
representing an increase of 22.08% over 2006. As regards
intentional trade, the volume of trades to end users accounted
for 60% of the total export volume. Co-operation with external
parties was smooth. Preparation processing projects began
to operate in a commercial way. The development of
subsidiaries such as sino-foreign joint-ventures Xinhua-
Perrigo and Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest Pharmaceutical Company
Limited were good.

Speeding up technology improvement to save energy and
reduce consumption. In 2007, the raw materials and energy
saved by the Company amounted to more than RMB8 million
and RMB10 million respectively; whilst the water recycle rate
was over 95%, fulfilling the management assessment
objectives of safety, energy-saving and consumption reduction
in Zibo. The East Area of the Company had successfully
passed the evaluation of clean production by the
environmental protection bureau of Shandong Province and
was granted the A-grade certificate.

Reinforcing corporate management to ensure the effective
operation of a quality assurance system. In 2007, three
products of the Group, including ibuprofen, were approved
in the US FDA examination; six pharmaceutical products,
such as ibuprofen, passed the GMP on-site verification and
completed over 40 evaluations by customers. The Company
had also passed the re-evaluations of ISO9001, 1SO14001
and 1SO10012. With the comprehensive application of the
ERP system, the information system of the Company entered
a new stage of development.

Prospects

In 2008, China’'s economy continues to expand rapidly. With the

state’s establishment of a system ensuring medicine supply to

urban and rural residents, together with further improvement in a
new co-operative medical scheme in villages, full launching of a
basic medical insurance system for urban workers and urban
residents, along with increasing ageing problems etc., the medicine
industry is welcoming a new round of business opportunities.

Given the high prices of major chemical raw materials, surges in

the prices of water, electricity and gas, and prices of preparations
continuing to fall, growing pressure for environmental protection,
consistent appreciation of the RMB and other uncertainties, the

Group will have to bear the pressure from rising costs and falling
prices for part of its products.
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Prospects (continued)

The principal operation objectives of the Group for the year 2008
are as follows:

To achieve a double-digit growth in the sales turnover; to lower
expenditure rates and trade receivables by more than 2% and 5%
respectively; to attain over 100% in the ratio of production to sales
and sales to payment.

1. Speeding up structural optimisation and development

Aiming at constructing an internationally well-known base for
chemical pharmaceuticals, the Company will highlight
advantageous products and lengthen the production chain,
seeking to expand traditional pharmaceutical products. The
Company will enhance the production of pharmaceutical
products as well as consistently improving the return rate of
its new products.

The Company will seize the opportunity of international
cooperation in preparation production, and will fully enhance
the production capacity of its new tablet plants. The Company
will also produce new products and new forms of medicines.
Further, it will enhance its sales capability and strive to
elevate the proportion of sales turnover from preparations in
the Group’s turnover.

The Company will proceed with key projects, including the
series of ibuprofen projects with a production capacity of
3,000 tonnes per annum, the innovative park project of modern
medicine and the multi-functional workshop project for the
development of the Company.

2. Focusing on development with a view to having a
breakthrough in sales

The Company will focus on exploring new pharmaceutical
markets and will proactively seek for a breakthrough in sales
of preparations by continuing to implement multi-preparations
along with sales strategies so as to reinforce the tertiary end
user market. To achieve the increase in sales of general
medicine, the Company will strive to be a designated
enterprise for producing medicine as well as bringing more
preparations to be listed on the National Essential Medicines
Lists. Lastly, the Company will take the initiative to produce
various types of preparations with a sales volume over 100
million.
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Prospects (continued)

3.

Increasing investment and accelerating R&D

The Company will take the construction of Xinhua innovative
park project of modern medicine (3715 %8 227 ¥ A5 H
JHH) as an opportunity to further increase the investment
in R&D and introduce advanced machinery and equipment
in order to improve R&D.

The Company will proactively carry out research and
development of new products by adhering to the principle of
“integration of long, mid and short term targets”, so as to
bring the effect upon the integration of R&D and production
into full play. The Company will speed up the introduction and
adoption of new products which are cost-effective and have
good market potential. The Company will also speed up
transforming R&D results into products.

Using innovative technology and adopting energy-
saving and environmental protection policies

The Company will launch an “energy saving and emission
reduction campaign” by using innovative technology and taking
positive steps to perfect the production process with a view
to saving energy and reducing emission. The Company will
deal with the sources so as to achieve the targets of energy
saving and emission reduction. It will strive to attain a high
level of environmental protection and efficient use of
resources. And also, it will improve its technology to protect
the environment. By doing so, the Company aims to be an
energy-saving and environmental friendly enterprise.

Finding out solutions to problems and stringently
controlling operational risks

The Company will take measures to deal with the problems,
such as the appreciation of the Renminbi and decrease in
export duty returns. Further, the Company will try to perform
well in international trade and endeavour to avoid all kinds
of risks.

The Company will strengthen its management of the whole
enterprise and strengthen its risk management by controlling
the sources of risks. It will also perfect the risk management
system and internal control system, and conduct auditing
work with a view to strengthen the management of the
Company.

Guo Qin
Chairman

18 April 2008
Zibo, Shandong, PRC
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The Board of Directors sincerely submits to the shareholders
the report of the Board of Directors and the audited accounts
of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2007.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The business scope and operating results of the Company

The Group is mainly engaged in the development, production
and sale of bulk pharmaceuticals, preparations, chemical
products and other products. The profit of the Group is
mainly attributable to its principal operations.

Sales Analysis

Under PRC accounting standards, the Group had a operating
income of approximately RMB1,886,979,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2007. Sales of bulk pharmaceuticals,
sales of preparations, medical logistics, chemical and other
products accounted for 61.63%, 18.04%, 17.64% and 2.69%
respectively of the total sales of the Group, representing an
increase of 4.90%, an increase of 2.27%, a decrease of
5.55% and a decrease of 1.62% respectively as compared
with that of 2006.

During the year 2007, the sales volume of the Group’s bulk
pharmaceuticals amounted to RMB1,163,054,000,
representing an increase of 19.00% over 2006. The rise was
mainly attributable to the Group’s active exploration of
international markets by making use of its leading position
in the bulk pharmaceuticals market. The revenue from export
was US$122,615,000, representing an increase of 22.08%
over 2006.

The sales volume of preparations was RMB340,345,000,
representing an increase of 25.28% over last year. The growth
was mainly because of the efficiency arising from the
restructuring of the preparation sales department during the
year and the enlargement in the sales as a result of active
exploration of the preparations market;

The sales volume of medical logistics amounted to
RMB332,795,000, representing a decrease of 16.72% over
2006. The fall was mainly due to the adjustment in business
operation strategy during the year in which efforts had been
focused on the development of sales of products with high
gross profit margin, resulting in a decline in the sales when
compared to last year;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the Company
(continued)

The sales volume of chemical and other products was
RMB50,785,000, representing a fall of 31.65% over last year.
The main reason for the drop was that the glass-lining
business of the Group has been transferred to Shandong
Xinhua Changxing Chemical Equipment Company Limited,
a joint stock venture company of the Group.

Results Analysis

The Group’s profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2007 prepared
in accordance with HKGAAP was approximately
RMB31,818,000, representing an increase of 39.79% as
compared to that of last year. The profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company prepared in accordance with
PRC accounting standards was approximately
RMB32,723,000, representing an increase of 38.85% as
compared to that of last year. The main reasons for the
increase were: (i) the opening up of the market and the
continuous expansion of sales; (ii) the strengthening of the
budget management and the decline in the cost of sales; and
(iif) entering into forward foreign exchange contracts to avoid
fluctuations in the foreign exchange rate risk, which resulted
in long-term foreign exchange gains.

TEESRERDPETHRERF Major products and the corresponding market share in
5: the PRC are set forth below:
—22+tF
H_ZStE B A iR H (%)
HHEFEF AL %) Market share in
As % of total the domestic
TEER Major Products sales in 2007 market in 2007
A tBEHEE A. Bulk Pharmaceuticals
2T Analgin 15.89 46
o0 Caffeine 17.97 36
AL Aminopyrine 5.13 68
A] 7 VT AR Aspirin 7.45 65
T AR Hydrocortisone 2.35 53
I UK B Pipemidic acid 1.92 100
mig % Ibuprofen 4.64 52
2 Theophylline 1.83 32
B. B# B. Preparations
LUK B% A Pipemidic acid tablets 3.74 64
BHHEER Co-liquorice tablets 1.70 45
EEMFH Nimodipine tablets 1.42 14
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(continued)

1.

Business scope and operating results of the Company
(continued)

Financial and results analysis in accordance with PRC
accounting standards

Total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2007 increased
by 20.29% or approximately RMB382,946,000 to
approximately RMB2,270,715,000, as compared with the
figure at the beginning of the year of approximately
RMB1,887,769,000. The increase in total assets was mainly
due to the increase of fair value of financial assets available
for sale and the profit obtained during this reporting period.

Total equity attributable to the shareholders of the company
as at 31 December 2007 increased by approximately
RMB314,843,000 or 23.30% from approximately
RMB1,351,118,000 at the beginning of the year to
approximately RMB1,665,961,000. This increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in the fair value of financial assets
available for sale and the profit obtained during this reporting
period.

The total liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2007
were approximately RMB553,961,000, representing an
increase of approximately RMB20,590,000 or 3.86%, as
compared to approximately RMB533,371,000 as at the
beginning of the year. The increase was mainly attributable
to the increase of deferred tax liability in this year.

Operating profit of the Group for 2007 amounted to
approximately RMB35,453,000, representing an increase of
25.33% when compared with that of the previous year; profit
attributable to the shareholders of the Company for 2007
amounted to approximately RMB32,723,000, representing
an increase of 38.85% when compared with that of the
previous year. The main reasons for the growth are set out
in the above section headed “Results Analysis”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(continued)

1.

Business scope and operating results of the Company
(continued)

The Group’s net increase in cash and cash equivalents for
the year 2007 was approximately RMB66,699,000. Changes
in cash and cash equivalents were mainly due to receiving
the held-to-maturity investments of principal amount of
RMB117,000,000.

Segmental information of the main products for 2007
prepared under PRC accounting standards is as follows:

FEEBRA FEEERSF EFE %

SiTEBSESR By product or By section Turnover Cost of goods sold Rate of gross margin
ARETT ARETFTT %

RMB’000 RMB’000

LERRE Bulk pharmaceuticals 1,163,054 982,289 15.54
2 Preparations 340,345 262,239 22.95
BERRA Medical Commercial Logistics 332,795 308,973 7.16
EIEMREM  Chemical & other products 8,842 4,382 50.44
At Total 1,845,036 1,557,883 15.56
REBEERMZEFENRR Analysis of the Group’s performance under HKGAAP

RZEZTtF+=ZA=+—H &
EBERBLL R AE177.37%  BHE L
L E117.37% @ ERERFKAE XA
775.99% (JEU R A R = &
B/ FHERKERREZEFE x
100%) - 17 B JA#E % %615.30% (17
EEEX = ERBEERAEFHTE
BEFE x 100%) °

AEEESBERMAFETLHIN
-
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As at 31 December 2007, the current ratio and the quick ratio
of the Group were 177.37% and 117.37% respectively, and
the rate of accounts receivable turnover (being turnover/
average trade and bill receivables x 100%) and the rate of
stock turnover (being cost of goods sold/average inventories
x 100%) were 775.99% and 615.30% respectively.

The Group’s demand for working capital did not have a
significant seasonal pattern throughout the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(continued)

1.

Business scope and operating results of the Company
(continued)

The main source of funds for the Group was loans from
financial institutions. As at 31 December 2007, the total
amount of outstanding bank loans was approximately
RMB206,819,000, all of which were unsecured. As at 31
December 2007, cash on hand and in bank amounted to
approximately RMB212,258,000 (including pledged bank
deposits of approximately RMB12,425,000).

The Group has stringent internal control systems for cash
and fund management in order to strengthen its financial
management. The Group maintained a good level of liquidity
and had a strong debt repayment ability.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2007, the Company
made an additional capital investment of RMB6,000,000 in
Shandong Dadi Xinhua Chemical & Industrial Company Limited
(“Dadi Xinhua”). After the additional investment, the registered
capital of Dadi Xinhua was increased to RMB32,000,000, of
which the Company holds 58.5625% of the interest of Dadi
Xinhua and the Company has a total investment of
RMB18,740,000 in Dadi Xinhua. After the Company’s increase
in investment, Dadi Xinhua became a subsidiary of the Company.

The Company acquired 0.1% equity interest of Sino-USA Zibo
Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Xinhua-
Perrigo”) held by Perrigo International Inc by US$6,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB46,000). After the acquisition,
the Company holds 50.1% of the equity interest of Xinhua-
Perrigo, which became a subsidiary of the Company.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2007, the Company
disposed of some buildings and land and realised a profit of
RMB6,401,000. The percentage ratios of this transaction were
below 5%, therefore it was not a discloseable transaction. The
Company acquired some buildings and land from Shandong
Zibo XinCat pharmaceutical Company Limited, which was valued
at RMB3,358,000. An announcement was issued on 10
December 2007 in relation to this connected transaction. Except
for the above transactions, there were no other material
acquisitions and sales of assets, nor material investments during
the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2007, the number of staff employed by
the Group was 5,005, and the total amount of their salaries
and wages for the year 2007 was approximately
RMB110,117,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(continued)

1.

Business scope and operating results of the Company
(continued)

As at 31 December 2007, there was no charge on the Group’s
assets.

The Company does not anticipate any significant investment
plan in 2008.

The debt-to-capital ratio of the Group was 12.29% (being
total borrowings / share capital & total reserves x 100%).

The bank balances of the Company will mainly be used as
working capital for production, sales and research and
development.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Company provided
financial guarantees to a bank for the benefits of an
independent third party in relation to bills of exchange
amounting to RMB14,000,000 and the bills of exchange
would be issued to a subsidiary of the Company. The Company
was only liable for the difference between the face value of
the bills of exchange issued by the bank and the amount on
the bills of lading if the bills of exchange were overdue. As
at 31 December 2007, bills of exchange amounting to
RMB7,000,000 were issued by the bank and bills of lading
amounting to RMB6,500,000 were issued. (2006: Nil)

The assets and liabilities of the Group were mainly recorded
in Renminbi. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the
revenue from the Group’s exports was approximately
US$122,615,000, which may suffer from the risks associated
with fluctuation in exchange rates. Therefore, the Group has
taken the following measures to hedge against the risks of
fluctuation in exchange rates: (1) the Group has increased
the prices of its exported products to mitigate the risks of
fluctuation in exchange rates; (2) the Group has made
arrangements with overseas customers when entering into
significant export contracts that the risks associated with
fluctuation in exchange rates shall be borne by both parties
if the fluctuation exceeds the amount agreed by contract
parties; and (3) the Group has entered into foreign currency
forward contracts with financial institutions to fix exchange
rates in order to mitigate risks of fluctuation in exchange
rates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(continued)

2.

Effect of changes in accounting policies and accounting
estimate

Significant changes of Accounting policies

The company applied the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises (ASBESs) since 1 January 2007, instead of the
old ASBE which was promulgated by the Ministry of Finance
before 2006, and started to recognise, measure and report
the transactions and events in accordance with the ASBEs.
The Company shall make retrospective adjustments for the
changes of accounting policies arising from the initial adoption
of the ASBEs.

Long-term equity investment of subsidiaries, which accounted
in equity method in the parent company’s balance sheet
before the first-time adoption of ASBEs, shall be
retrospectively adjusted as the deemed beginning cost
accounted in cost method on the first-time adoption date.

Enterprise Income Tax was accounted in the method of
payable tax before the first ASBEs financial statements,
while the method shall be changed as the debit in the balance
sheet on the first-time adoption date.

The foreign currency forward contracts have not been
presented in the financial statements before the first-time
implementation of ASBESs, while after that, the above contracts
shall be presented as derivate financial instruments in the
balance sheet and measured by fair value.

The impacts from changes in the accounting policies on the
shareholders’ equity on 1 January 2006 and 31 December
2006, and the net profit in 2006 based on the consolidation
and parent company are listed as follows:

(1) Impacts on the consolidated shareholders’ equity on
1 January 2006

The retrospective adjustments on deferred tax asset
increased RMB6,576,000 of undistributed profit;
derivative financial instrument retrospectively
increased RMB83,000 of undistributed profit;
shareholders’ equity has been increased of
RMB1,092,000 because of the minority shareholders’
equity has been presented in the shareholders’ equity.
The adjustments above totally increased
RMB7,751,000 of shareholders’ equity as at 1 January
2006.

WERFEHREROGBER D A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(continued)

2. Effect of changes in accounting policies and accounting
estimate (continued)

(2

3

Impacts on the consolidated net profit in 2006

The retrospective adjustment on deferred tax asset
increased RMB1,039,000 of net profit; derivative
financial instrument retrospectively increased
RMB51,000 of net profit; change of presentation of
minority shareholder’s equity increased RMB-814,000
of net profit; change of presentation of unconfirmed
investment loss increased RMB-228,000 of net profit.
The adjustments above totally increased RMB48,000
of net profit in 2006.

Impacts on the consolidated shareholders’ equity on
31 December 2006

The retrospective adjustments on deferred tax asset
increased RMB7,615,000 of undistributed profit;
derivative financial instrument retrospectively
increased RMB134,000 of undistributed profit;
shareholders’ equity has been increased of
RMB3,313,000 because of the minority shareholders’
equity has been presented in the shareholders’ equity.
The adjustments above totally increased
RMB11,062,000 of shareholders’ equity as at 31
December 2006.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(continued)

TEHBE  FHEANNRESTER 2. Effect of changes in accounting policies and accounting

3 2(4:08-4 HE=)) estimate (continued)
(4) FERFARBEERX (4)  Income statement adjusted
(2006.1.1—2006.12.31) B - (AR¥) T
RMB
AR AEE
HE Before After
Item adjusted adjusted
SE DN Operating Cost 1,420,654,316.83 1,439,645,679.82
HEEM Selling and distribution 114,723,187.31  115,767,700.70
EREER General and administrative
expenses 135,450,402.82 96,169,249.78
ArBEZESHKE Gain or loss from changes
in fair value 0.00 50,510.04
wE W Investment gain or loss 6,029,998.09 6,029,998.09
FTiS 7 Income taxation 7,642,939.19 6,603,627.32
B LT ARIMREAEFDE  Net profit attributable
to shareholders of
the Company 22,705,557.86 23,567,389.39
(5) FABEEEFEGE (5) Reconciliation of Transitional Adjustment in
Consolidated Net Profit
"H 20065 K&
Item 2006
(AE®TFT)
(RMB)
[REMAERZFMNBEEHE 22,706
Consolidated net profit applied for old ASBEs
ERAE
Adjustments:
(1) EREMRSHEEHMEHERNAR 1,039
Adjustment to income tax expense from the deferred tax assets
(2 VESRITE 51
Derivative financial instruments
() AEBRERERIIBAAE L (814)
Changes in presentation of minority shareholders’ equity
(4) REREZREBEXRIHRAXE L (228)
Changes in presentation of unconfirmed investment loss
ZEARET 48
Sub-total
EAGHNBERZFENEeHE 22,754
Consolidated net profit applied for ASBEs
He : BEREAREFE 23,567

Including: Attributable to the parent company

WRHMEFREROBER QA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(continued)

2.

Effect of changes in accounting policies and accounting

3 2(4:00-4 HEC=)) estimate (continued)
(6) MESHFEARIEREZR (6) Comparative Table of Reconciliation Difference
AR B LR between the old ASBEs and ASBEs
By - (AR®) T
RMB
HR%R 007FHHEH 2006F HEHEH ER FERH
Item 2007 2006 Difference  Notes
2006512731 BRRER (R 2508 1,343,336,960.31 1,343,336,960.31 0.00
Equity as at 31 December 2006
TESRTIA 133,672.68 133,672.68 0.00
Derivative financial instrument
i 7,615,422.95 8,049,148.23 (433725.28)  RE(OEEEEFLI8E-FEHIN
Income tax BT ARFIH2006F12A31RE)
BREFMEHAEEN THAE -
According to Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprise No.18-Income Tax,
the Company recognised the deferred
tax assets as at 31 December 2006.
LERFER 3,280,950.06 3,312,522.34 (31,572.28)  RIE2007F4RRIM(RE 3N

WRHMEFREROBER QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Minority shareholders’ equity

-ERPHEREL ARTR

2006512731 B R R s

EREHFRREEEE

31572.087T » WHESHBFER

BT WRERERARAE
According to Interpretations on

Accounting Standards

for Business Enterprise

which were promulgated in April 2007,

the Company adjusted RMB32, 000 of

the excess loss of subsidiaries

in the minority shareholders’ equity,

which should be attributed to

minority shareholders on

31 December 2006.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(continued)

2. Effect of changes in accounting policies and accounting

estimate (continued)

(6) Comparative Table of Reconciliation Difference
between the old ASBEs and ASBEs (continued)

007 H/BEY 20065 5 R & 8 ER
2007 2006 Difference

Efs - (ARE)T
RMB

RERS
Notes

it
Other

07F1R1ARR B (3 2528
Equity as at 1 Janurary 2007

31,572.28 31,572.28

1,354,398,578.28 1,354,832,303.56

(433,725.28)

BIB200754 ARTE(BE g5HER
-RE)PNEARL - ARF
%2006512A31 B D BIR R RS
ERENTAREERE
31572287 BEZ D YRR R
BT UHRERERARAE

According to Interpretations on
Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprise
which were promulgated in April 2007,
the Company adjusted RMB32, 000 of
the excess loss of subsidiaries
in the minority shareholders’ equity,
which should be attributed to
minority shareholders on
31 December 2006.

RIE(C S e RRB 185
-AERINRT  RLFH 20065
LANRNERHERERENT
AT

According to Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprise No.18-Income Tax,
the Company recognised the deferred
tax assets as at 31 December 2006.

WRHMEFREROBER QA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(continued)
3. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(1) Total equity interest of Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy Chain

(i)

Company Limited (“Xinhua Pharmacy”) is
RMB2,000,000, in which the Company holds 88% of
the total equity interest. The main operations of the
subsidiary are the sale of traditional Chinese medicine,
prepared herbal medicine for decoction, preparations,
drugs for diagnosis, drugs for birth control, medical
devices, health foods and cosmetics. As at 31
December 2007, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB8,556,000, equity attributable
to shareholders of the parent was approximately
RMB2,136,000. In 2007, the operating income of the
subsidiary was approximately RMB18,383,000, a
decrease of 5.25% as compared with that of 2006.
The main reason for the decrease was that the
Company, in pursuit of efficiency, adjusted its operation
strategy and closed some of its drug chain stores with
unsatisfactory profitability, leading to a decline in sales.
Net profit was RMB870,000, representing an increase
of RMB1,996,000 over 2006. The growth was
principally attributable to that company’s constant effort
to reinforce management during the year 2007 so as
to strive for efficiency optimisation, resulting in an
improvement in its operation positions.

Total equity interest of Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Design Institute Company Limited is RMB2,000,000,
in which the Company holds 90% of the total equity
interest. This subsidiary is mainly engaged in the
business of the design of medical projects. As at 31
December 2007, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB2,716,000, equity attributable
to shareholders of the parent was approximately
RMB479,000. In 2007, the operating income and the
profit after taxation of the subsidiary were
approximately RMB2,954,000 and RMB141,000
respectively, representing an increase of 11.51% and
an increase of 97.75% respectively as compared with
that of 2006, mainly due to the continued expansion
in the scale of the subsidiary’s business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(continued)

3. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Total equity interest of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Europe) GmbH is EUR650,000, in
which the Company holds 76.9% of the total equity
interest. This subsidiary is mainly engaged in the
business of bulk pharmaceutical intermediates. As at
31 December 2007, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB6,353,000, equity attributable
to shareholders of the Company was approximately
RMB2,483,000. In 2007, the operating income of the
subsidiary was approximately RMB12,760,000,
representing an increase of 130.83% as compared
with that of 2006, which was mainly due the continued
expansion in the scale of the business. The net loss
of the subsidiary was RMB1,097,000.

Total equity interest of Shandong Xinhua Medical Trade
Company Limited is RMB48,499,000, in which the
Company holds 98% of the total equity interest. This
subsidiary is mainly engaged in the business of
biological products, prepared herbal medicine for
decoction, traditional Chinese medicine, bulk
pharmaceuticals, preparations, antibiotic preparations
biochemical medicine, health food, medical appliances,
drugs and products for birth control and cosmetics
etc.. As at 31 December 2007, the total assets of the
subsidiary were approximately RMB168,972,000,
equity attributable to shareholders of the parent was
approximately RMB48,243,000. In 2007, the operating
income of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB658,706,000, representing an increase of 86.37%
as compared with that of 2006, which was mainly due
to the increase of operating revenues due to the re-
structuring of the preparation sales department and
the transfer of preparation sales from the Company to
Shandong Xinhua Medical Trade Company Limited
that year, which resulted in an increase in sales. Net
loss was RMB440,000.

WRFERERDBR LA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(continued)

3. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(continued)

(v)

(vi)

Total equity interest of Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest
Pharmaceutical Company Limited is US$1,500,000,
in which the Company holds 75% of the total equity
interest. This subsidiary is mainly engaged in producing
and selling calcium polycarbophil bulk pharmaceutical
products. As at 31 December 2007, the total assets
of the subsidiary were approximately RMB15,242,000,
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
was approximately RMB14,489,000. In 2007, the
operating income of and the profit after taxation of the
subsidiary were approximately RMB11,713,000 and
RMB2,502,000 respectively, which were mainly due to
the products of the subsidiary being put into production
in 2007.

Total equity interest of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Import and Export Company Limited
is RMB3,000,000, in which Shandong Xinhua Medical
Trade Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company
holds 98% of the total equity interest. The joint venture
is mainly engaged in the import and export of goods
and technologies, marketing and re-export. As at 31
December 2007, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB9,198,000, equity attributable
to shareholders of the Company was approximately
RMB4,795,000. In 2007, the operating income and
the profit after taxation of the subsidiary were
approximately RMB40,728,000 and RMB1,470,000
respectively, representing an increase of 188.61% and
an increase of 353.17% respectively as compared
with that of 2006, which were mainly due to the
expansion in the scale of the business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(continued)

3. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(x)

Total equity interest of Shandong Dadi Xinhua
Chemical & Industry Company Limited is
RMB32,000,000, in which the Company holds
58.5625% of the total equity interest. This subsidiary
is mainly engaged in producing and selling chemical
products. As at 31 December 2007, the total assets
of the subsidiary were approximately RMB69,300,000,
equity attributable to shareholders of the parent was
approximately RMB32,704,000. In 2007, the operating
income of and the profit after taxation of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB84,522,000 and RMB506,000
respectively. The increase in operating income and
profit after taxation in 2007 was higher than that of
2006 mainly because the subsidiary commenced to
produce its products in 2007.

Total equity interest of Weifang Wanyuan Chemical
Company Limited is RMB10,000,000, in which
Shandong Dadi Xinhua Chemical & Industry Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company holds 51% of
the total equity interest. The joint venture is mainly
engaged in producing and selling chemical products
and bromine. As at 31 December 2007, the total assets
of the subsidiary were approximately RMB35,167,000,
equity attributable to shareholders of the parent was
approximately RMB17,389,000. In 2007, the operating
income of and the profit after taxation of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB46,223,000 and RMB857,000
respectively, representing an increase of 73.46% and
an increase of 29.16% respectively as compared with
that of 2006, which were mainly due to the continued
expansion in the scale of the business.

Total equity interest of Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Company Limited is US$6,000,000,
in which the Company holds 50.1% of the total equity
interest. This subsidiary is mainly engaged in producing
and selling Ibuprofen. As at 31 December 2007, the
total assets of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB63,559,000, equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company was approximately RMB47,508,000.
In 2007, the operating income of and the profit after
taxation of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB112,220,000 and RMB9,454,000 respectively,
representing an increase of 196.37% and an increase
of RMB10,390,000 respectively as compared with that
of 2006, which were mainly due to the continued
expansion in the scale of the business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(continued)

4.

Use of Proceeds

On 3 September 2001, the Company raised an amount of
RMB370,517,000 from the issue and offer of 33,000,000
A Shares (including the offer of 3,000,000 state-owned
shares). As at 31 December 2007, a total of approximately
RMB320,056,000 from the proceeds of the above issue of
A Shares had been used in the following projects:

BRES 20074 TRER
BRESNERAEHR "AME ERRA RHRER BHEBLLA fiiiE
Total Investment Accumulated % of the
Name of project investment in 2007 investment total investment Remark
ARETTL ARETFIL ARETTL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

REEAROHEER 74,500 - 10,123 13.59% NIA

State-level technical centre

S EIGMPEETEE 80,000 - 80,226 100.28% i

Injection workshop GMP renovation Completed

Mok R EE T B 160,000 - 188,201 117.63% =T

Caffeine technical renovation Completed

L-350 i iE R B 29,980 - 23,442 78.19% A

L-350 technical renovation Completed

2T s e (GMP) & B 39,800 — 46,265 116.24% =T

Analgin GMP renovation Completed

At 384,280 — 348,257 —  HP28201FA

Total BEESRA

RMB28,201,000
financed by the Company

BfaE - Note:

1. T BB (GMP)MEEE - 1. Analgin GMP renovation project, L-350 project and caffeine technical
L-35018 H - MBFERMBGEER - renovation project, and Injection GMP renovation project have finished
HE(GMP)ZIETER HE LT IWE and the production has commenced.

EEEN -
2. B R AR i AR D BiE TE B B ASSERCAT 2. The construction of the state-level technical center has entered the

HIAE R AR o

HMAEANERESFRRT - &
BRAGERERBER -

WRHMEFREROBER QA
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stage of preparation.

The unused proceeds were deposited in banks and will be
used in accordance with project commitments.
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Working Report of the Board

1.

During the year, the Board of Directors passed resolutions
on eight occasions:

A.

On 23 March 2007, the eighth meeting of the Fifth
Board was convened at the Company’s registered
office, the results of the meeting were published in the
domestic Securities Times, and Wen Wei Po and The
Standard of Hong Kong on 26 March 2007.

On 26 April 2007, the ninth meeting of the Fifth Board
was convened at the Company’s registered office, the
results of the meeting were published in the domestic
Securities Times, and Wen Wei Po and The Standard
of Hong Kong on 27 April 2007.

On 28 June 2007, the first extraordinary Board meeting
of 2007 was convened by way of written resolution,
the "Management Guidelines for Information
Disclosure" (revised version) of the Company was
approved.

On 12 July 2007, the second extraordinary Board
meeting of 2007 was convened by way of written
resolution, the “On the governance of listed companies
in strengthening the activities of self-examination and
special reports and corrective plan for the motion” of
the Company was approved.

On 6 August 2007, the tenth meeting of the Fifth
Board was convened by electronic means of
communication, the results of the meeting were
published in the domestic Securities Times, Wen Wei
Po and The Standard of Hong Kong on 7 August 2007.

On 11 October 2007, the third extraordinary Board
meeting of 2007 was convened by way of written
resolution, the resolution of “Increase in shareholding
of Shandong Dadi Xinhua Chemical Company Limited”
was approved.
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Working Report of the Board (continued)

1. During the year, the Board of Directors passed resolutions
on eight occasions: (continued)

G. On 25 October 2007, the eleveth meeting of the Fifth
Board was convened by electronic means of
communication, the results of the meeting were
published in the domestic Securities Times, Wen Wei
Po and The Standard of Hong Kong on 26 October
2007.

H. On 6 December 2007, the twelveth meeting of the
Fifth Board was convened by electronic means of
communication, the results of the meeting were
published in the domestic Securities Times, and Wen
Wei Po and The Standard of Hong Kong on 11
December 2007.

2. Implementation of the Resolutions Passed at the General
Meeting by the Board

The dividend for 2006 of the Company was distributed in mid
August 2007.

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Officers

Brief introduction of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers are listed
in the above section headed “BRIEF INTRODUCTION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS” under the section
“DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND STAFF”.

Public Float

The Company has complied with the requirement in respect of the
minimum public float during this reporting period and up to the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report.

Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors and
Supervisors are set out in note 14 to the Accounts prepared in
accordance with HKGAAP.

Individuals with the Highest Remuneration

The five individuals with the highest salaries paid by the Group
during the year 2007 were two directors, one senior officer and two
managers. For details, please refer to note 15 to the Accounts
prepared in accordance with the HKGAAP.
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire
Shares

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company
or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable any
of the Directors, the Supervisors, or their spouses or children under
18 years of age to take advantage by acquiring shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Service Contracts of Directors and Supervisors

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has not entered into a
service contract with the Company.

None of the Directors and the Supervisors have a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Contracts

Neither the Company, its holding company, its controlling shareholder
nor fellow subsidiaries have signed any contracts in relation to the
Company'’s business in which any Directors or Supervisors had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Accounts

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2007 and the
financial position of the Group and the Company as at 31 December
2007 prepared in accordance with HKGAAP and PRC accounting
standards are set out in section headed “ACCOUNTS PREPARED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPALS” and “ACCOUNTS PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS”.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group prepared in
accordance with HKGAAP for the last five financial years and PRC
accounting standards for the last three financial years is set out in section
headed “SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS”.
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Profit Appropriation

In accordance with PRC accounting standards, the Group recorded a
net profit of approximately RMB32,723,000 for the year ended
31 December 2007, 10% of which was transferred to the statutory
surplus reserves amounting to approximately RMB1,972,000. The Board
has recommended to distribute a final dividend at RMBO0.3 per 10
shares subject to the approval of the shareholders of the following 2007
annual general meeting of the Company (equivalent to approximately
HK$0.33 per A Shares, tax inclusive) on 307,312,830 A Shares and
150,000,000 H Shares in issue, which is aggregated to be approximately
RMB13,719,000. The above recommendation will be submitted to the
2007 Annual General Meeting of the Company for approval.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis
of Operations

The turnover of the Group and the Company in various geographical
locations is set out in note 7 to the Accounts prepared in accordance
with the HKGAAP.

Changes in Share Capital and Shareholders

Changes in share capital and shareholders are set out in the above
section headed “CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND
SHAREHOLDERS”

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year 2007 are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity to the Accounts prepared in accordance with the HKGAAP,
and notes 7.26 and 7.27 to the Accounts prepared in accordance
with PRC accounting standards, respectively.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movement in the fixed assets of the Group and the
Company during year 2007 are set out in notes 17 to the Accounts
prepared in accordance with the HKGAAP, and note 7.11 to the
Accounts prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group and
the Company as at 31 December 2007 are set out in note 32 to the
Accounts prepared in accordance with the HKGAAP, and notes 7.15
to the Accounts prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
standards.
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Interest Capitalised

During the year, no interest was capitalised in respect of loans
borrowed by the Group and the Company for financing its
construction-in-progress.

Staff Quarters

The Group did not sell any staff quarters to its employees during
the year ended 31 December 2007 but was required to contribute
8% of the basic wages of the Group’s staff to the accommodation
scheme managed by the Shandong Province Zibo Municipal Finance
Bureau in accordance with the relevant regulations implemented by
the PRC government authorities since 1 January 1998. For the year
ended 31 December 2007, contributions to the accommodation
scheme made by the Group in this respect amounted to
approximately RMB5,076,000.

Staff Basic Medical Insurance

Pursuant to the Plan for Implementation of Basic Medical Insurance
System for Urban Employees promulgated by the Shandong
Provincial Government and the Schedule for Establishment of
Medical Insurance System for Urban Employees implemented by
Zibo Municipal Government, the Company joined the above-
mentioned Medical Insurance System for Urban Employees in
December 2004. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the total
contribution of the Group to the staff basic medical insurance was
approximately RMB6,461,000.

Preferential Tax Treatment

Since 1 January 2004, the operating results of the Company arising
from business conducted in the development zone are subject to
PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 15%, while business
conducted outside the development zone is subject to PRC enterprise
income tax at a rate of 33%. The Company has submitted a tax filing
to the local tax bureau.

Designated Deposits

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group had neither
placed any deposits with any non-banking financial institutions, nor
had it placed any designated deposits. The Group does not have
any overdue time deposits.
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Important Issues

Important issues of the Company for the year 2007 are set out in
the section headed “IMPORTANT ISSUES”".

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentages of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers and five largest customers were 22.79% and
14.04% of the Group’s total purchases and total sales, respectively,
for the year ended 31 December 2007.

The percentages of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and largest customer were 5.43% and 4.35% of the
Group’s total purchases and total sales, respectively, for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors or any of
their associates (within the meaning of the Listing Rules), or those
shareholders which own more than 5% of the share capital of the
Company have an interest in any of the above customers or suppliers
of the Group during the year.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2007, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had redeemed, purchased or sold any
of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights

According to the Company’s Articles of Association and the laws
of the PRC, there is no provision for pre-emptive rights.

Retirement Scheme Arrangements

The Group participates in the State Social Retirement Scheme (the
“Scheme”) and pays the insurance premium in accordance with the
particular regulation issued by the local municipal government
whereby it is required to make an annual contribution of 23% of the
total salaries and bonuses paid to staff. In turn, the local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retirees of the Group. Contributions to the
Scheme are charged to the profit and loss account as and when
they are incurred. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the total
contribution of the Group to the Scheme was approximately
RMB21,152,000.
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Connected Transactions

AEEEFEEBEHENETCE (1)  Significant connected transactions carried out in the normal

REBBMALZZHENT

course of the Group’s business are summarsied as follows:

—E2t TR
2007 2006
ARSFIT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HEPERATILIRFEEESEM  With immediate holding company Shandong
FREEAFREMELR Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company
Limited (“SXPGC") and its subsidiaries
—HEKEAREME — Sale of water, electricity,
steam and raw materials 14,036 13,160
—REEREME — Purchase of raw materials 96,730 72,293
-RBE0NE BERR — Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3,358 1,499
-l A — Rental income 952 1,438
G- 4 ON — Design fees income 10 —
— XA g — Payment of annual trademark licence fee 1,100 1,000
-HeXH — Rental expenses 870 500
HBELT With associates
—REREME — Purchase of raw materials 34,768 6,421
—HEKEAR — Sale of water, electricity and steam — 6,766
—FIBHA — Interest income received — 270
—HERM — Sale of technique know-how — 2,005
—HERER — Sale of work in progress — 4,759
- HEWE - BERR — Sale of property, plant and equipment — 1,708
—HETBRA — Design fees income 31 —
HOBBEE With minority shareholders
- HEERBEN{ TR  — Sale of bulk Pharmaceutical and
chemical raw materials 175,989 —
- RBLELIRBMEKEA — Purchase of chemical raw materials and
water, electricity, steam 2,938 —

WRHMEFREROBER QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




B % (&)

)

WRFERERODBR LA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

RNAFEE(BIEBNIFNTES)
RN Z S TN B B EEBRE
RET BRB-REBERE
o SR ARIMKBRERME 2AF4
IBH o

ARREUFFRATESOREN L
MR R 5 - BRIRE BB LW
RARTE - AR RRHARFZ
B~ A B D BUCR (BB A ) o
TR R SR & B BRI E
RIS AFRBENERKIN - FER L
HMXZZHARBERBRBPIR
HRZERZ SO BFEIGERETL

AAFEIESETERESRA
A (—H R FEELEEFTE80%E R
RAEFH20% - P E A ) 7
—ETLFE+ - EREEWE
BETHhE - MmN EERTE
EEZEEY) - #a3RE - LEE
04 L 3% 5% + 3 55 BE 5T 3 A
BRABFE TR -_ZEZEL+FEA+
—BABRACSE) eREME
(2007) (1h) £ 24605 & 56 B4
[2007] £ 1625% T {h¥RE - AH{H 4
BEAARYS,358,2007T © AT
HREE EBKRIERBT GRS
HBEREE -

ARARLEBHZ IR -FF
tE+ - ATRELAE -

ARAREFERBUEERR L
TR EBENEFTNEER
B AR REBRFUERN
HRARMBRRMEEATARE
Hy o

Connected Transactions (continued)

)

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors), the above transactions were carried
out in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business
and were entered into on normal commercial terms and the
transactions were fair and reasonable to the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the
above connected transactions and are of the opinion that the
transactions are in the ordinary course of business of the
Group and carried out in accordance with the terms of
agreements governing these transactions. However, some
connected transactions between the Company/its subsidiaries
and the minority shareholders of the Company (connected
persons) were not in compliance with the independent
shareholders approval requirement and disclosure
requirement according to the Listing Rules.

On 10 December 2007, the Company and Shandong Zibo
XinCat Pharmaceutical Company Limited (a PRC limited
company of which 80% of its interests is held by SXPGC and
20% held by the Company) (“XinCat”) entered into the transfer
agreement in relation to the acquisition of XinCat’'s assets.
The asset acquired in the transaction is a workshop and the
associated land use rights. The asset was valued by Shandong
Lusheng Land & Real Estate Assessment and Consultation
Company Limited at approximately RMB3,358,200 and the
valuation report of (Zibo) Lusheng Land & Real Estate (2007)
(Gu) No 2460 and Zifang Pinggu (2007) No 162 were issued
on 9 November 2007. The asset price was based on the
value stated in the valuation report.

In relation to the above connected transaction, the Company
issued an announcement on 10 December 2007.

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors), the above connected transaction
was a normal asset acquisition, and was entered into on
normal commercial terms and the transaction was fair and
reasonable to the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

®3)

(4)

©)

On 22nd January 2007, the Company entered into an
agreement with a fellow subsidiary of the Company, Shandong
Xinhua Industry & Trade Company Limited (“Xinhua Industry
& Trade Company”) in relation to the acquisition of 144,000
shares of Bank of Communications for a total consideration
of RMB648,000, based on a price of RMB4.5 per share. The
above connected transaction was an one-off transaction and
a de minimis transaction. Therefore, no announcement was
required.

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors), the above connected transaction
was a normal asset acquisition, and was entered into on
normal commercial terms and the transaction was fair and
reasonable to the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

On 2 April 2007, the Company entered into an agreement
with a fellow subsidiary of the Company, Shandong Zibo
XinCat to rent a property from XinCat for one year. The rental
for one year was RMB952,000. The above connected
transaction was an one-off transaction and a de minimis
transaction. Therefore, no announcement was required.

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors), the above connected transaction
was entered into on normal commercial terms and the
transaction was fair and reasonable to the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

On 10 January 2007, the Company entered into an agreement
with SXPGC to rent a property from SXPGC for one year.
The rental for one year was RMB500,000. The above
connected transaction was an one-off transaction and a de
minimis transaction. Therefore, no announcement was
required.

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors), the above connected transaction
was entered into on normal commercial terms and the
transaction was fair and reasonable to the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(6)

(7

On 1 March 2007, a subsidiary of the Company entered into
an agreement with Xinhua Industry & Trade Company to rent
a property from Xinhua Industry and Trade Company for one
year. The rental for one year was RMB370,000. The above
connected transaction was an one-off transaction and a de
minimis transaction. Therefore, no announcement was
required.

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors), the above connected transaction
was entered into on normal commercial terms and the
transaction was fair and reasonable to the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

On 31 August 2007, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into a design agreement with Shandong Zibo Xinhua-
Chemferm Pharmaceutical Company Limited. The design
fee was RMB10,000. The above connected transaction was
an one-off transaction and a de minimis transaction.
Therefore, no announcement was required.

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors), the above connected transaction
was entered into on normal commercial terms and the
transaction was fair and reasonable to the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

Continuing Connected Transactions

1.

Continuing connected transactions between the Company
and SXPGC

On 7 December 1996, the Company entered into a trademark
licence agreement for the exclusive use of the trademark
"Xinhua" by the Company for its existing and future products
in and outside the PRC on an ongoing basis. The consideration
in 2007 was RMB1,100,000.

On 23 October 2006, the Company and SXPGC entered into
an agreement in relation to the sale and purchase of chemical
raw materials and sundry items (including but not limited to
water, electricity, steam and such other items for the
production of pharmaceutical products) and the provisions of
services to and from SXPGC on an on-going basis for a term
from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2009 subject to
extension. The consideration in 2007 was RMB110,766,000.



FEEBFAEARFEBITRAR
B1H35.70% © BN AKRQN B &AMK
HoMEEEARNQARNBE A
T MHEZENRSBRITER
B2 5 o mREANE DR (BT
L BRAN) #B3B2.5% 0 HEER(E
2835 10,000,000/8 8 » #hZET
SBET EMRVNEVUVAZEEBES
W] N SR ERERR
E o ANTEIDH20065 BT ity
BIRE - WH20065E107 243 %% H

D -

Tl ERET SN _EENEE
488 R B AN A B]1 20054 6 A 29H
BITHIRE RS FTIERNFE LR
AFR#144,440,0007T ° B ATEREE
R RIS ER ERIEE KKHBB
TEHA - 20074 X A2 5B #82006F 12
A29B8#1THRE ARSI ERNF
€ _EBR AR #¥96,320,0007T °

ARAEEXEFANSEEAR (T8
MEBEIFR]) MR ERER S

20074 + N2 A A F = BBR 5t
MEBEM RS (R EMEEA R
) FREBEETRS - 2007FF
MR E A AR 45,619,0007T °
RAR R WIS EF F = A5
0.1%[% %  FEFFN SR AR
RIMBAR - BN SEEENER
MEzEBRRE - B Lt iiEZ
BAEBEERKARNQR ZBEA
T o tMREZHNRSERIFER
BRI G e

MEBNSEANSERZEOR

20074 - FHEFFSHEREF
SEEEEMES 0 2007FE R
REBEA AR 111,902,000 ° &0 F
N E2BFTIL  FEB M S AT
WEAR r MEfsBHBRANES
AMEZETBRE - HEFSEE A
FEGANESzHEEAL  BE2HE
MNZZBRIFEBERS

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

SXPGC held 35.70% of the total issued share capital of the
Company and was the largest shareholder of the Company.
SXPGC was a connected person of the Company and
therefore the transactions between them constituted
continuing connected transactions. As all the percentage
ratios (other than the profits ratio) exceeded 2.5%, the
continuing connected transactions are subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders' approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
company complied with all the said requirements in 2006 and
an announcement was issued on 24 October 2006.

The aggregate amount of the above continuing connected
transactions for the year 2006 did not exceed the annual cap
of RMB144,440,000 approved by the extraordinary general
meeting held on 29 June 2005. The aggregate amount of the
above transactions for the year 2007 exceeded the annual
cap of RMB96,320,000 approved by the extraordinary general
meeting held on 29 December 2006 due to an unexpected
increase in the market prices of raw materials.

Continuing connected transactions between the Company
and Perrigo International Inc (“Perrigo International”)

The Company entered into transactions with Perrigo
International for the purpose of selling an active
pharmaceutical ingredient commonly known as “ibuprofen
U.S.P” etc. to Perrigo International in 2007. The total
consideration in the year 2007 was RMB45,619,000. Xinhua
Perrigo became a subsidiary of the Company after the
Company acquired an additional 0.1% equity interest in
Xinhua Perrigo. As Perrigo International was a substantial
shareholder of Xinhua Perrigo. Perrigo International became
a connected person of the Company after the Company’s
acquisition. The transactions between them therefore
constituted continuing connected transactions.

Continuing connected transactions between Xinhua Perrigo
and Perrigo International

Xinhua Perrigo sold, on a ongoing basis, ibuprofen to Perrigo
International in 2007. The total consideration in 2007 was
RMB111,902,000. As discussed in paragraph 2 above, Xinhua
Perrigo was a subsidiary of the Company and Perrigo
International was a substantial shareholder of Xinhua Perrigo.
Therefore, Perrigo International was a connected person of
Xinhua Perrigo and the transactions between them constituted
continuing connected transactions.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

4.

Continuing connected transactions between Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Export and Import Company Limited (“XPEI")
and Perrigo International

XPEI sold on, an ongoing basis, chemical raw materials to
Perrigo International in 2007. The total consideration in 2007
was RMB 9,752,000. XPEI was a subsidiary of the Company
and Perrigo International was a connected person of XPEI.
Therefore, the transactions between them constituted
continuing connected transactions.

Continuing connected transactions between the Company
and Eastwest United Group (“Eastwest United”)

The Company sold, on an ongoing basis, pharmaceuticals
products to Eastwest United. The total consideration for 2007
was RMB5,276,000. Eastwest United was a substantial
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company, Zibo Xinhua
Eastwest Pharmaceuticals Company Limited. Therefore,
Eastwest United was a connected person of the Company
and the transactions between them constituted continuing
connected transactions.

Continuing connected transactions between Shandong Dadi
Xinhua Chemical & Industrial Company Limited (“Dadi
Xinhua”) and Shandong Dadi Stalinisation Group Limited
(“Dadi Stalinisation”)

Dadi Xinhua, on an ongoing basis, purchased chemical raw
materials from Dadi Stalinisation in 2007. The total consideration
in 2007 was RMB226,000. Dadi Xinhua was a subsidiary of the
Company and Dadi Stalinisation was a substantial shareholder
of Dadi Xinhua. Therefore, Dadi Stalinisation was a connected
person of Dadi Xinhua and the transactions between them
constituted continuing connected transactions.

Continuing connected transactions between Weifang Wanyuan
Chemical Company Limited (“Weifang Wanyuan”) and Dadi
Stalinisation

Weifang Wanyuan sold, on an ongoing basis, pharmaceutical
products to Dadi Stalinisation in 2007. The total consideration
in the year 2007 was RMB3,440,000. Weifang Wanyuan also
purchased, on an ongoing basis, chemical raw materials
from Dadi Stalinisation in the same year. The total
consideration in 2007 was RMB2,711,000.

Weifang Wanyuan was a subsidiary of the Company and
Dadi Stalinisation was a substantial shareholder of Weifang
Wanyuan. Therefore, Dadi Stalinisation was a connected
person of Weifang Wanyuan and the transactions between
them constituted continuing connected transactions.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors), the above continuing connected transactions
were carried out in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s
business and were entered into on normal commercial terms and
the transactions were fair and reasonable to the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

As the percentage ratios (other than profits ratio) of the continuing
connected transactions referred to in paragraph 2, 3 and 4 above,
in aggregate, exceeds 2.5% and the annual consideration was more
than HK$10,000,000, the transactions were subject to independent
shareholders approval, and to the reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
did not comply with the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements and announcement requirements in 2007 but the
Company will comply with all the said requirements in 2008.

As the percentage ratios (other than profits ratio), of the continuing
connected transactions referred to in paragraph 5 above, were more
than 0.1% but less than 2.5%, the transactions were exempted from
independent shareholders’ approval in accordance with Rule 14A.
34 of the Listing Rules and were only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company did not comply with the announcement requirement
in 2007 and it will comply with the said requirement in 2008.

As the percentage ratios (other than profits ratio), of the continuing
connected transactions referred to in paragraph 6 and 7 above, in
aggregate, were more than 0.1% but less than 2.5%, the transactions
were exempted from independent shareholders’ approval in
accordance with Rule 14A. 34 of the Listing Rules and were only
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company did not comply with
the announcement requirement in 2007 but it will comply with the
said requirements in 2008.

The Company has reported to the Exchange on a voluntary basis
in relation to exceeding the 2007 annual cap and non-compliance
of the above continuing connected transactions.

The disclosed related party transactions with associates in the
auditors’ report were not continuing connected transactions or
connected transactions defined by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
All the transactions mentioned in this section were connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions defined by Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

The Company’s auditors have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group with SXPGC and SXPGC's
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2007, and confirmed
to the Board that:

1. the continuing connected transactions during the year ended
31 December 2007 have received the approval of the Board;

2. the continuing connected transactions were in accordance
with the pricing policies as stated in the relevant agreement
governing such transactions;

3. the continuing connected transactions were entered into in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
governing such transactions;

4. the annual aggregate amount of the continuing connected
transactions amounted to RMB111,866,000 have exceeded
the annual cap amount of RMB 96,320,000 for the financial
year ended 31 December 2007.

Auditors

The accounts of the Company and the Group for the year 2007
prepared in accordance with HKGAAP and PRC accounting
standards have been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
and ShineWing, Certified Public Accountant, PRC respectively.

The Company intends to re-appoint SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
and ShineWing as international auditors and PRC auditors of the
Company respectively for the year 2008 at the annual general
meeting for the year 2007 to be held in 2008.

Others

Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen has resigned as an independent
non-executive director and an Audit Committee member of the
Company with effect from 16 April 2008. The reason for his
resignation is that his law firm’s internal policy does not allow a
partner to be a director of a listed company. Mr. Mok has confirmed
that he has no disagreement with the Board and that there are no
matters relating to his resignation that need to be brought to the
attention of shareholders of the Company. An announcement of Mr.
Mok’s resignation was issued on 16 April 2008.

By order of the Board
Guo Qin
Chairman

Zibo, Shandong, PRC
18 April 2008
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To All Shareholders,

In 2007, all the members of the supervisory committee of the
Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) actively performed their
tasks in protecting the interests of the Company and its shareholders
in accordance with the requirements of the Company Law of the
PRC, the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) and the relevant PRC laws and regulations. The
Supervisory Committee also performed the various duties assigned
to it by the Articles of Association in an active, diligent and faithful
manner.

The Supervisory Committee convened five meetings in 2007:

The first meeting was convened at the Company'’s registered office
on 23 March 2007, in which the following resolutions were passed:

(1) To approve the report of the Supervisory Committee for the
year 2006;

(2) To approve the annual report and announcement of results
for the year 2006;

3) To approve the audited accounts of the Company for the year
2006;

(4) To approve the resolution in respect of the provisions for
diminution in value of assets and treatment of related losses.
In the opinion of the Supervisory Committee, the procedures
taken to pass the said resolution were lawful and were
adequately evidenced,;

(5) To approve the use of proceeds raised from the issue of A
shares and connected transactions in 2006;

(6) To approve the proposal in respect of the estimate of
continuing connected transactions for the year 2007;

The second meeting was convened at the Company’s Registered
office on 26 April 2007 to approve the first quarterly report and
financial report of 2007 of the Company and changes in significant
accounting policies.

The third meeting was convened at the Company's Registered
office on 6 August 2007 to approve the 2007 interim report of the
Company, and the connected transactions for the first half of 2007.
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The fourth meeting was convened by way of written resolution on
25 October 2007 to approve the third quarter report and financial
report of 2007 of the Company and the rectification report of
corporate governance.

The fifth meeting was convened by way of written resolution on 6
December 2007 to approve the proposed Ibuprofen technological
transformation projects and the proposed connected transaction of
acquisition of assets of Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical
Company Limited.

Members of the Supervisory Committee also attended the board
meetings of the Company and exercised effective supervision as to
whether business decisions made by the Board of Directors were
in compliance with the laws and regulations of the PRC and the
Articles of Association, and in line with the development of the
Company and also in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. The Supervisory Committee considered that the Board
of Directors exercised its powers in accordance with the law.

In the opinion of the Supervisory Committee, the actual use of the
proceeds from the issue of new shares was in compliance with the
undertakings made by the Company and all the connected
transactions that took place during the year were fair and reasonable.

The Supervisory Committee has carried out its duties diligently. The
Supervisory Committee has carefully reviewed the accounts and
the Report of the Directors to be submitted by the Board of Directors
to the 2007 Annual General Meeting and has not found anything
contained therein to be questionable. In the opinion of the Supervisory
Committee, the financial report for the year 2007 reflects the true
financial position and results of the Company.

The Company was not involved in any significant litigation during
the year.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Yu Gongfu
Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Zibo, Shandong, PRC
18 April 2008
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The Group was not involved in any material litigation or
arbitration and no material litigation or arbitration is pending
or threatened or was made against the Group during the
reporting period.

During the reporting period, there were no material
acquisitions and sales of assets, nor any material acquisitions
and mergers.

In the reporting period, there was no trust, subcontract or
lease of assets between the Company and other companies.

For the year ended 31st December 2007, the Company
provided financial guarantees to a bank for the benefits of
an independent third party in relation to bills of exchange
amounting to RMB14,000,000 and the bills of exchange
would be issued to a subsidiary of the Company. The Company
was only liable for the difference between the face value of
the bills of exchange issued by the bank and the amount on
the bills of lading if the bills of exchange were overdue. As
at 31st December 2007, bills of exchange amounting to
RMB7,000,000 were issued by the bank and bills of lading
amounting to RMB6,500,000 were issued.

During the reporting period of the annual report, except for
the above guarantee, there was no other material guarantee
provided by the Company nor had any material guarantee
provided by the Company not been fully performed.

The Company did not appoint any custodian for the
management of funds.

None of the Company, the Directors and the Senior Officers
has been penalised by any PRC authorities during the year
ended 31 December 2007.

After the ban of share sales be lifted to a limit of 25% by the
Company in Shenzhen Branch of China Security Clearing
Centre, the wife of Mr. Gao Qinggang, a supervisor of the
Company, sold 500 shares of the Company in an account
dominated by Mr. Gao on 23 May 2007, and bought 500
shares of the Company in the same account on 24 May 2007.
The transactions were breach of the Law of Security and the
related rules. Pursuant to certain rules, the Company asked
Mr. Gao to turn over the earning of RMB24.5 arising from the
transactions and received on 29 May 2007.
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10.

11.

The Company and its shareholders, holding more than 5%
of shares of the Company, have disclosed undertakings
designated by the CSRC:

(1) SXPGC has undertaken between the 36th month and
48th month since the listing of the non-tradable shares
of the Company that it shall not sell any of its A shares
of the Company on the SZSE at a price less than
RMB4.8 per share, (such price will be on an ex-rights
basis if there is any declaration of dividends, bonus
issues or capitalisation of capital reserve during the
period between the day of implementation of the
revised share reform of the Company and sale of the
shares by SXPGC) being 150% of the average of the
closing prices of the listed A shares as quoted on the
SZSE in the thirty (30) trading days prior to the
issuance date of the relevant notice of the
shareholders' meeting. Should SXPGC breach any of
the provisions of this undertaking in the sale of its
shares, the proceeds resulting from such sale shall be
owned by the Company.

(2) SXPGC guaranteed not to use any funds of the
Company for non-business reasons starting from 1
January 2006.

The related party transactions are as set out in the Note 9
to the Accounts prepared in accordance with PRC accounting
standards.

During the reporting period, the Company did not provide
funds to the connected parties, and the connected parties
did not provide funds to the Company.

Auditors

The auditors of the Company and respective remuneration
of auditors are set out in the section headed “Auditors’
remuneration” disclosed in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT".
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EHRE Abbreviated investment  equity interest of end of Profit/loss equity of
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601328 @B 14,225 0.02% 116,713 — 87,114
BANKCOMM
601601 PEAR 7,000 0.07% 247,250 - 204,213
China Pacific Insurance
CH 21,225 363,963 - 291,327
Total
WEHESFAT - BR - RS E 13. Information of reception research, communication and
EIREDE interview
BEANIERBTRRHENEH
BHHH B EHHR EFHg Main content of the discussion

Reception time

Reception location

Reception method

Reception objects

and the information provided

NGz
Office address

of the Company
NAER
Office address

of the Company
RAER
Office address

of the Company

2007614197
19 January 2007

20073 /78
7 March 2007

20073 798
9 March 2007

DR
Office address
of the Company
DA
Office address
of the Company

20079 A117
11 September 2007

2007125268
26 December 2007

BT
Field study

B A
Field study

-
Field study

B
Field study

Eitiam
Field study

EREFEREMAAWEER

Researchers of Xintai Securities
Company Limited

ZENRESERAAWEER

Researchers of ABN AMRO TEDA
Fund Management Company Limited

HEEESRERARSHAR

Researchers of China International
Capital Corporation Limited

RILEFHRE
Researchers of Changjiang Securities

RAEFMAR
Researchers of Dongfang Securities

TRAREELERER
Understand the production and
operation of the Company

TRAREERERA
Understand the production and
operation of the Company

TRAREEREREN BRRS

Understand the production,
operation and development
planning of the Company

TERRRERAR

Understand the development
prospects of the Company

TRRAEHER

Understand the marketing
information of the Company
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED
(a joint stock limited company established in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) set out on pages
88 to 165, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
31st December 2007, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December
2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Wa Kei

Practising Certificate Number: P03427

Hong Kong
18 April 2008
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FEeBE&Ea&Fx
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(RIEE B 2B RN 2 B BRI H)
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BHE-_FTE+HFL -_A=1+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

-1 -4 4.2 ZTTRF
2007 2006
ftat ARETFT ARKETFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
= Turnover 7 1,865,568 1,685,367
$HE KA Cost of sales (1,570,246) (1,381,010)
EH| Gross profit 295,322 304,357
HEZEBWA Other operating income 7 49,736 23,478
HEER Selling expenses (114,005) (132,838)
EIRER Administrative expenses (169,096) (142,382)
HEXBEHR Other operating expenses (8,041) (1,708)
FE(RES & DRI R Share of results of associates (4,369) (699)
Y% E A Finance costs 8 (12,183) (20,475)
B B B0 s A Profit before taxation 37,364 29,733
Frs i e () Income tax credit (expense) 9 400 (7,784)
REE i K Profit for the year 10 37,764 21,949
Hep Attributable to:

R AR R PR G F Equity holders of the Company 31,818 22,761
DR RE R Minority interests 5,946 (812)
37,764 21,949

) Dividends 11
— B AR S — Proposed final 13,719 9,146
FRERE M Earnings per share - basic 12 AE%RMB0.070t AR%RMB0.0507T
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HREERERRSE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(RIEE HBIRD.2 8 5 RAIRH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
K-EELF+=A=+—A

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2007

—ETtE ZTERF
2007 2006
iz ARFIT ARETF T
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’'000
FEREEE Non-current assets
5300 Technical know-how 16 1,922 3,052
M - BER&E Property, plant and equipment 17 857,040 779,316
TEETR Construction in progress 18 71,180 85,922
TR REZ Prepaid lease payments
B HEZRE on land use rights 19 91,266 86,404
N Al RS Interests in associates 20 23,748 42,580
AREEZKE Available-for-sale investments 22 367,162 23,777
BEFENEE Deferred tax assets 34 2,157 —
1,414,475 1,021,051
wREEE Current assets
rE Inventories 23 286,041 224,356
JE W BE X & Trade and
H Y RYRIE other receivables 24 281,801 283,146
THFE A Prepaid lease payments on
B AEFE land use rights 19 2,577 2,419
M BB Amount due from immediate
NGB @ holding company 25 39,347 46,874
JRE W Bt 2 A Rl 3R0R Amounts due from associates 26 7,558 19,861
AfEE 2 RE Available-for-sale investments 22 — 117,000
JE W R & Tax recoverable 146 _
RITHEHER Pledged bank
RBEEFK deposits 27 12,425 29,401
TESMT A Derivative financial instruments 28 15,897 134
RITERRH AR Bank balances and cash 29 199,833 133,134
845,625 856,325
FIERHECEE Assets classified as held for sale 30 — 4,199
845,625 860,524
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRA 2 251 R A4 #)
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
R-FEZE+F+=—A=1+—H
AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2007

-1 -4 4.2 ZTTRF
2007 2006
ftat ARETFT ARKETFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
mEAER Current liabilities
e BR R K Trade and
Hy RN RIE other payables 31 269,807 266,347
JE 1Bt & A Rl KA Amount due to an associate 26 125 —
JER T ® Tax payable — 3,320
EIRIRE HRITER Unsecured short-term bank loans 32 206,819 235,234
476,751 504,901
ROEERH Net current assets 368,874 355,623
HEERTHAR Total assets less current liabilities 1,783,349 1,376,674
BXR &R Capital and reserves
%N Share capital 33 457,313 457,313
e Reserves 1,212,214 902,685
FOR AR B PR S Proposed final dividend 13,719 9,146
AARIREEG R Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company 1,683,246 1,369,144
DHBREERE Minority interests 50,793 3,343
HEs Total equity 1,734,039 1,372,487
FERBER Non-current liability
BREMEHERE Deferred tax liabilities 34 49,310 4,187
1,783,349 1,376,674
KR A RRMFESSEEF1656HER = The consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 165 were
ZENFHATNALESTSRERERER approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18th
- WHTINESRRES : April 2008 and are signed on its behalf by :
BT HLE Guo Qin Zhao Songguo
o EE Director Director
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e EDR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(IRIEE & L imRAN 2 S5 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

AFREER B
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
i3 ¥ 0 DB
E* BREE ARe  HEEE HEEE HTREAE ERRE  REEY  RERG @it REHR #it
Asset
Share Share Capital ~ Reserve revaluation Other Exchange  Retained  Dividend Minority
capital premium reserve funds reserve reserve reserve  earnings reserve Total interests Total

AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARBTT ARETT AREFT ARETR ARETT AR¥TT AREFT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(ztb) (ith) (i)
(Note b)  (Note b) (Note c)

R=Z2Zr5-A-R
At 1st January 2006 457,313 466,618 78,642 160,326 25,850 — 444 156,986 22,866 1,369,045 1,002 1,370,137

PER=ZETERERE
2005 final dividend paid — — — — — — — — (22,866)  (22,866) — (22,866)
BEBINEBELL

EXER
Exchange difference

arising on translation

of overseas operation — — — — — — 204 — — 204 60 264
RERHEMN
Profit for the year — — — — — — — 22,761
BERBET
Transfer from retained

earnings - — — 2,078 — — — (2,078) - — — -

22,761 (812) 21,949

AERERA N ER
Total recognised income
and expenses
for the year - - — 2,078 - — 204 20,683 (22,866) 99 (752) (653)

HWERARZDERR
LNV
Capital contribution by
minority shareholder
of a subsidiary — — — — — — — — — — 3,003 3,003
ZEEAERRAERE
Proposed final
2006 dividend — — = = — = = (9,146) 9,146 = — =

RZEERE
+-A=1+-H
At 31st December 2006 457,313 466,618 78,642 162,404 25,850 — 648 168,523 9,146 1,369,144 3,343 1,372,487
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

(IRIEE & L imRA 2 251 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

NEREER AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
B % 0 P8
23 BRE ARE  HEEE HEEF HTHE ERRE RERY  RERG #it  BRRHE2 @it
Asset
Share Share Capital ~ Reserve revaluation Other Exchange  Retained  Dividend Minority
capital premium reserve funds reserve reserve reserve  earnings reserve Total interests Total

AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETR ARBTT ARBTT AREFT ARETR ARETT ARBTT AREFT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(ith) (&b) (itc)
(Note b) ~ (Note b)  (Note c)

PERZEEARERE
2006 final dividend paid — — — — — — — — (9,146) (9,146)
BEBNEBEEL

X =
Exchange difference

arising on translation

of overseas operation — — — — — — 103 — — 103 31 134
MHRIHEZ RER

NREZY
Increase in fair value of

available-for-sale

investments — — — — — 342737 — — — 342,731
MEHE 2 REMSIH

NEEMETEE
Deferred tax liabilities

arising from

available-for-sale

investments — — — — — (51,410) — — — (51,410) — (51,410)
WEHB AR
Acquisition of subsidiaries — — — — — — — — — — 41,473 41,473
RERERN
Profit for the year — — - — — - — 31,818 - 31,818 5,946 37,764
BERBET
Transfer from

retained eamings - — - 1,972 — - — (1,972 - — —

(9,146)

342,731

AEEERA MR BE
Total recognised income
and expenses
for the year - - - 1,972 - 291,327 103 29,846 (9,146) 314,102 47,450 361,552

ZERLERRRHRE
Proposed final
2007 dividend — — — — — — — (13,719 13,719 — — -

At 31st December 2007 457,313 466,618 78,642 164,376 25850 291,327 751 184,650 13,719 1,683,246 50,793 1,734,039
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

Notes:

REH EERERRARBNR AIER([R A ()
5i2]) BRBEMNERATZRFDIK -

@) B REEE

) RERT B F10% T EERBAE
& BEERHOABCEEAME
ANEI50% ¢ A LA

(3) RERBEBRIERAS BB ZEER

(4) IRFE S T RR

REEEERBHATRE EE AR S
ZERERERT RGP EAIRS 2 H
BUAE IR B ZBR B iR M E -

EARRTES R B (b)

EAREETEREAATHEESLENAES
P& A7 I 5 PR /A B8 3 22 AT B o2 (B B 4T AR O AR
AER - RIVEBERASBTRERAES - I
ENBRBETREER - RETEEWER - &
AR Rt i@ B iR R e AR AR o

HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”), profit after
taxation shall be appropriated in the following order :

(1)
(@)

(3

4

make up accumulated losses;

transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the statutory surplus
reserve. When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital, such transfers need not be made;

transfer to the discretionary surplus reserve an amount approved by
the shareholders in general meetings; and

distribute dividends to shareholders.
The amount transferred to the statutory surplus reserve shall be

based on the profit after taxation in the statutory accounts prepared
in accordance with the PRC accounting standards.

Capital reserve and share premium account

Capital reserve comprises mainly surplus between the appraised value of
assets and value of shares issued when the Company was converted from
a state-owned enterprise to a joint stock limited company. Share premium
account arose from issues of shares net of issuing expenses. According to
the relevant regulations in the PRC, capital reserve and share premium
account can only be used to increase share capital.

HEES (c) Reserve funds

EERR EE EERER

N LEe LEe #at
Statutory

Statutory public Discretionary

surplus welfare surplus
reserve reserve reserve Total

(7)) (7 (i) (7 (i)

(note (i) (note (ii)) (note (iii))
ARBFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R=ZZZ E—R—A At 1st January 2006 68,937 29,843 61,546 160,326
ERRBEF Transfer from retained earnings 2,078 = = 2,078
&% (i i) Transfer (Note i) 29,843 (29,843) — —
RZBEAF+ZA=1—H At 31st December 2006 100,858 — 61,546 162,404
EERS:il Transfer from retained earnings 1,972 — — 1,972
RZZZ+F+-A=1—H At 31st December 2007 102,830 — 61,546 164,376
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRA 2 251 R A4 #)
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

Hiax - ()

() HEES (B

Notes: (continued)

Reserve funds (continued)

(i) EEBBAES (i) Statutory surplus reserve
REBETIRRPBUEERE 2BREE The Group is required in each year to transfer 10% of the profit after
BN 10%EEERBATES - BE taxation as reported in the statutory accounts prepared in accordance
EBBRABESEEZMELRMN50% with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve
B - ATATNEBRER - ZAES AR until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share capital. This
TR SRS AR o Br T BB reserve can be used to make up any losses incurred or to increase
BN EEREEAERE - #AET share capital. Except for the reduction of losses incurred, any other
FEAR R 7 AN /9 259% © usage should not result in this reserve balance falling below 25%

of the registered capital.

(ii) Nk (i) Statutory public welfare reserve
RZZBTF-A—BZA ~&E Prior to 1st January 2006, the Group was required in each year to
BRI A EDAERR B 2 BRBH& SR transfer 5% to 10% of the profit after taxation as reported in the
5%Z 10N EERAmE - =TT statutory accounts prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
NE—A—HE  REBEREARKERN standards to the statutory public welfare reserve. Starting from 1st
BICR REMERTEME—EE—E~ January 2006, the Group was not required to transfer any profit after
T RBCARR AEND ET taxation to statutory public welfare reserve in accordance with the
BRIAEARS - NEBY—_TT amendment on section 167, Chapter one in the PRC Companies
NFE—A—BRVEERm e MR B Ordinance. Therefore, the Group transferred the balances of the
RZBEEEERHABEER - statutory public welfare reserve as at 1st January 2006 to the statutory

surplus reserve during the year ended 31st December 2006.
(iii) EERBRDES (iii) Discretionary surplus reserve

EBBHRAESWRE G FIH R
WEERRETEA » A B IERmAE
BRI AN - BIREER(E AL
BRERAGRE BB © (EERERE
SMALBRRERZBB ©

The discretionary surplus reserve can be set up by means of
appropriation from the retained earnings or transfer from statutory
public welfare reserve. Subject to approval by shareholders in general
meetings, the reserve can be used to reduce any losses incurred
and to increase share capital. Any transfers to the reserve also
require the approval of shareholders in general meetings.
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freaBlEeERESR
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(IRIEE & L imRAN 2 S5 R A4 #)
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

—ZEtE —ETRF
2007 2006
AR¥TFT ARKTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RERE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B %% Al i ) Profit before taxation 37,364 29,733
R Adjustments for:
T AR AR Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

E R on land use rights 2,461 2,425
& W BR 3R Allowance for bad and

RZEREE doubtful debts of trade receivables 6,254 12,131
H e ek Allowance for bad and

EREZERER doubtful debts of other receivables 6,646 2,558
Bl 8 Amortisation of technical know-how 1,130 1,130
RITHI BUA Bank interest income (2,311) (4,411)
e Depreciation 103,710 99,661
AEEEZRE Dividend income from

Z IR B A an available-for-sale investment (914) (141)
N%ER Finance costs 12,183 20,475
HEHERFHE Gain on disposal of assets

2 EBENE classified as held for sale (6,401) —
TESMIA Increase in fair value of

RAEE derivative financial instruments (15,763) (50)
AfEEz Interest income from

REMBWA an available-for-sale investment (1,647) (6,588)
NG Interest income from

HMEWA loan to an associate — (270)
B A R EE Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary 1,040 —
HEDE - Loss (gain) on

BV disposal of property,

e () plant and equipment 4,360 (2,289)
FEG 52 A R E Share of results of associates 4,369 699
FEMR Allowance for inventories 3,026 4,630
2EECEBA Operating cash flow before

ZRERERE movements in working capital 155,507 159,693
FE (g R (Increase) decrease in inventories (37,767) 45,779
EYERR R EE Decrease in trade

JE SR IBRR A and other receivables 5,038 50,808
e B 2 Decrease in amount due from

ARIFIBER D immediate holding company 7,527 2,414
e Bt & A A Decrease (increase) in amounts

IR A (42 0) due from associates 5,032 (12,386)
ENE Y Decrease in trade

HEEARERD and other payables (29,885) (153,633)
FEB & A A Increase (decrease) in amount

RIEIL N OB A) due to an associate 125 (145)
REELEZRS Cash generated from operations 105,577 92,530
BRREMEH PRC income tax paid (11,510) (8,200)

BERBREE NET CASH FROM
ZHE&BH OPERATING ACTIVITIES 94,067 84,330
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRA 2 251 R A4 #)
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

—ETLEE —ETRF
2007 2006
ik ARFT ARETF T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BEXH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
SR ERZIRENRIE Payment for construction in progress (51,694) (41,156)
BAME - Purchase of property,

B KR plant and equipment (60,650) (31,069)
HE B = AR Investments in associates (17,619) (13,000)
T R 2 TR Increase in prepaid lease payments

6 & FRIEE hN on land use rights (7,481) —
BAATHLERE Purchase of available-for-sale investments (648) —
We[el A] it & 2 Repayment from

& FRIA available-for-sale investment 117,000 —
HRAT A L E SR Decrease in pledged

REFESTFTORD bank deposits 16,976 35,748
HEIERFL & Proceeds from disposal of

BEFTBRK assets classified as held for sale 10,600 —
Wi IR VEI R Acquisition / deemed acquisition

B B8 X J) FT 15 F00E of subsidiaries 36 5,444 —
HEWHE - BER Proceeds from disposal of property,

F A PT1S 5KI8 plant and equipment 12,545 8,624
B UREERTT I B Bank interest received 2,311 4,411
B U ER AT 4 & Interest income from

®E 2 FBHWA an available-for-sale investment 1,647 5,040
B U ER AT Dividend income from

£EZBRERA an available-for-sale investment 914 141
B U ER B & A A Interest income received

B R B A from loan to an associate = 270

BREXBRE (8) NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
ZH&PH INVESTING ACTIVITIES 29,345 (30,991)

MEXRY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

ERRTER Repayment of bank loans (327,652) (506,746)

ERFLE Interest paid (12,183) (20,475)

AR E Dividends paid (9,146) (17,040)

EEVHREFRIA Repayment to a minority shareholder (6,969) —

FILRITER New bank loan raised 299,237 323,011

LHRREE Investments from a minority shareholder — 3,003
MEER NET CASH USED IN

RSB FINANCING ACTIVITIES (56,713) (218,247)
ReRA&FRY NET INCREASE (DECREASE)

B (GRD) BE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 66,699 (164,908)
FMZHER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Be&FEY AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 133,134 298,042
FRZBEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ReSEY AT THE END OF THE YEAR,

FEER1TIF R represented by bank balances

KIR ERR and cash 199,833 133,134
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

—RE#H

ARBARRPEARKME ([H
B])EM BN ERQE - NAF
ZBROR—NANRFE+_AEERE
BMARSMARAR ([BRA]) £
M EARRIE - AN EFEATER
N HFES -

ARREERREBERBERAT
M EBEEBEREEAF DA
RARRZREERN TR EEE
AT MERQER AP EEMK
VYHBEEBEREMERR °

ZAYNCIESS 5 9 WS E S $auk
2B [A R 8z | — 6

REAMBBRRUARE (AR
%) 25 ARETREARTEZY
REIEEW o

AAFRENBAT((£E) S
HERE  BERHELBER
BWE L IRETES -

RRAMITRIEBITHES
MEREEN((FEME
wmEHER])

RAFE  AEEFHFXXABHESE
GEtAE (BRG] #
Btz FER - MEF kR (ET X
BB EEMBWSER]) - %
FRANBFAR _TZLF—HA—H
HARFRIEZ 2T HIMA -

HE—TTENGFF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2006

GENERAL

The Company is a joint stock limited company established
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with limited
liability. The shares of the Company are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in
December 1996 and listed its A shares at Shenzhen Stock
Exchange in July 1997.

The directors of the Company regard Hualu Holdings, a
state-owned limited liability company established in the PRC,
as being the ultimate holding company and Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited (“SXPGC”), a wholly
state-owned limited liability company established in the PRC,
as being the immediate holding company.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the company
information to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the development, production and sales of bulk
pharmaceuticals, preparations, chemical products and other
products.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new standard, amendment and interpretations
(“new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) which are effective for Group’s
financial year beginning 1st January 2007.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

2. BAFIIREEITINEE 2.
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BREGHERELR (BFIX)

Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”)
1 (Amendment)

BEMBREERETR

HKFRS 7
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HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation (“INT”) 7

B4 (AR BRERELZEE) —REF8R
HK(IFRIC)-INT 8
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HK(IFRIC)-INT 9
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RAMHEEM B RS ENE NS
FERAE G FE 2 EE RS &
ENNFTALESATE - RILBA
fEH BT R -

AEBEYEREFEATIIERME
REBMZFHER EF] R -
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HKAS 1 (Revised)

BEGTERE235% (KB

HKAS 23 (Revised)

BR G ERIE275% (KIEFT)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

BRI BREERE 25 (BRI A)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
BRI B REERNE IR (KEET)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

BN B REERFE85

HKFRS 8

R (BRMBREREZES) —2BEL1LHR
HK(IFRIC)-INT 11

R (ARG REREZES) —2BF125
HK(IFRIC)-INT 12

R (ARMBEREHELZES) —2BF135%
HK(IFRIC)-INT 13

R (AR EREHEZES) —R2BF145

HK(IFRIC)-INT 14
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

BEABE

Capital Disclosures

ERMIA — KE

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

REEEGFTENF 205 [BUEBERREES 2 M BHE]
RAESE

Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

BEMBHREERIE2R 2 6

Scope of HKFRS 2

NEMTETAEZ &R

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

B SR OB E

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on
how the results and financial position for the current or prior
accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendment or interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective.

B HRER 255!

Presentation of Financial Statements®

EL N

Borrowing Costs!?

fRE MBS

Consolidated and Separate Consolidated Financial Statements®

PARR A7 32 A O FRIE — B3 BB 1k 1 I UK

Share-based Payment - Vesting Conditions and Cancellations*

RIEE Bt

Business Conbinations®

R B

Operating Segments?*

BEEMBREEAES  SERBEFRHRZH?

HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions?

RIS R 7T A8 & B

Service Concession Arrangements®

B AHE &N

Customer Loyalty Programmes*

BAGFERFLSR — R ERBMNEE -
REESERKNEBEERNRHP

HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction®
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(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
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HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these standards, amendment or interpretations will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2009.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March 2007.

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2008.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2008.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2009.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for property, plant and
equipment and certain financial instruments, which are
measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
(including special purpose entities) controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities .

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up
to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets
consist of the amount of those interests at the date
of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Losses applicable to the minority in
excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment
to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus
any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” are recognised at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree
is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the
net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are carried
in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted
for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of
the net assets of the associates, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. An additional share of
losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of
the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses
below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the consolidated income statement
when the asset is derecognised.

Technical know-how

Expenditure on technical know-how acquired is
capitalised and amortised using straight-line method
over their useful lives, but not exceeding 20 years.
Technical know-how is not revaluated as there is no
active market for these assets.

Research and development expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the year in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised
on a straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried
at cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.




3.

FEMEEREREMFE o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

FESFHEE &
() W% BERZM

AREERRERERIE
g RATITHRERERMNM
EAEMEEY BRERELE
N EERAEERGER EUNU
HEEHesm (EEEHARN
RAEBE) BEERRELERN
2T E R RFHREEKLE
RIEREESIER - BEGEEMR
SEHET  UEEEREAEE
BEEEFAAFERAAAE
EEENEEEEERNE
2o

X BEARBERES
ZAEMEBENET AE R
wmA - BREERRIBLE
BERER BN BHRA1R
SRPIRR o D E 2 Al
EREAAEmRP - M
HEHMIMEME M - BIZA
1B ANE R 2 B E R 2B
PEABBRERAN - AREE
ZEREER D E BB R Al
EfBRBEEZELFHEE
g (A K ZRAFIER
X HpHERERERE
ERHEREGMEETIEA
REHEFA °

YE - BB REEGRERT
FRON) 2 IR A At A E A
FHWF AETAFHEE5%A
HAAMBEEARE -

ERIREREERRRE
TREZLHERE -9
¥ BEL®RE  WEKAE
SR RFHRERBETIR -
PR B 3R RIS 3 R A Y
AR - BZBFEA - BE
R - ARFERER
sk 22 5 KR S BT A DA A %
FEEREMEERNFE
AL DR R - e -
BRI EREEE R
ZUE - BER&E AR
ZEFEEAFRERERIER
HEWMEREEZHRELET
HiE -

HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress), are stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at their revalued amount, being the fair value at
the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the
balance sheet date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is credited to the
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised as an expense, in which case the increase
is credited to the consolidated income statement to
the extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation
of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred
to retained earnings.

Depreciation is provided to write off the fair value of
items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of the 5% estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

Construction in progress includes land use rights and
buildings, plant and machinery in the course of
construction for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress
is classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is dereognised.

Land use rights

Payment for obtaining land use right is considered as
operating lease payment. Land use rights are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, amortisation is charged to
consolidated income statement over the period of the
right using the straight-line method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated balance sheet when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
the two categories, including loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of each category of financial assets are set
out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables,
amount due from immediate holding company, amounts
due from associates, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in equity is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured as cost less any identified impairment
losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition. (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence
of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

— default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
and other receivables and assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly
in equity. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by
a group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial
liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expenses is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amount due to an associate and unsecured
short-term bank loans are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derivatives financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivatives financial instruments such
as forward currency contracts to hedge its risks
associated with foreign currency fluctuations. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at the balance sheet date. Derivatives are carried
as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are taken directly to the consolidated income statement
for the year.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is
calculated by reference to current forward exchange
rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued
by the Group and not designated as at FVTPL is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the
financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 “Revenue”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

(h)

0

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. In addition,
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

(k)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on
a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the relevant lease terms.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

0

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case, such exchange differences are recognised in
equity in the consolidated financial statements.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component
of equity (the exchange reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

(n)

(0)

(P)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over
the periods necessary to match them with the related
costs. Grants related to depreciable assets are
presented as deferred income and are released to
income over the useful lives of the assets. Grants are
reported separately as “other operating income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Borrowing costs

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and
included in finance costs in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

P)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into
account of their estimated residual value. The determination
of the useful lives and residual value involve management’s
estimation. The Group assesses annually the useful life of
the property, plant and equipment and if the expectation
differs from the original estimate, such a difference may
impact the depreciation in the year and the estimate will be
changed in the future period.

Amortisation of technical know-how

Technical know-how are amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The determination of the
useful lives involve management’s estimation. The Group re-
assesses the useful life of the technical know-how and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such a difference
may impact the amortisation in the year and the estimate will
be changed in the future period.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjust credit limits based on payment history
and the customer’s current credit-worthiness, as determined
by the review of their current credit information. The Group
continuously monitors collections and payments from its
customers and maintains a provision for estimated credit
losses based upon its historical experience and any specific
customer collection issues that it has been identified. Credit
losses have historically been within the Group’s expectations
and the Group will continue to monitor the collections from
customers and maintain an appropriate level of estimated
credit losses.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at
each balance sheet date, and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use in production. The management estimates
the net realisable value for such finished goods based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-
product basis at each balance sheet date and makes
allowance for obsolete items.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stockholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 32, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the associated risks and take
appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure.
The overall strategy of the Group remained uncharged during
the year ended 31st December 2007 and 2006.
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6. MBIA 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
6a. MBEIANSE 6a. Categories of financial instruments
—E=LHF —ETRE
2007 2006
ABR¥FIT AR Fr
RMB’000 RMB’000
MBEEE Financial assets
B3R e AR R Loans and receivables
(BEHEe Rk (including cash and
ReFEW) cash equivalents) 519,529 492 541
AL EMBEE Available-for-sale financial assets 367,162 140,777
PTESRMT A Derivative financial instruments 15,897 134
MBAR Financial liabilities
R GHK AT E Financial liabilities measured
BB aE at amortised cost 437,025 501,581

6b. MBHERERBDREBE

AEENETENBTABRE
BEARBHERE  RITE
R FEUGRIE R B T R
B EREEZEBRARR
JE Bk & N RISR - IR ERTT
TFR R RITFR - B RRK
RETRMREEMAEE D
AR - REWBTANFE
BENARMEA o T XH
5| B F B %5 T AR R E
5 B a0 ] PR % 55 LB B9 B
R -EEEERRERZE
R - ARER K B o A R
REUVEE M55 ©
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6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
and debt investments, bank loans, trade and other
receivables, amount due from immediate holding
company, amounts due from associates, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances, trade and other payables
and amount due to an associate. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

As at 31st December 2007

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. In order to mitigate the foreign
currency risk, foreign currency forward contracts are
entered into in respect of highly probable foreign
currency forecast sales in accordance with the Group’s
risk management policies.

Certain trade receivables, bank balances and cash,
trade payables and bank loans of the Group are
denominated in a currency other than RMB.

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the
balance sheet date to currency risk arising from
transactions or recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the function
currency of the entity to which they relate.
—2ZEE+ZR=t+-H ZRERETZRA=T-H
As at 31st December 2006

BT ETFT ETFT BT £ AT

Euro United States  Hong Kong Euro United States ~ Hong Kong

Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars

(“EUR”)'000  (“USD”)'000  (“HKD")'000  (“‘EUR’)'000  (“USD’)'000  (*HKD")000

BE Assets 531 22,721 21 338 25,552 -
A& Liabilities 363 82 50,000 11 — 50,000

REBERKETQEIEAN
MR HI A 4 DR D AN &L
B o SNERHAA 4 WA ZH EA ¥
FIEE —B o fEERIIE T -
AEE BB BAIEHIRZ
EUHEERI L RBEH (A
FffzE28) °

The Group requires its group entity to use foreign
currency forward contracts to minimise the currency
exposures. The foreign currency forward contracts must
be in the same currency as the hedged item. On this
basis, the Group has entered into USD forward
contracts in relation to the highly probable USD forecast
sales (see Note 28 for details).
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6. MBIR#® 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6b. HMERKREEERRBE 6b. Financial risk management objectives and
(& policies (continued)
BEE ST Sensitivity analysis
REEFEFERIT - £ The Group is mainly exposed to the currencies of
KBTI - EUR, USD and HKD.
T&REFMVEBERAEHEES The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
PREZRF—BBERTAE a 5% increase and decrease in RMB against the
i X BIMNEH AR ER relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis
HI5%F) 7] B8 & 12 B B A BURK includes only outstanding foreign currency
€ o RRE D ITE BRI LA denominated monetary items and adjusts their
BEENRIHELIEE - translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
WS EE B FINEE R currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
5% B FHREAIME - IRE external loans where the denomination of the loan is
AMBEEBERET—KE in a currency other than the currency of the borrower.
BERHIMER - TRIEHERK A positive number below indicates an increase in
RARBHBMEBINEFE profit where RMB strengthen 5% against the relevant
5% S FEAIE N - AR currency. For a 5% weakening of RMB against the
M BTN R (E5%EF ¢ relevant currency, there would be an equal and
MENTEeEEENLE opposite impact on the profit, and the balances below
R-MTEREEEH - would be negative.
B E BT
EUR usD HKD
ZBBEE -—TTRNE  ZBBEE _—TTRF  ZEBEEE —TTNE
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ARBTLT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBFT AREFI
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'OO0 ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000
FEFE Profit or loss (90) (168) (8,292) (9,199) 2,340 2512
T2 Jm Bz Interest rate risk

REBRHEEBRITERRE
EFTTHFRITTRF
+—A=+—BIMEFE
EZAREFERR - (AR
MsE32B B EREB) -
RE [ B S B F = E R
e R BEEEHFER
REMER - WATEHAKE
HIREARR 2@ eZER
HKWMETHENITE -
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The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 32
for details of these borrowings) for the years ended
31st December 2007 and 2006. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary actions when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group was also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (see
note 32 for details of these borrowings) for the year
ended 31st December 2007 and 2006. It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests
S0 as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)
arising from the Group’s RMB borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. For
variable-rate bank borrowings, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the
balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole
year.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/ lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31st December 2007 would
decrease/ increase by approximately RMB234,000
(2006: RMB251,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
bank borrowings.
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6b. MBRREEEMRBR
#)
EeEEAR
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Other price risk

The Group’s other price risk is mainly concentrated on
available-for-sale investments quoted in the stock
exchange of the PRC. The management monitors the
price risk exposure and will take appropriate measures
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to other price risks at the

balance sheet date.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale

ZEB®EEATH5% investments had been 5% higher/lower:
—22tE ZTTRE
2007 2006
ARBTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FEERKD EF(TH)  Increase (decrease) in equity for the year

~ERAESRER EA  — as a result of increase in equity price 18,198 —
~EARAFAFERTHE  — as a result of decrease in equity price (18,198) -

B E T AR

AEBBBRRBERERR

BRI EWESKFHEAE

BAKRENZBREER SR

5&%29@?3% c RRRIEEE
ERIRITE A A IARER
T8 B RIEMH -

TRAAMIBAEEHEE
BEEBNARZMBER - %
RRBAEEANE E’JE—E
AT BRETRTER
ERmE - BENERAS
BEm o TREFMERAK
BRI
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Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivatives financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
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6. MBIR »® 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
6b. HMBRBEEHAERBGE 6b.  Financial risk management objectives and
(&) policies (continued)
TLE)E 2 B g K Liquidity risk tables
#ERTHR
®R+=-A=+—H BenER
ZIREE DPR—F
Total
Carrying undiscounted
amount at cash flows less
31 December than 1 year
AREFT AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
—Z2tE 2007
FTERBAR Non-derivative financial liabilities
ENEFRETEMNZIE Trade and other payables 269,807 269,807
JE 1 B & A B R I8 Amount due to an associate 125 125
RITER Bank borrowings 206,819 213,185
476,751 483,117
—EERE 2006
ETEMBEAR Non-derivative financial liabilities
T RARECEMNFZIE  Trade and other payables 266,347 266,347
RITER Bank borrowings 235,234 243,774
501,581 510,121

EERER

RZFTELFF+—A=1—
A AKEERSHF K6
FEATE (T AT sE T ¥ 1 75 48
KMEREERBELNEG
HHAER BRI S
BAEMNKEE

STEEREEERR - &
SEEEECSZIR—MAER
BENEEERSE FER
R ETERIEF - AR
RERBUR#E 178 Y B 8 B 1E
H o S AEBEERF
EEASRERE SER
MR El S5 - RER SR
Yol BT R R R ERE
B BERLYE  ARAES
RRAKENEERRER
ZPRE -

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties provided by the Group
is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each balance sheet date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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Rt 2 R7T °

AEBYEEPZEER
B BERRDISMETR
TERMITNER °
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R
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A BRENEEMS
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ARBEER DR
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

6cC.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high
credit ratings, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables consist of a large number of customers,
spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market
bid prices and ask prices respectively; and

. the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
or rates from observable current market
transactions as input.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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BEE  WaERSEBEH 7. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL

INFORMATION
AEEFERERE  BERHEE The Group principally engaged in the development, production
fb2REE - & - (tIREEE and sales of pharmaceutical products including bulk
m o AFEBABRAZIELOT : pharmaceutical, preparations (e.g. tablets and injections),

chemicals and other products. Revenues recognised during
the year are as follows:

k-1 33 ZTERF
2007 2006
AR%TFiT ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEH-EmMEERA Turnover — Sales of goods 1,865,568 1,685,367
HEEBRA Other operating income
RITH BUA Bank interest income 2,311 4,411
MTESBITARREEN Increase in fair value of
derivative financial instruments 15,763 50
AN S G IS N Interest income from loan to an associate — 270
A E 2 IREF BIA Interest income from
an available-for-sale investment 1,647 6,588
AR E 2R ERBWA Dividend income from
an available-for-sale investment 914 141
EEALON Rental income 1,728 1,725
HESIERF LS 2 B E e Gain on disposal of assets classified
as held for sale 6,401 —
HENE  BE R&ENKE Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment — 2,289
TESMTIAERZ Wa Realised gain on
derivative financial instruments 4,589 —
S 468 Bh Government subsidies 5,479 600
HE Others 10,904 7,404
49,736 23,478
A Total revenues 1,915,304 1,708,845
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7. BERE WERSBPEEH 7. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL

(#) INFORMATION (continued)
NEBIR X755 20 R B & PR i (& Analysis of the Group’s segment information for the year by
DEERZFN AT - business segment and geographical location of customers is

set out as follows:

(i) XESBEH 0) By business segment
i 4 4 e S
2007 2006
EREH iE #it En%k v @&t
Pharmaceutical Other Pharmaceutical Other
business operations Total business operations Total
AEBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEHRA Segment revenues 1,912,743 2,561 1,915,304 1,702,116 6,729 1,708,845
DHELE Segment results 51,355 2,561 53,916 44178 6,729 50,907
I I I I
[ERBEZARIESE  Share of results of associates (4,369) (699)
BI%ER Finance costs (12,183) (20,475)
BE AR Profit before taxation 37,364 29,733
FrERE % (F%)  Income tax credit (expense) 400 (7,784)
RERRH Profit for the year 37,764 21,949
I I
Z22tF ZETRE
2007 2006
ERRE iE i ERE v &t
Pharmaceutical Other Pharmaceutical Other
business operations Total business operations Total
ARBTT ARBFT ABBTT ARBTT ARBTT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
gE ASSETS
PHEE Segment assets 1,866,887 367,162 2,234,049 1,698,218 140,777 1,838,995
BENFER Interests in associates 23,748 42,580
APBEE Unallocated corporate assets 2,303 —
GREAE Consolidated total assets 2,260,100 1,881,575
I I
aft LIABILITIES
AHEE Segment liabilities (269,932) - (269,932) (266,347) - (266,347)
RARAE Unallocated corporate liabilities (256,129) (242,781)
GAEERE Consolidated total liabilities 526,061) 509,088
EERH OTHER INFORMATION
RS Capital expenditure 119,825 — 119,825 72,225 - 72,225
FEREE Depreciation and amortisation 107,301 — 107,301 103,216 = 103,216
&M BER Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
REEE () plant and equipment 4,360 - 4,360 (2,289) = (2,289)
HETEFLE  Gain on disposal of assets classified
EEWs as held for sale (6,401) — (6,401) - - -
BEMERR Allowance for inventories 3,026 - 3,026 4,630 - 4,630
ERERR Allowance for bad and doubtful debts of
BREE trade receivables 6,254 — 6,254 12,131 - 12,131
HinfelsE Allowance for bad and doubtful debts of
RERRE other receivables 6,646 — 6,646 2,558 — 2,558
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FEaEMEREXNME =2
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(IRIEE & L imRAN 2 S5 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

7. BEH WERSEHBEH 7. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL

(&) INFORMATION (continued)
(iiy HEEREHMESBEH (i) By geographical location of customers
WA
Segment revenues
—EZTtEF ZETRF
2007 2006
ARSTTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE(BEEHS) PRC (including Hong Kong) 1,082,315 988,706
B Europe 268,115 229,080
EM Americas 378,945 344,901
HEBXR Others 185,929 146,158
1,915,304 1,708,845
AEEBIEI% 2 & EHAL Over 99% of the Group’s assets are located in the
R - FAORE 25 EE PRC and therefore the analysis of segment assets
MEAREZMME D HE and capital expenditure is not presented.
K} o
8. HMHBEH 8. FINANCE COSTS
—EZTtEF ZETRF
2007 2006
ARSTTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITERA B Interest on bank loans 12,183 20,475
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e EERERERMFE o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

9. HFHEMRUER)AX 9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE
—EZTtEF —TERX
2007 2006
AR¥TFTT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RS PRC enterprise income tax
— "8 — current 12,202 10,273
— A FEZROTIE — over-provision in prior years (4,158) (2,630)
8,044 7,643
EIERLIE (F77£34) Deferred tax (Note 34)
— N Hf — current (9,613) 141
—HERENTE — attributable to a charge in tax rate 1,169 —
(8,444) 141
(400) 7,784

(@) TFELEFEHIRETE
HEER R ERITERRH X
5

(b) ARQFE—HBA R A M
HIES BT & #T R E
ERETER  REBERHRB
48 F[1994]E 7 2 15157 <78
1A 10 T F 10 £ 3 0 {3 AR AR
BRI R EEREAD - 1
2002 5 B3 17 FT 15 7 B &
15% R ER @ W HES & R
TREPFIHLTE - #E20045 8 -
e NGNS A
EEEANERE15% ' [
TR SN AL FTIS B A R R
£33% ' WEEE 7530
PItEER o

HEZETHR-TTRE+
ZA=+—HBiIEmER@RIF
JE - REBEHEEERERD - A&
DA TR A B & 2 B
BNF B B ERS R A
R F AR T BEEEME
B HIE=FRFAE - K%
B TR ERRNKEEE
PR R 533% °

WRHMEREROGBER QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

(@)

(b)

PRC enterprise income tax is calculated at the
applicable rates in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC.

The Company and a subsidiary are located in the
high-technology economic zone of Zibo City and are
entitled to preferential PRC enterprise income tax rate
of 15% from year 2002 onwards, according to [1994]
Guo Shui Fa No. 151 “The notice of applying favourable
tax policies for the new and high technology
companies” issued by the State Administration of
Taxation. The companies have obtained the relevant
approvals from the local tax bureau. From year 2004
onwards, the operating results of the companies
derived from business conducted in the high-
technology economic zone are subject to a preferential
income tax rate of 15% while the business conducted
outside the high-technology economic zone are subject
to an income tax rate of 33%. This has been filed with
the local tax bureau as a record.

In accordance with the relevant regulations of the
PRC, two subsidiaries operating in the PRC are entitled
to exemption from PRC income tax in the first two
years from the first profit-making year, followed by a
50% reduction of PRC income tax for the next three
years. Other companies within the Group are subject
to income tax rate at 33% on their taxable income for
the years ended 31st December 2007 and 2006.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

9. R (EBR)HAX @

(©)

(d)

RZEZ+HF=H+/8 -
2B ARKERS QAMAFT
EMEFE (FFE]) -
B R-TEZELF+ A
—+XHB  BBEREHLE
SR E BRG] ([E KK
B1) o BIEFHE & B MK
- B=FEFENF—F—H
B ERFEZCERINED
SRR EE—A25% °
AT BER T TR R
M AIR I Z A HEER
EHRERE TR R EHRESR
MENLEmMS @ EFER
BHEAIREHEEMSH
VEHE R 18 5F AR E g =
25% ° IEILFFBRIBEE
BEHAETBEHERANER
HMAZTRE R TBRZEE
B = E#E 0] sy F 2 B

| A
ATE o

AEERE-TTLR-F
TAE+-B=+—BILW
(B 47 .3 4% P R B g A
AN ERFIER - HIRE
PO 4 1S B -

HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE

(continued)

(©)

(d)

On 16 March 2007, the People’s Republic of China
promulgated the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law") by Order
No. 63 of the President of the People’s Republic of
China. On 6 December 2007, the State Council of the
PRC issued Implementation Regulations of the New
Law. Pursuant to the New Law and Implementation
Regulations, the Enterprise income tax for both
domestic and foreign-invested enterprises will be
unified at 25% effective from 1 January 2008. There
will be a transitional period for PRC subsidiaries that
currently entitled to preferential tax treatments granted
by the relevant tax authorities. PRC subsidiaries
currently subject to an enterprise income tax rate
lower than 25% will continue to enjoy the lower tax
rate and be gradually transitioned to the new unified
rate of 25% within five years after 1 January 2008. The
deferred tax balance has been adjusted to reflect the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the respective
periods when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made as the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is
derived from, Hong Kong for the two years ended 31st
December 2007 and 2006.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRA 2 251 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

9. MR ER)HAX @ 9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE
(continued)

(e) FAZBIE(FESR) X K AR (e)  The tax (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled
& 1B 5 7= NBR T A F 4 AR to the profit before taxation per the consolidated income
AT statement as follows:

k1 432 ZZTRF
2007 2006
ARBTT AEETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BR 54 A1 A Profit before taxation 37,364 29,733
71 %&33% Tax at domestic income tax rate of 33%
(CEBAE  33%) (2006: 33%) 12,330 9,812
FEZHE
RERRTE 8 Effect of preferential tax rate in the PRC (5,329) (3,092)
FEERTUA Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (629) (937)
AR MB Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes 5,811 4,117
RERHEBE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 362 514
MERENTE Effect on change in tax rate 1,169 =
NRIEE TR Tax effect of temporary difference
ERRBER previously not recognised (6,011) —
ARAZHEHE Effect on tax exemption granted
FHEBBHME to PRC subsidiaries (3,945) —
AREE % ROKIE Over-provision in prior years (4,158) (2,630)
PR (%) X Tax (credit) charge for the year (400) 7,784
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(IRIEE & L imRAN 2 S5 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

10. FEEEF

AEZ MR THIHEE -

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:

—ETtF —RERE
2007 2006
ARBTT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEREBER Advertising and promotion expenses 10,095 42,219
FEUER SR R R B Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
of trade receivables 6,254 12,131
EvRUBERREREE Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
of other receivables 6,646 2,558
FERR Allowance for inventories 3,026 4,630
T REZ Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
BRNHAE B on land use rights 2,461 2,425
5 fi 8 55 Amortisation of technical know-how 1,130 1,130
%A B & Auditors’ remuneration 1,324 1,084
& Depreciation 103,710 99,661
ESHI B A R EE (fa) Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary (Note) 1,040 =
HEME  BERREEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,360 —
B 5 F R K Net exchange loss 13,558 3,835
ITHREFEERE Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 1,211 1,191
BERREER Repairs and maintenance expenses 784 736
9% K e B B AR Research and development costs 14,371 16,984
JE 1T & A BB IE Share of tax of associates
(BREERERE DREEN) (included in share of results of associates) 253 101
BEIXAR(MERESER Staff costs (excluding directors’ and
EEMe) (Hit13) supervisors’ emoluments) (Note 13) 176,801 138,933

Hat : BE_ZZHFE+_A=+—HIt Note:  The subsidiary deregistered during the year ended 31st December
FE - ARAET KM EA R EH 2007 had no significant impact on the turnover and results for the
HAEEMEEBRRTIREEAR Group.
=

11. &R 11. DIVIDENDS
= L
2007 2006
AE®TFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BERARBEE : BRAKK0.03T  Final dividend proposed: RMB0.03
(ZZZRF: ZRAR®0.027T)  (2006: RMB0.02) per share on 307,312,830
1£307,312,830/% Al A shares and 150,000,000 H shares
% 150,000,000/ HA% 1 & 13,719 9,146
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e EERERERMFE o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRA 2 251 R A4 #)
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

11.

12.

13.

WRHMEREROGBER QA
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&R &) 11. DIVIDENDS (continued)
NN A E =% 12307,312,830 %A The final dividend of RMB0.03 (2006: RMBO0.02) per share
[i% %2150,000,000% HA% - ## ik 7K HA (approximately HK$0.033 (2006: HK$0.0202) per share,
B FIAR0.03T(ZEEN including income tax of A shares) on 307,312,830 A shares
F : AR¥0.027T) (14 75%0.033 and 150,000,000 H shares has been proposed by the directors
T (ZEZNF - A%0.02027T) ¢ of the Company and is subject to approval by shareholders
ARER) o ZREBFEREMIRE at the Annual General Meeting and has been included as a
BERE L#ERE RS T BHR dividend reserve in the consolidated financial statements.
RNIEREFEE -
BEREFEH 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE — BASIC
BRREA G F BB AN A RE R The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
BAZEGBEAEE RN ARE Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
31,818,000/C (ZTERF : ARK of RMB31,818,000 (2006: RMB22,761,000) and based on
22,761,0007T) RIEF N E TR the weighted average of 457,312,830 (2006: 457,312,830)
2 IN#E 39 £1457,312,830/% (== shares in issue during the year.
TN ¢ 457,312,830/%) 51 E o
BE_ZZLFNM_FTTRF+= There was no dilution effect on the basic earnings per share
A=T—BHIEMEFE - 5887 for the two years ended 31st December 2007 and 2006 as
BEERESE BN T B - I there were no dilutive shares outstanding during the two
REHBRAEFEREELE - years ended 31st December 2007 and 2006.
BIRREZ FEEEER 13. STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EEfMe) AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTYS)
ZEZTLHF —TTREF
2007 2006
AR¥FTT ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HE R TE Salaries and wages 110,117 92,448
ETREAMNMETER Staff welfare and other benefits 45,532 27,671
R R M E B Retirement benefit scheme contributions
— REM-REE () — defined contribution plans (Note) 21,152 18,814
176,801 138,933

s -

ANEE 28 BTRM RIS - BF 2
HREARE—FASENTREZFS - 1
AR ERE([B R AL 2 8/23% (ZTZ N
F:23%) c BAEAABBAKRANEBRAAR
#4,0837C (ZTZTRF : AR 4,2937T) °
SHHEERARFEINBANELERBMREIER
KPR -

WHBERERE R EARARMEASE
B2 B RAM A HRR KB B ARH
It - B EXXPTEO RSN - ARBWERES
BESMNERAKBARECRAKRET -

Note:

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group participates in a basic
defined contribution pension scheme organised by the local municipal
government, whereby it is required to pay contributions at the rate of 23%
(2006: 23%) on the total salaries, bonuses and allowances (the “relevant
income”) paid to the Group’s staff in the previous year. The monthly relevant
income per head of a staff is subject to a cap of RMB4,983 (2006: RMB4,293).
Contributions to this retirement scheme are charged to the consolidated
income statement as and when incurred.

The local municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of all existing and future retired staff of the Group. Accordingly,
the Group has no other material obligation for payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of employees other than the contribution
described above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRAN 2 S5 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

14 EEREEHMS 14. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS'
EMOLUMENTS
B EN TR (CEERF The emoluments paid or payable to each of the fifteen (2006:
TR EEREEZHMESNT ¢ sixteen) directors and supervisors were as follows:
gE_=E=LF+-_B=+—H For the year ended 31st December 2007
IEFE
I% %ef-
#UER BiaTl
e HEw|dl RER oE
Salaries,
bonuses,  Retirement
allowances benefit
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
AREFT AREFTT AREFT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HITESE Executive directors
B Bt Ms. Guo Qin — 200 14 214
HEIREEE Mr. Zhao Songguo — 220 14 234
ERELE Mr. Ren Fulong — 300 14 314
FEHITEFE Non-executive directors
5 k&4 (HiE1) Mr. Ma Yong (Note 1) — 117 8 125
SR K A& Mr. Liu Zhenwen — 170 14 184
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive directors
AEHLE Mr. Dai Qingjun — 60 = 60
Rip# %4 (B#2) Mr. Mok Chung Kwan,
Stephen (Note 2) — 60 — 60
REAELE Mr. Xu Guojun — 60 — 60
BHEELE Mr. Sun Minggao — 60 = 60
EZ Supervisors
BRERE (HF3) Mr. Lii Zhongde (Note 3) — = = =
K AIBEE Mr. Zhang Yueshun — 24 — 24
ey Mr. Tao Zhichao — 24 — 24
SEREE Mr. Gao Qinggang - 130 14 144
TREEE Mr. Yu Gongfu — 200 14 214
2 mgAE (Mite) Mr. Liu Qiang (Note 4) — 60 10 70
wE Total — 1,685 102 1,787
BitaE - Notes:
1. R EF/\A= BBt 1. Passed away on 3rd August 2007.
2. RZZTTN\FMA+/SBBRE 2. Resigned on 16th April 2008.
3. i S = Bl = - 5 S 8, Resigned on 2nd February 2007.
4. R-EBZT+E_A_BREEE 4. Appointed on 2nd February 2007.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

14 EEREEM& ») 14. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS'’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
HEZZZLHEN T F+= No directors and supervisors waived any emoluments for the
A=+—HBIMEAFE BEES two years ended 31st December 2007 and 2006. During the
REENEEMAMHE - NEBE W& year, no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
MESHEEIMNEAME  ER directors or supervisors as an inducement to join or upon
Ral A I AZE B 2 £/ sk 1E joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
REEBAEE -
BE_ZTTRF+-A=+—H For the year ended 31st December 2006
ILFE
I® T
#RUR BHEH
g HERf AR -1
Salaries,
bonuses, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
AREFIT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HITEE Executive directors
Eimr st E (K1) Mr. He Duanshi (Note 1) — 144 11 155
F BELt Ms. Guo Qin — 295 11 306
filNEp e Mr. Zhao Songguo — 180 11 191
FRELE (H72) Mr. Ren Fulong (Note 2) — 240 11 251
FHTEE Non-executive directors
A ExE (FtL) Mr. Liu Congde (Note 1) — 20 2 22
5 XxE&E Mr. Ma Yong — 170 11 181
BRI A (Ff7E2) Mr. Liu Zhenwen (Note 2) — 147 10 157
BUHTES Independent non-executive directors
BERLAE Mr. Dai Qingjun — 50 = 50
Efhgis Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen = 50 = 50
BREELE Mr. Xu Guojun — 50 — 50
FBRLE Mr. Sun Minggao = 50 = 50
EZ Supervisors
BRELE (HE3) Mr. Ll Zhongde (Note 3) — 56 11 67
K AIB%E & Mr. Zhang Yueshun — 20 — 20
[Fsybites Mr. Tao Zhichao — 20 — 20
RERLE Mr. Gao Qinggang — 120 11 131
TARESE Mr. Yu Gongfu — 170 11 181
Fk Total — 1,782 100 1,882
HisE : Notes:
1. RZZBERFNANBBEE - 1. Resigned on 9th June 2006.
2. REZZRNENANBERE - 2. Appointed on 9th June 20086.
3. R-ZEZS+F_A_HBEET - 3. Resigned on 2nd February 2007.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRAN 2 S5 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

15. ER#M& 15. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
FA - AfumZeHMA T BERL Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
EF(CEERF - WUES)  H Group, two (2006: four) were directors, whose emoluments
B FIBHRHIFELS - Her=f1 (= are set out in note 14 above. The emoluments of the remaining
TERF - —)FEEEHA T2 B three (2006: one) highest paid individuals was as follows:
LT
—EZTtE —TTREF
2007 2006
ARTTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
T& - {41 - 2RL Salaries, bonuses, allowances and
LEBEA other benefits 722 180
IR ORAE F ET 8 3R Retirement benefit scheme contributions 32 11
754 191
HMES BN FIATEE Their emoluments were within the following band:
EE®H
Number of employees
—ETtEF ZETRF
2007 2006
Z & AR¥ 1,000,000 Nil to RMB1,000,000 3 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(IRIEE & L imRA 2 251 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

16. Hiils 16. TECHNICAL KNOW-HOW
ARETFT
RMB’000
R{E COST
RZZERE—A—8" At 1st January 2006,
ZEERF+TZA=T-HR 31st December 2006
—ETHFE+ZA=+—H and 31st December 2007 6,550
W AMORTISATION
RZZEER F-H—H At 1st January 2006 2,368
REHH Charge for the year 1,130
RZZZERF+ZA=1T—HK At 3lst December 2006 and
—ZEZt+F—-H—H 1st January 2007 3,498
REHH Charge for the year 1,130
R-EZ+tF+-_A=+—H At 31st December 2007 4,628
IR E CARRYING VALUES
R-_EZ+&+-_A=+—H At 31st December 2007 1,922
R-ZEERFE+-A=+—H At 31st December 2006 3,052
REENREMEE=TBA - £l The Group’s technical know-how were acquired from third
LEAIE A FHAZE6F BN E X parties. The technical know-how have definite useful lives
BEGH o and amortised on a straight-line basis over four to six years.

| U RFTERERHGBIR A F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(IRIEE & L imRAN 2 S5 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

YE - BERBR 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BE B
BEY R R RE it
Plant,
machinery Motor
Buildings and equipment vehicles Total
ARBTFT AEBTT AEBTT AEBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EfiE VALUATION
RZZE F—-A—A At 1st January 2006 402,136 958,920 13,469 1,374,525
HERIREA (Ffi118) Transferred from construction
in progress (note 18) 24,158 21,244 — 45,402
ANE Additions 800 27,145 3,124 31,069
BN BAGLE Reclassified as held for sale (8,329) — — (8,329)
HE Disposals — (42,746) (3,655) (46,401)
RZZTRF+-A=+T—H At 3Lst December 2006 418,765 964,563 12,938 1,396,266
HERIREA (ff118) Transferred from construction
in progress (note 18) 23,103 46,906 3 70,012
RE Additions 6,510 53,074 1,066 60,650
WENBARES Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 25,554 59,090 506 85,150
& Disposals (7,189) (48,329) (1,634) (57,152)
RZZTTLEF+ZA=F—H At 31st December 2007 466,743 1,075,304 12,879 1,554,926

RHiE
R-FEAF-A-H
REEHE
ERABAGHE
2

RZZEE F+ZA=+—H
REEHE
KRB A RES
HEZH#
RZBZtE+=A=+—H

BEE
RZZZ+F+-A=+—H

RZEZF+-A=+—H

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

At 1st January 2006 129,130 423,924 8,639 561,693
Charge for the year 15,520 82,183 1,958 99,661
Reclassified as held for sale (4,338) — — (4,338)
Eliminated on disposals — (36,806) (3,260) (40,066)
At 31st December 2006 140,312 469,301 7,337 616,950
Charge for the year 18,078 84,083 1,549 103,710
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 3,970 13,287 216 17,473
Eliminated on disposals (4,583) (34,306) (1,358) (40,247)
At 31st December 2007 157,777 532,365 7,744 697,886

CARRYING VALUES
At 31st December 2007 308,966 542,939 5,135 857,040

At 31st December 2006 278,453 495,262 5,601 779,316
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

17. VX  -BERRW 2

(@ AKEREREWMLRT
& o

R_ZEZtF+_A=1+—
B AEEHAERERA
E%ZE“WEE;%{E%M
R#18,737,0007 (ZZZ X
& AR#11,346,0007T) °
ARREERAE  AEEAE
HREYEETS R REL
ZEEEYMZ EXFTBEM
WL o RAREZIARE -
REREYER 2 EAA
EEREERMERETAE
o

(b) AREERRRNHBRENER
FrEm  RABIETE - B
5 R 5% 46 £ 7R B 5E 11 4 (2 B
RS EHARTEE
ERARNEEEGE - R
ARBYE - BFE R&H
H—I8 3 (A {ER — 272 R 5
EITARARKRARMESR
#ihE - MESGHEESIR
‘EBE_ZTTLE T A
=t HLEFERNNINTE

& A ANR#449,0007T (=
TENRF 0 AR¥ 422,000
JL) °

() HAEBZHME - BEEZ
ﬁu&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%‘k

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

All the buildings of the Group are located in the PRC.

As at 31st December 2007, the carrying values of the
buildings for which the Group had not been granted
formal title amounted to approximately RMB18,737,000
(2006: RMB11,346,000). In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the absence of formal title to these
buildings does not impair the value of the relevant
buildings to the Group. The directors of the Company
also believe that formal title to these buildings will be
granted to the Group in due course.

In the preparation of the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange, the Company’s
property, plant and equipment were firstly revalued by
Shandong Certified Public Accountants, a firm of
valuers registered in the PRC on a depreciated
replacement cost basis as part of its restructuring.
Another separate revaluation was carried out on the
Company’s property, plant and equipment by
Chesterton Petty Limited, an independent valuer, on
an open market value basis. The adoption of the
above two revaluations in the accounts has resulted
in an additional depreciation charge of RMB449,000
(2006: RMB422,000) in respect of the year ended
31st December 2007.

Had the property, plant and equipment of the Group
been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation,

CREEEZREESD the carrying value of such property, plant and

E'J,%’]Z%- equipment in the accounts would have been
approximately:

—ZEZ2LF ZEEREF

2007 2006

AR¥TFT AR Fr

RMB’000 RMB’000

EEY) Buildings 307,139 275,862

BB - eSS R Plant, machinery and equipment 541,284 493,921

B8 Motor vehicles 4,647 5,115

853,070 774,898

WRHMEREROGBER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
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HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(d)

At 31st December 2007, all property, plant and
equipment of the Group were revalued by the directors
of the Company on a depreciated replacement cost
basis. Since there are no material differences between
the revalued amount and the carrying values at 31st
December 2007, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the carrying values of property, plant
and equipment at 31st December 2007 fairly reflected
their recoverable amount at that time.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis. The estimated

B RFHEHRERBFHM useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are
T ¢ as follows:
BEY) 204 Buildings 20 years
HE - a5 k& ME 5-106F Plant, machinery and equipment 5-10 years
AE 5% Motor vehicles 5 years
18. ERBI® 18. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
—EStEF ZTERX
2007 2006
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
®n—HA—H At 1st January 85,922 90,168
o Additions 51,694 41,156
HEYE  KE Transfer to property,
&t (Frat17) plant and equipment (note 17) (70,012) (45,402)
BEMB QR MG Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 3,576 —
R+=—A=+—H At 31st December 71,180 85,922

EFREIRER-_ZTTLF+_-_A=
+—HIEEEEY M AR EREE
Y BENEEREREENRH
Y o REBE_EELR_ZTETRF
+-RA=+—BItFERALREH
REZIEMNER -

R-ZEBEE+F+_A=+—0 " &
ETRESEBEMAA B L REN
EmHLtiEREZITEARKE
1,940,0007T (ZZEZTRF : ARK
1,940,0007T) °

Construction in progress comprises expenditures incurred
on buildings, plants and machinery not yet commissioned at
31st December 2007. For the years ended 31st December
2007 and 2006, no loans were borrowed for financing

construction in progress.

As at 31st December 2007, included in construction in
progress, an amount of RMB1,940,000 (2006: RMB1,940,000)
represented prepayment for purchase of land use rights in

Zibo, Shandong, the PRC.

WRHMEFHREROBR QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRA 2 251 R A4 #)
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

19.

TiEAEZHEMTEER 19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND
15 USE RIGHTS
—EZTEF —EER
2007 2006
ABR¥FIT AR Fr
RMB’000 RMB’000
REBBMNEEZIEESIE . The Group’s prepaid lease
payments comprise:
FREzEE LM Leasehold land in PRC:
A Medium-term lease 92,316 87,161
%2 HA Short lease 1,527 1,662
93,843 88,823
I EMIEL 22T Analysed for reporting purposes as:
MEEE Current asset 2,577 2,419
ERBEE Non-current asset 91,266 86,404
93,843 88,823

AREBERSHEZ L FERE -
WER L FEZIEF - KAEEE
THZBEREBZREBOREE -
REB M FEE BRI EERE T
ZETHWERESHHIEXNA
o -R-_ZETZLF+_F=+—
B AREBRAEREAMBEEZ
THEZEEFENAEARE
35,468,0007C (ZZTZRF  HAR
#£30,385,0007C) ° AARIEER
B REBEBLIMEREGET
SRAREMRZE T iR 2 IERX
FraEEmmD - XA REEIE
5 2SS 2 EXNFTE
RBEREERETAEE -

WRHMEREROGBER QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

The Group has acquired land use rights in the PRC and has
erected buildings thereon. While the Group has paid
substantially the full consideration of the purchase
consideration, the relevant government authorities have not
granted formal title to certain of these land use rights to the
Group. As at 31st December 2007, the carrying values of the
land use rights for which the Group had not been granted
formal title amounted to approximately RMB35,468,000 (2006:
RMB30,385,000). In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the absence of formal title to these land use rights
does not impair the value of the relevant land use rights to
the Group. The directors of the Company also believe that
formal title to these land use rights will be granted to the
Group in due course.
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HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

20. HELAFHER 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
—E2tF —ETREF
2007 2006
AE#TFir AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JiNE | il A /NC] Cost of investment
BE 2 KA in associates, unlisted 27,879 47,831
JEMRIRIRE N B’ Z Share of post-acquisition
EE R losses and reserves (4,131) (5,251)
23,748 42,580
RZEZLF+A=1+—H 25 The details of the associates as at 31st December 2007 are
ERBFBHOT as follows:
EREIERE KB
HEATER ACES ] kR RN EREFER ERNEE IEXBREEME
Place of Nominal Percentage
Form of incorporation value of of equity
business Class of and kind of registered attributable  Principal activities

Name of associate structure shares held  legal entity capital  to the Group  and place of operation

IR B L] UNLEN HE - EREARE  AKK26929,000 20% RPEEEEYMREERAR
ARRAA ([3E])

Shandong Zibo Xincat Incorporated  Contributed PRC, limited RMB26,929,000 20%  Production of medicine
Pharmaceutical capital Company and medical products
Company Limited in the PRC
(“Xincat")

WRFEREHCIARAR  £E BABRA HE - EREERAR AR 25000,000 40% RPREERHECIER

Shandong Xinhua Incorporated ~ Contributed PRC, limited RMB25,000,000 40%  Manufacture and sales
Longxin Chemical capital Company of chemical products
Co., Ltd. in the PRC

IWRFERENT =8 YN EN B BREAEAA  AKEK22,000,000 3% NRELER
KEFRAT HECIRBEREN

Shandong Xinhua Changxing Incorporated  Contributed PRC, limited RMB22,000,000 35%  Production and sale
Chemical Equipment capital Company of chemical

Company Limited

equipments and
spare parts in the PRC

WRHMEFHREROBR QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRA 2 251 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

20. BHERVER ©) 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
RAEEHETRERELENARKE During the year, a discount on acquisition of RMB236,000
236,000 CiTEE BEEAFEAE arising on acquisition of Xincat has been included as income
B e G B A A o in the determination of the Group’s share of results of

associates.
REEBE QR 2 AKETHIBE The summarised unaudited financial information in respect
BEE25IT of the Group’s associates is set out below:
—EZTtEF —ZTERX
2007 2006
AR¥TFTT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BERE Total assets 164,210 143,644
BfERHE Total liabilities (92,587) (48,457)
BEFRE Net assets 71,623 95,187
REBEEGEEARZ Group’s share of net assets
BEFE of associates 23,748 42,580
EHERE Turnover 345,665 100,606
FAERE Loss for the year (19,194) (1,564)
AEBEEBEARZ Group’s share of results of
FREE associates for the year (4,369) (699)
21. BHERXATER 21. LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE
—EZTtEF —TTREF
2007 2006
AR¥TFTT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AN E ¢ Loan to an associate — 6,921
M EREAAEM Carrying amount analysed
ERZDMAT . for reporting purposes:
mENEE (Mfit26) Current assets (note 26) - 6,921

142) WRHMEREROGBER QA
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(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
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21.

22.

HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

As at 31st December 2006, the amount represented loan
advanced to an associate, SINO-USA Xinhua-Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Xinhua-Perrigo”). The
amount was unsecured, carried interest at prevailing market
rates. As at 1st January 2007, the Company acquired 0.1%
equity interest in Xinhua-Perrigo, since then Xinhua has
become a subsidiary of the Company. As at 31st December
2007, the outstanding balance is fully eliminated on
consolidation.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments as at 31st December 2007
comprise:

k- -1 33 ZEEREF
2007 2006
AR®FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEMIRE ! Unlisted securities:
—RAREH (ffita) — equity securities (note a) 397,162 53,777
— B E T FHE5.81% — debt securities with fixed — 117,000
(ZZZ R F :5.81%) & interest of 5.81% (2006: 5.81%)
RZZZLF LA and maturity date in July 2007 (note b)
2|58 (Kiztb)
W BERERRERE (M) Less: Impairment loss recognised (note c) (30,000) (30,000)
ast Total 367,162 140,777
MBEMEL 2 DTAT ¢ Analysed for reporting purposes as:
—EETLHF —EERF
2007 2006
AR®FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEEE Current assets — 117,000
ERBEE Non-current assets 367,162 23,777
367,162 140,777

AEEEmEEARPABERSE
BITHIELTRARE - BRI TE
BisE22(a)iR B M IR AN B HIN (R =
EE+F+_A=1+—HBUARE
) - BB R NMEFTIE LR
BEBEARNERAMREZEE 2BE
A=#HEERE  ARAREERER
RN SEMEEEARE  ZE
AR S E&EBIZKANBRBEA
E\Eo

The above unlisted investments represent investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated in the PRC. Except for equity securities as
stated in Note 22(a) below, which are measured at fair values
as at 31st December 2007, others are measured at cost less
impairment at each balance sheet date because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so wide that the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

WRHMEFHREROBR QA
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

22. AtHEZ®RE @) 22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Hifat - Notes:

(@) RZBTRF+—A=+—8 88 (@) At 31st December 2006, included in equity securities were investments
ERAFHRHMRIE LT RF S A in two unlisted legal person shares and promoter shares in Bank of
RRB|RITBROBERA A ([ZEER Communications Company Limited (“Bank of Communications”) and
11) R BEARFEFRBR AT ([KFF China Pacific Insurance Company Limited (“Pacific Insurance”)
RER D) BEARR R BRARIKRE © B respectively. During the year ended 31st December 2007, Bank of
E-TTLFFTA=F+—HBLF Communications and Pacific Insurance listed in the stock exchange
& BIRITRATF R AP BER of the PRC. According to the listing prospectuses of these two
A ETE o BIRZMAR A A8 E B companies, the legal person shares and the promoter shares will be
HEAE  EARKERAKRE ETH transferable in the stock exchange of the PRC after one year from
BH—FRARNREMNZEER - R the date of the listing of the relevant shares. As at 31st December
TEHF+-A=1+—H  ARQAE 2007, the directors of the Company reviewed the carrying amounts
ELEREMISHREAF I ZLE of the legal person shares and promoter shares by reference to the
AR KREFRRARNKEE  EEAR price of the listed shares quoted in the stock exchange and fair value
#342,737,000t A R BFEE T increase of RMB342,737,000 has been credited to equity.

N[ -

(b) EZZETHFLA AEEREAR (b) In July 2004, the Group invested RMB130,000,000 in an equity
B13B T2 NERBHETRES acquisition trust fund plan organised by Qingdao Hisyn Trust &
RAT ([E58H]) RaREZRE Investment Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Hisyn”) for Shenzhen Hengye
BERARAR (EEARDKE—R Investment Development Co., Ltd. (‘Hengye Company”) to acquire
B B AR 7 B R Y A B T A LAY equity interests in a company engaging in pharmaceutical
RIEWEHEE SEE T8 - BHER manufacturing business in the PRC. Under the arrangement, Hengye
AIEGE B RIRER S B8 iRt Company undertakes to pledge the equity interests acquired to
2HER  AEEREERFHBES Qingdao Hisyn in full amount. The Group agrees that Qingdao Hisyn
ENREEFBERANER - W bt uses the above equity interests so pledged to repay the trust fund
EIRNREEENEENETEAREST principal and interest to the Group in the event that Hengye Company
W o ZIEtERFTEIRE=F - was in default of repayment. The trust fund plan is for a term of three
FOERERREAREM5.81%(=F years and the return to the Group is at a rate of 5.81% (2006: 5.81%)
TRF 1 5.81%) - EHEBHENR per annum on the investment amount. Qingdao Hisyn has repaid
TETREHEERAE ARE RMB13,000,000 principal to the Group during the year ended 31st
13,000,0007T T4 @ - SREEAR December 2005. The remaining amount of RMB117,000,000 has
#117,000,000tHE =TT +F+ been fully repaid during the year ended 31st December 2007.
ZA=+—HIEFEERIEE -

(c) R-ZBT+F+-A=1+—8 " 27 (c) As at 31st December 2007, the Group held an investment in Tian

RAERRAZERHFEREEAR (—FRHE
ETHEFAR) 2 RERNE HEA
B AR #30,000,0007T ° %A FIE
EERB EEH - Bt BB EREE
AR #30,000,0007T (=TT -
A K#30,000,0007T) - NRARIES
RE - ZRETIFEELEMHRIR
BHR SR ABERERIBE SE AT
e ©

Tong Securities Company Limited, an unlisted securities trading
company, at a cost of RMB30,000,000. The securities trading company
is facing financial difficulties and impairment loss of RMB30,000,000
(2006: RMB30,000,000) has been recognised. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the impairment is made based on
their best estimation with reference to the market situation and
circumstances of the securities trading company.

WRHMEREROGBER QA
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23. ¥R 23. INVENTORIES
—ETtEF ZETRF
2007 2006
AR®FTT ARKFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R AR Raw materials 46,678 31,458
ER M Work-in-progress 51,528 67,456
E K SR Finished goods 174,881 112,118
R & Consumables 12,954 13,324
286,041 224,356
VAR] B 33 ) FE 51 BR < AR & B ZE K o Included in the above were finished goods of approximately
BRRE E & £ A K% 9,209,0007T RMB9,209,000 (2006: RMB21,549,000) carried at net
(ZZZTRF : AR%21,549,000 realisable value.
JT) e

24. BWIRRRETCEIRIE 24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

- 34 o3 ZTEREF

2007 2006

AR¥TFTT ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

G E T Trade and bills receivables 261,506 246,190
W BRI RE R Less: Allowance for bad and

doubtful debts of trade receivables (14,185) (12,691)

247,321 233,499

HyRIER « & RIFEMFIE  Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 42,046 52,423
" EERBRBREE Less: Allowance for bad and

doubtful debts of other receivables (7,566) (2,776)

34,480 49,647

281,801 283,146

WRFTERERGDBR LA ﬁE
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24, BEERRETEIKKRIE 24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(#&) (continued)

AEBZHOBEE 2 EEHYUUE
BESNHRRELNETHEHE - B

THRERESEEIIBAMNRIN » AE
ERRBSEAEEFHETRERPH
FRERER 120K ©

The Group’s turnover from export sales is on letter of credit
or documents against payment. The Group allows an average
credit period of 120 days granted to its trade customers for
PRC local sales, except for some particular customers where
payment in advance is normally required.

R-ZEZLF+_A=+—H [
Wik s R R iz (B MR B MR AR IE
BB BRI

At 31st December 2007, the ageing analysis of the trade and
bills receivables, net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts
of trade receivables is as follows:

—ETtF —EEREF
2007 2006
AR#TFT ARKTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F R Within one year 240,537 186,017
ZR—FEIRMF More than one year but
less than two years 3,530 39,584
ZRMFELR=F More than two years but
less than three years 2,688 7,898
ZR=%F Over three years 566 —
247,321 233,499

R-EBEEZL R -_FFRFEF+ /=
+—H  BEEBBEREELRE

At 31st December 2007 and 2006, the ageing of trade
receivables which are past due but not impaired are as

K FE R IR 2 BRER D AT LA T follows:

—EZTtEF ZETRF
2007 2006
AR¥TiT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FRA Within one year 11,368 24,768

ZR—FEIRMF More than one year but
less than two years 3,249 29,022

ZRMEEIN=F More than two years but
less than three years 1,792 5,265
ZR=F More than three years 566 —
R Total 16,975 59,055

14) WRHMEREROGBER QA
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24.

HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances

RELBERN - NEBREHE are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
AR R R - hold any collateral over these balances.
FEU AR R B AR B s 0 B D RE A5 Movements in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts of
trade receivables in aggregate during the year are as follows:
—ETLF ZEERF
2007 2006
AR % Fir ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FHIREE Balance at beginning of the year 12,691 10,770
JE 5 AR SRR S AR B R 4 D Increase in allowance for bad and
doubtful debts of trade receivables 6,254 12,131
F A SR Be U Bl 2 FRIE Amounts written off as uncollectible (4,760) (10,210)
FURERTR Balance at end of the year 14,185 12,691

Movements in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts of

HERIBRRRZRERNE

15 other receivables in aggregate during the year are as follow:
—EETLHF —EERF
2007 2006
AR®FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FYIERTE Balance at beginning of the year 2,776 2,523
Hy B R RER Increase in allowance for bad and
BB doubtful debts of other receivables 6,646 2,558
FAMEHAR LU B 2 FRIA Amounts written off as uncollectible (1,856) (2,305)
FURGREE Balance at end of the year 7,566 2,776

25. B EEZEKRATHRIEA 25. AMOUNT DUE FROM IMMEDIATE

HOLDING COMPANY

U B R AR N B 2 E 2 e The amount due from immediate holding company is
=N :J:Ei = lit—n)\ unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand and are trading
HAESEHIE - HEERA R A in nature. The immediate holding company has undertaken

to settle and receive all amounts due to and due from the
fellow subsidiaries. As at 31st December 2007, the amount
due from immediate holding company represents the net
balance due from and to the immediate holding company and
the fellow subsidiaries.

B8 I AR (o] 7 W R A (R AR PR o8
YNGR/ Sy 72t¢+ A=
T—B  BURERZERARFIET
FE U K B B R A %’&T&Hi&ﬁﬁ
BRRZFE -

WRHMEFHREROBR QA
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26. W () BELFTREA

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES

—EZTtF ZETRF
2007 2006
AR#TFTT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JrE L Bk 2 N B FRIR Amounts due from associates 7,558 12,940
BERNTAER —FUR Loan to an associate
(MtiE21) — due within one year (note 21) — 6,921
7,558 19,861
JE 1~ Bt A R FRIE Amount due to an associate (125) —
FEU () Bt A BIGRIB B KR Amounts due from (to) associates are unsecured, interest-
RERAREKREER - free and repayable on demand.
27. BITEARERFERFR 27. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
RIR A B B IR 1T 5 5] M RIT AT The amount represents deposits pledged to bank to secure
HifpEMERETEER - ARG short-term banking facilities granted to the Group in respect
BERRTANEZEZRERSEN of bills and letter of credit facilities and are therefore classified
30%ZE100%/E BRI IR TER P17 AR as current assets. In accordance with the facilities agreements,
TRHAEZSRIES - WERLESR the Group is required to place deposits, which is amounted
i’]l%ﬁ HY - AP IRIT A [ R R from 30% to 100% of the face value of the issued bills to the
& PBERRBDEE - ZZFRE banks. The deposits carry fixed interest rate from 0.72% to
FRZEEMNERFEERH.72% 2.67% (2006: 2.07%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits
E2.67% (ZZTZRF : 2.07%) ° will be released upon the settlement of relevant bank
RITARRER - BREBERTE borrowings.
REBERD o
28. MTHEEMIR 28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
—EStEF ZETRF
2007 2006
AR¥TiT ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TTETATBEMEST Derivative not under hedge accounting:
INEREIEHANARE Fair value of foreign currency
forward contracts 15,897 134

WRHMEREROGBER QA
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

28. 1€MW TH »#) 28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)
REBERI N AET BB 2 R

A R-FEBLEF A=+
B R BB R A ) 2 E B

The Group had entered into forward contracts denominated
in USD. The major terms of the foreign currency forward
contracts outstanding at 31st December 2007 are as follows:

{EFIMT

Z2HBeHT FXAE ExE
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates
i £ 3,000,000 7T 20081 A 11H 0.1322E T HIARK
Sell USD3,000,000 11th January 2008 USDO0.1322 to RMB1
H & 2,000,0003 7T 20081 A 248 0.1352ZFE L L IAR ¥
Sell USD2,000,000 24th January 2008 USDO0.1352 to RMB1
A& 3,000,000 7T 2008%F2 A 14H 0.1324FE L R IAR ¥
Sell USD3,000,000 14th February 2008 USDO0.1324 to RMB1
i & 2,000,0003 7T 20082 H22H 0.1356 L A 1IA R
Sell USD2,000,000 22nd February 2008 USDO0.1356 to RMB1
&£ 3,000,000 7T 200843 F12H 0.1327E L AL IAR M
Sell USD3,000,000 12th March 2008 USDO0.1327 to RMB1
&£ 2,000,000 7T 20083 A 24H 0.1361%E L AL 1IA R
Sell USD2,000,000 24th March 2008 USDO0.1361 to RMB1
&£ 5,000,000 7T 200844 A 8H 0.1351E TR 1IARK
Sell USD5,000,000 8th April 2008 USDO0.1351 to RMB1
H & 5,000,000 7T 200845 A 8H 0.1354FE L L IAR ¥
Sell USD5,000,000 8th May 2008 USDO0.1354 to RMB1
i€ 5,000,0003< 7T 2008%F6 A6H 0.1356FE L X 1A R
Sell USD5,000,000 6th June 2008 USDO0.1356 to RMB1
i & 6,000,0003< 7T 20087 H18H 0.1374FE L R IAR M
Sell USD6,000,000 18th July 2008 USDO0.1374 to RMB1
&% 5,000,000 7T 20088 14 H 0.1401E L L IA R
Sell USD5,000,000 14th August 2008 USDO0.1401 to RMB1
&% 5,000,000 7T 20089 F12H 0.1409% L L 1IA R
Sell USD5,000,000 12th September 2008 USDO0.1409 to RMB1
&€ 5,000,000 7T 2008410 A 14H 0.1418E TR IARK
Sell USD5,000,000 14th October 2008 USDO0.1418 to RMB1
&€ 5,000,000 7T 2008411 A14H 0.1427FE L R IAR ¥
Sell USD5,000,000 14th November 2008 USDO0.1427 to RMB1
i & 3,000,0003< 7T 20081 H14H 0.1322FE L R IAR M
Sell USD3,000,000 14th January 2008 USDO0.1322 to RMB1
Ji & 3,000,0003< 7T 2008F2H19H 0.1325E L L IA R
Sell USD3,000,000 19th February 2008 USDO0.1325 to RMB1
&£ 3,000,000 7T 20083 F14H 0.1326E L AL 1IA R

Sell USD3,000,000

14th March 2008

USDO0.1326 to RMB1

The above derivatives are measured at fair value at each
balance sheet date, determined based on the quoted prices
from financial institutions for equivalent instruments.

FRASTETARSEEBEAAE
A HAAREDNRAFTARR
TRBBEMRCTEET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRA 2 251 R A4 #)
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

29. BUTFRRA KR 29. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
BOTERRRESERBIERTHE Bank balances and cash comprises bank balances and cash
;o BHeAR=EAskATaRE held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with maturity
TR -REBRITEREHARE of three months or less which are interest-bearing at prevailing
57,046,0007C (ZETNF : AR market rates. The short-term bank deposits of RMB57,046,000
10,000,0007T) H) [E € F 5| = & (2006: RMB10,000,000) carry fixed interest rates ranged
1.71%E2.88% (=T ZT /N F from 1.71% to 2.88% per annum (2006: 1.62% to 2.07% per
1.62%%2.07%) ° annum).
HRTHERRRESER - BEH< Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
AIETI e B 2 SN SNEEFHE - denominated in foreign currencies other than the functional
currency of the Group to which they relate:

—EZTtEF ZETRF

2007 2006

AR#TFT ARETFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

BT EUR 3,912 2,545

ET UsD 50,915 38,446

BT HKD 19 1

Bt Japanese Yen 6 —

30. JEHHEZEE 30. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

BE_ZTTRF+-_A=1+—8"
AEEEAEEASLE—EEE
BENEED R LHERAEZANE
ER0R - ZHIMEEMRAEEZ
Heh —RMBRRERM D AE -
AEEBRISHRAEER - B2
ZERFTA=+—H F@A&
EZHREZMERFRBHKER
HEREDFRE - Wit ALt
ZIEANEERBRREEMESEE
FHEZEER  TAERRER
18 o REEY) KT E A BN
HEFEBE_TTLF+_A=
T—HLEFEERE -

SALE

For the year ended 31st December 2006, the Group had a
committed plan to dispose of prepaid lease payments on
land use rights and buildings erected thereon, which was
previously used as an office premise for one of the Company'’s
subsidiary, were no longer utilised. A search was underway
for a buyer. The net proceeds of disposal were expected to
exceed the net carrying amount of the relevant assets,
therefore no impairment loss was recognised on
reclassification of the prepaid lease payments on land use
rights and buildings as assets held for sale as at 31st
December 2006. The prepaid lease payments on land use
rights and buildings were disposed of during the year ended
31st December 2007.
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31.

32.

FEMEEREREMFE o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

BB £ iRk B 7 E B 1 3R IR
R-FBLE+-A=+—B @

31.

HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

At 31st December 2007, the ageing analysis of the trade and

HERREBDERROTAT ¢ bills payables is as follows:
—ETLF —FEER
2007 2006
AR¥TFrT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F AR Within one year 156,140 198,906
ZR—FEIRMRE More than one year but
less than two years 6,528 10,388
ZHRMEELR=ZF More than two years but
less than three years 9,233 428
Bl =F Over three years 4,455 3,358
176,356 213,080
HEENHERETER Other payables and accrued charges 93,451 53,267
269,807 266,347

R-ZEZLF+-_A=+—H"  H
mﬁgﬁ,yxlﬁﬁﬁﬁr%ﬁﬁﬁ AT%E
10,646,00077:(22?3/\¢ D HE) o

As at 31st December 2007, included in other payables and
accrued charges amounted to RMB10,646,000 (2006: Nil)
are receipt in advance from a minority shareholder.

MIEMEHETER 32. UNSECURED SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS
zﬁitﬁ :gg/\i
2007 2006
AR%¥FiT AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000

EIRH 2 RITER Unsecured bank loans
n— EmﬂJﬁlﬁ due within one year 206,819 235,234

A ESBIENHMEGE -

‘5\_7 C+FE+—_HA=+—8 ' iR

ERBELN AR 160,000,0007T
E?A’iﬁiiﬂfs 216%%7.290%
8 BTIRITEREZSHEFR
EILZ BB IRITRIZEFEFEMNI%E
1.2%:t & °

JrA—= 7/\£|5+ A= + H - fETT
BEIEIEL) AR ¥ 185,000,000 T E
% [E] & & F| % 5.508% % 5.580%x1
B B NRITERANEEFRRE
BABRT H%ﬁ,%\%IJTjJnl.Z%;rE\o

The above amounts bear interest at prevailing market rates.

At 31st December 2007, bank loans include approximately
RMB160,000,000 fixed-rate borrowings which carry interest
at 5.216% to 7.290% per annum. The remaining bank loans
are floating-rate borrowings which carry interest ranging from
HIBOR plus 1% to HIBOR plus 1.2% per annum.

At 31st December 2006, bank loans included approximately
RMB185,000,000 fixed-rate borrowings which carry interest
at 5.508% to 5.580% per annum. The remaining bank loans
are floating-rate borrowings which carry interest at HIBOR
plus 1.2% per annum.

WRHMEFHREROBR QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




e EERERERMFE o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(IRIEE & L imRA 2 251 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

32. MIBHEMMITER @ 32. UNSECURED SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS
(continued)
REBUEHEEE AR 2T The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies
Nz EBFIRZEEMT ! other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:
B TFoT
Hong Kong Dollars
‘000
R-IBEE+F+_A=+— As at 31st December 2007 50,000
R-BEERF+_A=+— As at 31st December 2006 50,000
RZZEZ+F+—A=+—H ' =& During the year ended 31st December 2007, the Group
SERGHEERSERARE obtained new loans in the amount of approximately
299,237,0007C (ZEZFRF : AR RMB299,237,000 (2006: RMB323,011,000). These loans
#323,011,0007T) ° EFHIETIHF) carry interest at prevailing market rates and will be repayable
XA BUABR_ZZNFL2HE in 2008.
3% o
33. B&&F 33. SHARE CAPITAL
ZE3LE ZEERE
2007 2006
BTREWES il 4 AEBFT i ARETFT
Number of Number of
Issued and fully paid: shares '000 RMB'000 shares '000 RMB000
EERASREEARRLT State-owned shares of RMB1 each
iz | At 1st January 163,259 163,259 214,440 214,440
RESERERD (Hzt1) Decrease as a result of
Revised Share Reform (note 1) - — (26,654) (26,654)
ETEARD (F3t2) Transfer to PRC legal person shares (note 2) - - (24,527) (24,527)
RT=A=t-H At 31st December 163,259 163,259 163,259 163,259
BREARSREEARRLT Promoters’ shares of RMB1 each
®-A-A At st January 16,720 16,720 16,720 16,720
REEEAREAR Transfer to A shares (16,720) (16,720) - -
Rt=A=1-H At 31st December — - 16,720 16,720
EAREREEARRLT PRC legal person shares of RMB1 each
®-A-A At st January 24,521 24,521 - =
REERHEA (f2) Transfer from state-owned shares (note 2) - - 24,521 24,521
RT=A=t-H At 31st December 24,521 24,521 24,52 24,52
RERNEREEARKLT Senior management shares of RMB1 each
®-A-A At st January 39 39 44 44
RESEXERSERBTHD Net decrease as a result of
Revised Share Reform and
resign of senior management — — (5) (5)
RELE R ERETHD Net decrease as a result of shares sold
from senior management (8) (8) — —
R+=ZA=+-H At 31st December 31 31 39 39

152)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRAN 2 S5 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

33. BF #® 33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
EZtE ZTERF
2007 2006
BOTRELKEF T ARBTT T ARETFT
Number of Number of
Issued and fully paid: shares '000 RMB’000 shares '000 RMB’000
AEWREER (TAK)) RMB ordinary shares
EREEAR%®LT (A Shares) of RMB1 each
®—A—AH At 1st January 102,768 102,768 76,109 76,109
RESESER Net increase as a result of
BERBTEM (F1) Revised Share Reform ad
resign of senior management (note 1) — — 26,659 26,659
BREREEEZAREEEEA Transfer from promoter and
senior management 16,728 16,728 - -
R+=—A=+-A At 31st December 119,496 119,496 102,768 102,768
H5h Emm s A (THik]) Overseas listed foreign invested shares
SREEAR%LT (H Shares) of RMB1 each
R—A—-BRt+=-A=t+—A At 1st January and 31st December 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000
457,313 457,313 457,313 457,313

Bt - Notes:

1. BEARRBRESBHNRESR © K 1. In accordance with the revised share reform of the Company for the
DRIFETBARIRR —FERE - R conversion of non-tradable A shares to tradable A shares during the
RABZEEERAR  ARESE year ended 31st December 2006 (“Revised Share Reform”), the
NEH RE A ME SR B &M holder of the non-tradable A shares, SXPGC, which was also an
KRR R AR R F 100 @A immediate holding company of the Company, offered as consideration,
fRIEH B3 5AREI B HE o FrEERa L 3.5 shares of non-tradable A shares of the Company for every 10
H T %11 26,653,665 EIERHE tradable A shares held by A share shareholders as registered on the
EERART S BN - B registration date in respect of the implementation of the Revised
R BT EEE BRI ZH RSFE Share Reform . Upon the completion of the reform, SXPGC offered
= © 26,653,665 non-tradable A shares as condition to have trading right

in the A share market. These shares rank pari passu in all respects
with other shares in issue.

2. REZZBTRF+—A=Z+tRH &2 2. On 27th November 2006, the Company received a notice from

RIERFERLREA - HEBENAR
AR ALAIAE - FIERERE
A o BiFERERENAA RN
WRIAHRE  AARERERZHRN
FEBEAEA SR RENEAR
RE=HAmMmETHSELS TE
BHMBERMREERETEBER
HHBAR (TREQARAREKEAR
7)) MESAAD « B - FTEERESA
H)ZN A ) 485t #924,527,0008% A% 15 ©
MWEDEMEBP - EBEFAN
RKARIRMDBHEEHBE ALY
187,786,000% ({5 AN A Bl A& AR AN 49
41.06%) Ji > 738 2 1% 49163,259,000
& (R 752 7] 48 A% 247 35.70%) °

SXPGC that shares held by SXPGC in the Company have been
subject to judicial sale, judicial freezing and pledging. The said
judicial sale, judicial freezing and pledging of shares held by SXPGC
in the Company is due to various loans to SXPGC and guarantees
given by SXPGC for its own benefits and the benefits of its subsidiaries
and third parties, and financial disputes involving SXPGC and SXPGC
subsidiaries (but excluding the Company and its subsidiaries). As a
result, a total of approximately 24,527,000 shares held by SXPGC
in the Company have been sold via judicial auction, and the total
shares held by SXPGC in the Company before and after the said
sale has decreased from approximately 187,786,000 (representing
approximately 41.06% of the total share capital of the Company) to
approximately 163,259,000 (representing approximately 35.70% of
the total share capital of the Company).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRA 2 251 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

3. RIEFMBM(BTE) &R 34. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES
REEBFNECHMSEH (BE) 8F The movements in deferred tax (assets) liabilities of the
BT Group during the year are as follows:
B ER BEIRARECEH RE 5t
Change in fair value of
Accounting provisions  financial instruments Others Total
ZEEEE —TTRG ZEELEE _—TINF ZBEBEE _—TIRF ZBEBEEE —_TTRE
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARBTT ARETI
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

R—=A—H

At 1st January 3,361 3,098 — — 826 948 4,187 4,046
REF AEENR

Charge to equity for the year — — 51,410 — — — 51,410 —

REEHARERIR GIA)

Charge (credit) to consolidated

income statement for the year (11,850) 263 2,385 — (148) (122) (9,613) 141
HERENHE
Effect of change in tax rate 1,539 — — — (370) — 1,169 —
Rt=A=+—H
At 31st December (6,950) 3,361 53,795 — 308 826 47,153 4,187
—ZTtEEF —ETRE
2007 2006
AR¥TiT ARKTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEBBERERD Net deferred tax assets recognised
FIEEFT BT A E on the balance sheet (2,157) —
REEBBERERR Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
FIREFEH AR on the balance sheet 49,310 4,187
47,153 4,187

| WURFTERERHGBIRADF
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35.

FEMEEREREMFE o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

BIEFRRIR(BE) AR
(4)

RZEBEE+F+_A=1+—0 " &
& B R {58 FR T 4K 40 A5 2R 1 B O 75 75
B R4 AR ¥ 1,097,000 (ZEF
INEE /\Eﬁé}l,BS&OOO) T R &
X?’rIJ;Fifé% BERETE - LR B IR

LE'STM%)E';'TEJ% = IEFTS R A
E

RZEEZSF+_A=+—H '«
%@ﬁAE%m%AmmeMT
BRERMEER - BRI KRB
4 5 ) B LA PR AT 3K S E R =
B IR B RELEMEHE
E - R-ZTEE+FE+-_RA=+—
B &Rtz E2mR5
EREFTTS mﬁ%uﬁ%ﬁi_gg
+tE&E+-_A=+—"BILFENE
FiiSfiafE -

MITESR

ZK%Z%E?M*%%@%EAE%
200,000,0007C (ZZE/R4F )\E
#300,000,0007T) B E# IR A
IR o ﬁﬁ_ggtEwL_ﬁer—
H A&EBEFRARK
27,184,000 T A R RITA HIESE
FTHER (ZZZRF - &) o

34.

35.

HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES

(continued)

As at 31st December 2007, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately RMB1,097,000 (2006: RMB1,653,000)
available for offsetting against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of these tax losses due
to the unpredictibility of future profit streams.

At 31st December 2006, the Group had deductible temporary
difference of approximately RMB33,414,000. No deferred tax
asset had been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it was not probable that the taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. At 31st December 2007, the
temporary difference has been fully recognised as deferred
tax asset to set off the deferred tax liabilities during the year
ended 31st December 2007.

BANKING FACILITIES

The Group’s banking facilities of RMB200,000,000 (2006:
RMB300,000,000) were guaranteed by the immediate holding
company. As at 31st December 2007, the Group utilised
RMB27,184,000 in respect of bills payables issued to suppliers
(2006: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRA 2 251 R A4 #)
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

36. WiBME LT

(@)

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

RZZZT+F—HA—H &% (@)  On 1st January 2007, the Group acquired 0.1% equity
EiEE0.1%%E — A f =& interests in an existing 50% held associate, Xinhua-
#= - REAIETT6,0007T (KIA Perrigo for a consideration of US$6,000 (equivalent to

R¥46,0007T) ° £t Z A1

approximately RMB46,000). The acquisition has been

HE-BNSARNERFAEN accounted for using the purchase method.
50%E5 &R A o thRUEEE i

BEEMAAK -

FrigiEr B A ﬂZTE&%/E’ﬂJﬁ The fair value of net assets acquired approximate to
EREEZARERESE their carrying amounts.
5] Zﬂﬁﬁﬁlﬁik%% o
g FEEE Net assets acquired:
2007%E1H1H
1/1/2007
ARKEFT
RMB’000
Mz - REREE Property, plant and equipment 43,987
JEUEBRE N R E B fEUWEIE  Trade and other receivables 2,742
T ,%’i Inventories 10,365
TR ERE Bank balances and cash 4,731
F’EHEE N HEER 5 Trade and other payables (9,517)
JE& A5F AR BR K38 Amounts due to shareholders (14,240)
38,068
D HR R = Minority interests (18,996)
BRE Total consideration 19,072
BATARAZN Satisfied by:
He Cash 46
NI Interests in associates 19,026
19,072
E U E £ R Net cash inflow arising
REMAFEE from acquisition:
ENRERE Cash consideration paid (46)
Frit R SR1T4 % %3R4 Bank balances and cash acquired 4,731
4,685
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

36. BB AR &)

@

(b)

(&

FE-GHER T+ F—
B—H (WER) ZF4 8 (Jr
BAEENE2FYRERE) -
HASBEREERE AN E
Bl Rl A A RE 111,902,000
JC M A R #59,454,0007T °

RZZBEZELF+—A=+
H  AARE—HRFBE49%
TS = A A — LR oA
FELERERA A (R HE
#=|) & A R%6,000,000
T BE—FBRERAEET
BRI - 38 E R 8 AN A A
K Hb 37 5 5 #E 25 7R 499038
HNZE58.56% - (A £ B JR
H O % RSB R A
T FTIAD B AGERER
Baa ([RIEWRE]) - thix
WEBRBEEFHEAR -

FrUEEM B A R Z AT R &
ENBBEZARBERARES
BZREELEEAZE -

HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

Xinhua-Perrigo contributed RMB111,902,000 and
RMB9,454,000 to the Group’s turnover and profit
respectively for the period between the date of
acquisition and the balance sheet date, which is also
the whole accounting year of the Group.

On 30th November 2007, the Company increases its
investment cost of RMB6,000,000 in an associate, I
RAMFELEGR A ([KHFZE]). The capital
injection is not in proportion to the existing shareholding
in X ¥7%E, as a result, the Company’s interest held
in KT increased from 49% to 58.56%, also the
Group controlled the financial and operating policies
of Kiti¥7Z= and therefore classified as a deemed
acquisition of subsidiary (“deemed acquisition”). The
deemed acquisition has been accounted for using the
purchase method.

The fair value of net assets acquired approximate to
their carrying amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRA 2 251 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

36. WBMEAT &) 36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
o) (#&) (b)  (continued)

R B EE Net assets acquired:

2007%E 118 30H

30/11/2007

ARKEFT

RMB’000

M - BRERZE Property, plant and equipment 23,690

EEIRR Construction in progress 3,576

JEUWBR X R E B EUEIE Trade and other receivables 14,891

EE Inventories 16,579

RITERERE Bank balances and cash 6,759

FESBRFX R E EEFI5XIE Trade and other payables (23,962)

41,533

DB R S Minority interests (22,477)

wRE Total consideration 19,056

BATAAZN Satisfied by:
R Cash 6,000
Bt N Al = Interests in associates 13,056

19,056

R EEEN Net cash inflow arising
WEMAFEE : from acquisition:
ENBEEKE Cash consideration paid (6,000)
ik BRI ERTT45 88 L3R & Bank balances and cash acquired 6,759
759
AT E R U EE B EHF 45 B AHEFTEE had no significant contribution to the Group’s
SR BB & K5 ORI revenue and profit before tax for the period between
RBEERNER ° the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.
MR —_ZEEL+F—A—H= If the acquisition had been completed on 1st January
RUEE - I AREE 2 & 2007, there would have been no significant impact on
2B N R AW E K the Group’s turnover and profit for the year. The pro
B HELXEBRTEMRRE - forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
MmAMEE MW ESER is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
—_EE+F—A—HE R of operations of the Group that actually would have
o AREEBEER 2 WBA been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
Raras2aE - g JEFE R R 1st January 2007, nor is it intended to be a projection
WEELE o of future results.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRAN 2 S5 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

37. HkifE 37. COMMITMENTS
(a) HBEFEE (a) Capital commitments
() HEEIERYZE K (i)  Commitments for construction in progress and
BRI property, plant and equipment
REFALE  REET At the balance sheet date, the Group had the
ERBHEREEMEE following capital commitments principally related
EXENEEIRER to construction in progress, purchase of land
BEWZE  BELTH use rights and purchase of property, plant and
ERE -  BERE X equipment in respect of buildings and
B RBEERMNE production facilities which were not provided
AENR for in the consolidated financial statements.
—ETtF ZTTRN
2007 2006
AR % Fir ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B R A EREE Contracted but not provided 26,511 15,621
EHEEREL Authorised but not contracted for 235,380 143,270
261,891 158,891
(b) WBEHFXIE (b) Commitments under operating leases
KEEERABEN The Group as lessee
REERBEEHNLHNR The Group leases certain of its retail shops under
EEETZER - ZEWE operating lease arrangements. Lease for properties
A 2 EEER F R —F are negotiated for a term ranging from one to five
ERFERBETEHESE years and rentals are under fixed rate.
MREZR - AEBIREASA At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
BB E RN T 5 R BB for future minimum lease payments under non-
21 PR B AR R A AR 2 A FE 4D cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:
T~
ot 1 42 —ETRF
2007 2006
AR¥FTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within one year 545 597
E_EZFERF In the second to fifth year inclusive 553 176
hF & Over five years — 81
1,098 854

WRHMEFHREROBR QA

159

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




160

e EERERERMFE o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRA 2 251 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

37. #kig @) 37. COMMITMENTS (continued)
(c) HTEXIE (c) Other Commitments
NZZEE+FE+_HA=1— The Group had capital commitment which authorised
B AEEBBEEZINEER but not contracted for totalling RMB16,100,000 in
—XMEBARREREER respect of the additional capital injection in a subsidiary
BHNEREER/RARE as at 31st December 2007.
16,100,0007T °
AEERZZTEARE+T=A As at 31st December 2006, the Group had capital
=+t —HEBREER 8 commitment contracted but not provided for totalling
=N A 49%RERE EL(E RMB7,440,000 in respect of investment in an associate
REBEHE 2 BN EE 2 5 with 49% equity interest. The associate was engaged
B ANR#7,440,0007T © HHEE in production and sale of chemical products in the
ERBINTZXBERNTE PRC.
SERHEIER
38. RAARK 38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REZZETLF+A=1+—HIF For the year ended 31st December 2007, the Group provided
B AEBRBRITRESBERT financial guarantee to a bank in respect of bills of exchange
—RBME = AR RAERARTT amounted to RMB14,000,000 granted to an independent
EAERG TARRBET —KRMB third party which the bills of exchange would be issued to
A A4 HE AK#14,000,0007T ° 40 a subsidiary of the Company. The Group is only liable to the
RAARRITALEREE - B difference between the face value of bills of exchange issued
SERYRTHANERZESHE by the bank and the amounts on bill of landing. As at 31st
HRERAE FNeB EZHAR December 2007, bills of exchange amounted to
HEEE M EZLE+-A= RMB7,000,000 and bill of landing amounted to RMB6,500,000
+—H HROEHRAEAAR have been issued respectively by the bank (2006: Nil).

7,000,000 C/EE - MiREBMES
%A AR #6,500,0000C ° (ZFZ
JNAF ) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEE & L imRAN 2 S5 R A4 #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

39. AREALES 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@ BREFBRERTEEIN (a)  Except as disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated
REEEHRETIFEEBKLEE financial statements, the other significant related party
NETLERBEREALTR transactions, which were carried out in the normal
STEEMT : course of the Group’s business are as follows:
—ETtHE —TTRE
2007 2006
ARBTT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
W SXPGC:
— XA — Payment of annual trademark
(Hfzt1) licence fee (Note 1) 1,100 1,000
-Hex — Rental expense 500 500
—BEEWE FEN&EZE — Purchase of property, plant and equipment — 1,499
FHRMEAT : Fellow subsidiaries:
—HEKEAREME  — Sale of water, electricity, steam and
raw materials 14,036 13,160
— B RV — Purchase of raw materials 96,730 72,293
—HE WA — Rental income 952 1,438
—fHe&X — Rental expense 370 —
—RETBHA — Design fee income 10 =
—-BEME BENZE — Purchase of property plant and equipment
R 3 e and land use rights 3,358 =
BRELT : Associates:
—HEKER — Sale of water, electricity and steam — 6,766
—REEM R — Purchase of raw materials 34,768 6,421
—FERA — Interest income received — 270
—SHERM — Sale of technical know-how = 2,005
—HERRM — Sale of work-in-progress — 4,759
—HEWE  BENKE — Sale of property, plant and equipment — 1,708
—RETBMA — Design fee income 31 =
DPERE : Minority shareholder:
—HELBRF 5 — Sale of bulk pharmaceuticals and
Rt TREE chemical materials 175,989 =
—FBCIRE — Purchase of chemical materials, water,
FKER electricity and steam 2,938 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

39. BREALTES @

(@) (&)
Wist

1. E—AANFE+=A£A -
REFEEE T BEERE -
PEIRE R R B &%
SNNE G - R ENE
(MEED BFEFBAAR
#600,0007T © HEEFFIE
# AR #100,0007C * HE
FEEINLELRAREK
1,100,0007T ' WLEFE
HRTE - HERHET AR
1E © B ERER IR A K
R (E=E2—==-A=
+NAB)FEER  WET
HEEEREGAREEE
¥ AEEHE_TTLE
+=—A=+—BIEFEEZH
#F & A AR 1,100,000
T(ZETRE: AR¥
1,000,0007T) °

2. AR SR IR B i o BT A 0B
T RZHE - KA
(HifE (BB AR]) BEX
RHETER SR B OB IRIR
TREXR - BIE =TT
FH—RA=1+—HLLFE
AEEREETARINRE
BAELCEAHERREER
REME 2R 5 - RAFZ
EEARUEEEAREY
RS RIEBHRIFER -
i R BB 5 b 32 5 3008
BEERZEREE EAE
o B EEEADE R
& AAREERAUER
SI PR E R Z 5T
R

() RZBELF+-_A=+-—
B AEEZ&REERAR
BAREBZRTERAELA
R #:80,000,0007T }2 £ 1%
(ZZ2EZREFE : AR
180,000,0007T) °

WRHMEREROGBER QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(@)

(b)

(continued)

Notes:

1.

On 7th December 1996, the Group was granted the exclusive
right to use the trademark “Xinhua” (“Trademark”) by SXPGC
for its existing and future products in and outside the PRC
at an initial annual fee of RMB600,000 increasing at the rate
of an extra RMB100,000 per year until the annual fee reaches
the cap amount of RMB1,100,000, which shall stay as such
until the agreement is terminated. The terms of the agreement
shall continue to have effect during the validity period of the
Trademark, being 28th February 2013, subject to further
renewal of the registration of the Trademark. During the year
ended 31st December 2007, the annual fee paid by the
Group amounting RMB1,100,000 (2006: RMB1,000,000).

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly owned or
controlled by the PRC government through its numerous
authorities, affiliates or other organisations (collectively
“State-owned Enterprises”). During the year ended 31st
December 2007, the Group had transactions with State-
owned Enterprises including, but not limited to, sales of
pharmaceutical products and purchases of raw materials.
The directors of the Company consider that transactions
with other State-owned Enterprises are activities in the
ordinary course of business, and that dealings of the Group
have not been significantly controlled or owned by the PRC
government. The Group has also established pricing policies
for products and such pricing policies do not depend on
whether or not the customers are State-owned Enterprises.
Having due regard to the substance of the relationships, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that none of
these transactions is a material related party transaction
that requires separate disclosure.

At 31st December 2007, the ultimate holding company

provides guarantee in respect of bank loans amounted

to RMB80,000,000 (2006: RMB180,000,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

BEREAETEZS @) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(c) EEZEEAEZWHN (c)  Compensation of key management personnel
REEEERECEEERE The remuneration of directors and other members of
ABZHMTIBRMT key management during the year was as follows:

—E2tF ZEERF
2007 2006
AR¥TIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEEA Short-term benefits 2,491 2,592
BEZRRHE 247 Post-employment benefits 172 168
2,663 2,760
EERTEEBEABZEHN The remuneration of directors and key executives is

(d)

BITREREFHER SR
BEAXRBEETSBEE
= o

KA R EAR 7] 2 R FH B
ANF—IURHFETERMN A
BATI(HEIZ| )R -Z
EHE-A -+ -BFIR
EER S METERH
AR EIETT144,0000%
EABRAER A REE4.57TH
BiRA £ AR%648,0007T
L RN/ D

(d)

determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

On 22nd January 2007, the Company entered into an
agreement with a fellow subsidiary of the Company,
Shandong Xinhua Industry & Trade Company Limited
(LLIRFZETERM AR AR (“Xinhua Industry & Trade
Company”) in relation to the acquisition of 144,000
legal person shares of Bank of Communications in the
total consideration of RMB648,000 at RMB4.5 per
share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

HE—ZTT+FF-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

40. MHELT 40.
R-BEE+FE+-_A=+—H 2K
BRI

A I
HELREE BXREEHM
Place of

Name of subsidiary

incorporation and
kind of legal entity

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of Company'’s subsidiaries as at 31st December 2007
are as follows:

gEMEF ER
31 AR IERBRESHE
Issued and fully
paid share capital/ Effective  Principal activities

registered capital interest held  and place of operation

REFERBERRAA
Dongying Xinhua Drug Store
Company Limited

R RE (RN) AR A A
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Europe) GmbH

WRHEREEHERAA
Shandong Xinhua Medical Trading
Company Limited

HEHERERE (25 BR AT
Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy (Chain)
Company Limited

HBHERERRARAF
Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Design Institute Company Limited

HERENAREERAALT
Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest
Pharmaceutical Company Limited

WRHFEHEEROFREEAT
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Import & Export Company Limited

hE - FREEAT
PRC, limited company

8 ARALAA

Germany, limited company

hE - EREELA
PRC, limited company

hE - FREEAT
PRC, limited company

E - EREELF
PRC, limited company

hE - ERECAT
PRC, limited company

mE - EREEARA
PRC, limited company

AE#900,0007C 46.64% RABEKEREYRRERRTE
RMB900,000 46.64%  Retail sales of medicine and
medical products in the PRC
B(72650,0007C 76.90% RENEEENREERRES
EUR650,000 76.90%  Trading of medicine and
medical products in Europe
AR 48,498,907 99.76% MPESEENREERRESH
RMB48,498,900 99.76%  Trading of medicine and
medical products in the PRC
AR 2,000,000 88% MHELEENREERRTE
RMB2,000,000 88%  Retail sales of medicine and
medical products in the PRC
AR%2,000,0007T 9% APELERETRENRG
RMB2,000,000 90%  Design of medical production
projects in the PRC
%711,500,0007C 5%  RNPEAERBERRRIHERAE
US$1,500,000 75%  Production and sale of
calcium polycarbophil materials
in the PRC
AR 3,000,000 99.52% MBI O Em kBRI
RMB3,000,000 99.52%  Import and export of

chemical products and
pharmaceutical technical
know-how in the PRC
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEZBEERN G R H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

MELAR &) 40.
R-ET+FE+-—A=+—H2HK
BARMT : (&)
3
G NGE A BEERETERL
Place of

incorporation and

Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity

HE-—TT+HFF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2007

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Details of Company'’s subsidiaries as at 31st December 2007
are as follows: (continued)

HEREx  {]
3 el IERBRESHE
Issued and fully
paid share capital/ Effective  Principal activities

registered capital interest held  and place of operation

HEHE-BNEHE PE - EREELT 716,000,000 5010% ReEEEEYNRBEAR
BEREERA (FE-ATR])

SINO-USA Zibo Xinhua PRC, limited company USD6,000,000 50.10%  Production of medicine and
— Perrigo Pharmaceutical medical products in the PRC
Company Limited (“Xinhua-Perrigo”)

WRAHECRERAT hE - BREEAT AR #32,000,00070 58.56% RME4LERHECIER
([RHHE])

Shandong Dadi Xinhua Chemical PRC, limited company RMB32,000,000 58.56%  Production and sale of
Company Limited (“Dadi Xinhua ") chemical products in the PRC

BOBERIEIARAR TE - EREERF AR %10,000,0007 2087% RPBLERBELIER
([&R{tT))*

Weifang Wanyuan Chemical & PRC, limited company RMB10,000,000 29.87%  Production and sales of
Industrial Company Limited chemical products in the PRC
(“Wanyuan Chemical”)

a A ER B BRI T51%#E s + R a #R{ET is 51% owned by Kb #1%, and has become a subsidiary

ZETHF+— A= T HRERME of the Company after the acquisition of A#h#7% on 30th November
2007.

% BRICIKRERRIZHEA
e

1 I 2 A 4 4 B A £ £
S o

HEQ#®ER 41.
R=FTN\E—A++A  ARF
I TE Ry —HEE S 0 &
ARATIWEHEIERAAER T
HoE AR 22 s - BRI RS
- REAARE9,500,0007T °
o i3 S F 42.

BE—_ZTRF+_HA=t+—HLt
FE - REBIBRCFLENE - U
{E ERAF R 25X o

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 17th January 2008, the Company and Xinhua Industry &
Trade Company entered into a transfer agreement in relation
to the acquisition of Xinhua Industry & Trade Company’s
entire interest, right and title in buildings and land use rights
at a total consideration of RMB9,500,000.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative amounts for the year ended 31st
December 2006 have been reclassified to conform with the
current year’'s presentation.
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ShineWing

certified public accountants

Wt F i i%: +86(010)65542288
telephone: +86(010)65542288

FEFOITARIRIX PR 10 KA 8 5
HPREAKIR

9th Floor, Block A, Fu Hua Mansion
No.8, Chao Yang Men Bei Da Jie, 3 +86(010)6554 7180

Dong Cheng District, facsimile: +86(010)6554 7190
Beijing, 100027, P.R.China

ALL SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements
(consolidated and company) of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31 Dec. 2007, and the income statement, and cash flow
statement, and statement of changes in shareholder’s equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation of
these financial statements in accordance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance
of the People’s Republic of China. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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PRC AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with China’s Auditing Standards for the Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements comply with the requirements
of the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China and present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company
as at 31 Dec.2007, and the results of operations and cash flows
of the Company for the year then ended.

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants

Certified Public Accountant,PRC Lang Zheng
Certified Public Accountant,PRC Zhang Xinwei
Beijing, PRC
18 April 2008
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CONSOLIDATED AND THE PARENT COMPANY'S BALANCE SHEET

(IRZ+ E 5t E R4 #))
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

BE 0= &t BAF
Assets Notes Consolidated Parent Company
2007128 318 200612318 2007 12A318 2006127318
31 December 2007 31 December 2006 31 December 2007 31 December 2006
End. Balance Beg. Balance End. Balance Beg. Balance
ARBT ARET ARBT ARETT
RMB RMB RMB RMB
RHEE : Current assets:
ERES Cash 71 212,257,860.96 162,535,231.19 171,473,812.44 134,014,405.66
RoEEREE Held-for-trade financial assets 7.2 15,896,732.85 133,672.68 15,896,732.85 133,672.68
eSS Notes receivable 73 71,965,993.53 19,430,806.25 54,105,664.07 17,461,774.68
JEMER R Accounts receivable 74 221,089,889.52 269,249,651.02 215,346,436.72 249,187,477.63
BHE Advance to suppliers 75 21,437,818.42 19,872,479.25 20,260,313.40 9,704,886.67
JEMFI 2 Interest receivable = 1,548,365.00 = 1,548,365.00
FE A Dividend receivable = = — —
HiEY Other receivable 76 20,581,451.30 41,624,438.90 28,127,733.96 53,808,365.88
#E Inventies 77 286,041,091.79 224,355,465.93 187,002,774.30 193,112,417.52
—EREEE Non-current assets due
FRBEE within one year = = = =
EtREEE Other current assets = — — —
RBEESH Sub-total of current assets 849,270,838.37 738,750,110.22 692,213,467.74 658,971,365.72
ERDEE : Non-current assets:
TEHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 7.8 367,162,640.00 23,777,318.00 367,162,640.00 23,777,318.00
BAZIBEE Held-to-maturity investment 7.9 — 117,075,500.00 — 117,075,500.00
KRR Long-term receivable = = = =
RERERE Long-term equity investment 710 23,512,190.33 42,580,066.62 131,823,478.19 115,975,461.52
RENEME Investment property — — _ _
ETAE Fixed assets 7.11 853,263,386.97 778,747,090.08 746,249,488.38 758,083,056.05
ERIRE Construction in progress 7.12 71,180,403.06 81,044,943.17 70,537,755.07 81,044,943.17
IENE Construction materials — 4,877,467.51 = 4,877,467.51
BEEERR Disposal of fixed assets = — _ _
EERANEE Biological assets — = = =
HREE Oil and nature gas — = = =
BYAE Intangible assets 7.13 96,647,338.77 93,301,452.81 95,463,885.48 93,238,519.48
RS Research & Development cost — = = =
S Gooduwil = — — —
REGEER Long-term prepayments = = = =
ERHMEHEE Deferred tax assets 7.14 9,678,183.64 7,615,422.95 7,521,605.43 7,615,422.95
R EE Other non-current assets — — — —
FEDEESH Sub-total of non-current assets 1,421,444,142.77 1,149,019,261.14 1,418,758,852.55 1,201,687,688.68
BEMH Total of Assets 2,270,714,981.14 1,887,769,371.36 2,110,972,320.29 1,860,659,054.40
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CONSOLIDATED AND THE PARENT COMPANY'S BALANCE SHEET (continued)

(R 7 B S5t £ A4 7))
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

ARNERESR i3 aft BAE
Liabilities & Shareholders' equity Notes Consolidated Parent Company
2007 12A318 20065124314 2007%12R 318 2006F 127318
31 December 2007 31 December 2006 31 December 2007 31 December 2006
End. Balance Beg. Balance End. Balance Beg. Balance
ARBT ARETT AR¥T ARET
RMB RMB RMB RMB
RBAR Current liabilities
REER Short-term loans 7.15 206,819,000.00 235,233,500.00 166,819,000.00 230,233,500.00
RBlEeHAE held-for-trade
financial liabilities — — — —
EREE notes payable 7.16 30,184,200.00 97,066,900.00 27,184,200.00 97,066,900.00
ERERR Accounts payable 7.17 154,100,269.89 121,904,513.77 112,608,591.46 92,424,962.30
A Advances from customers 7.18 22,385,801.00 9,650,823.43 3,218,722.41 9,118,444.86
ENBTEM Employee benefits payable 7.19 39,725,806.31 31,748,340.76 38,954,024.91 31,748,340.76
EXHE Tax payable 7.20 (2,698,407.78) (642,994.69) (5,606,583.11) 204,825.76
ERFE Interest payable
TR A Dividends payable 7.2 5,506,871.72 5,826,365.75 5,268,267.14 5,826,365.75
R Other payable 7.22 40,580,775.84 29,021,844.06 31,666,915.52 28,392,860.89
—ERE|HH Non-current liabilities
E e} =N due within one year — — — _
EtRBERE Other current liabilities = = = —
RERE D Sub-total of current liabilities 496,604,316.98 529,809,293.08 380,113,138.33 495,016,200.32
FRBAR: Non-current liabilities
RAER Long-term borrowings — = = =
R fES Bonds payable = = = —
RAEMF Long-term payables — — — —
SBERT Specific payables = = = —
Bt AR Provisions = = = —
BREFAEHER Deferred tax liabilities 7.23 53,795,108.23 — 53,795,108.23 —
B ERBER Other non-current liabilities 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00
FRDAGDH Sub-total of
non-current liabilities 57,356,608.23 3,561,500.00 57,356,608.23 3,561,500.00
ffEaH Total liabilities 553,960,925.21 533,370,793.08 437,469,746.56 498,577,700.32
BRER : Shareholders' equity
[ Share capital 1.24 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00
LN Capital surplus 7.25 850,245,800.85 558,919,077.15 850,245,800.85 558,919,077.15
A EFR Less: Treasury stock = = = =
BHRAR Surplus reserve 7.26 164,257,990.01 162,285,764.68 163,595,448.70 162,011,233.56
RAEFE Undistributed profits 1.27 193,496,393.27 171,891,840.60 202,348,494.18 183,838,213.37
IERRNEZT Foreign currency statements
translation difference 647,937.91 708,115.79 — —
RSNG| Sub-total of shareholders'
R ER NG equity attributable to
the parent company 1,665,960,952.04 1,351,117,628.22 1,673,502,573.73 1,362,081,354.08
DPERERET Minority Interest 7.28 50,793,103.89 3,280,950.06 = =
BRERAH Total shareholders' equity 1,716,754,055.93 1,354,398,578.28 1,673,502,573.73 1,362,081,354.08
AENMBRESLT  Total liabilities &
shareholders' equity 2,270,714,981.14 1,887,769,371.36 2,110,972,320.29 1,860,659,054.40
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A ERBLTEHNE X
CONSOLIDATED AND THE PARENT COMPANY'S INCOME STATEMENT

(IRZ+ E 5t E R4 #))
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

)

HB Biat af AT
Item Notes Consolidated Parent Company
07K 20065 W07EE 20065
2007 2006 2007 2006
Current year Last year Current year Last year
cumulatives cumulatives cumulatives cumulatives
ARET ARETT ARET ARET
RMB RMB RMB RMB
- EREA Operating Income .29 1,886,978,951.19 1,722,899,961.83 1,441,720515.03 1,365,810,053.00
o EERA Less:  Operating Cost 7.29 1,602,416,724.99 1,439,645,679.82 1,234,939,353.52 1,100,211,366.84
EERERMM Taxes and surcharges 7.30 11,914,322.55 9,233,548.18 11,303,831.39 8,983,784.77
HEER Selling and distribution
expenses 86,788,904.20 115,767,700.70 37,911,493.16 104,835,371.56
ERER General and administrative
expenses 129,003,027.18 96,169,249.78 117,570,489.74 91,034,309.26
HBER Financial expenses 731 20,220,553.65 20,742,820.77 19,103,870.58 20,703,459.09
BERERX Impairment loss of assets ~ 7.32 15,925 441.13 19,132,768.59 4,444,280.30 19,034,827.05
n:2rEE Add:  Gain or Loss from
EELE changes in fair value 7.33 15,763,060.17 50,510.04 15,763,060.17 50,510.04
el Investment gain or loss 7.34 (1,019,598.87) 6,029,998.09 (5,256,422.87) 6,498,020.71
A HBEAEM  Including: Investment gain or loss
RELEM from joint ventures
BB and associates (3,580,329.93) (698,973.17) (7,817,153.93) (230,950.55)
E3en Exchange gain or loss - = = =
= ERHR Operating profit 35,453,438.79 28,288,702.12 26,953,833.64 27,555,465.18
i EEMEA Add:  Non-operating income 7.35 18,728,400.05 4,147,643.28 18,607,416.95 4,134,099.37
B EFNTE Less:  Non-operating Cost 7.36 7,671,345.36 3,079,044.60 10,069,092.28 3,014,376.11
HbEFHEE  Including: Disposal gain or loss on
REEX non-current assets 3,989,901.88 541,613.13 7,220,276.92 541,613.13
Z. fiBeE Income hefore tax 46,510,493.48 29,357,300.80 35,492,158.31 28,675,188.44
A HERER Less:  Income tax expense 7.37 8,366,209.04 6,603,627.32 6,251,405.76 6,360,056.06
M. B Net profit 38,144,284.44 22,753,673.48 29,240,752.55 22,315,132.38
A EBNEAF  Attributable to: Equity holder of 32,723,034.60 23,567,389.39 29,240,752.55 22,315,132.38
RRMFHE the parent company
PERRER Minority interests 5,421,249.84 (813,715.91) = =
I SheH& Earnings per share
(-)EAERYE  Basic 0.07 0.05 0.06 0.05
(Z)#ESHREE  Diluted 0.07 0.05 0.06 0.05
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EHRBLOTEREAESR
CONSOLIDATED AND THE PARENT COMPANY'S CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(R 7 B S5t £ A4 7))
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

R i3 L BLE
Item Notes Consolidated Parent Company
075K 20065 20075 E 200658
2007 2006 2007 2006
Current year Last year Current year Last year
cumulatives cumulatives cumulatives cumulatives
ARBTARET ABRET ARET
RMB RMB RMB RMB

- EEEDELH CASH FLOW FROM

AeRE: OPERATING ACTIVITIES
HEED R{ESHK  Cash receipts from the sale of

ekl goods or rendering of services 1510,043,727.20 1,375,727,996.66 1,211,918,357.42 1,242,696,484.38
WElmbiERE Receipts of taxes refunds 14,318,790.15 14,165,414.79 6,799,749.67 13,441,545.47
W EfhEEe Other cash receipts ralating to

EHEBNRS operating activities 7.38 31,513,639.69 51,699,308.85 43,944,198.13 54,011,786.60
EEEDRRAADH  SUB-TOTAL OF CASH INFLOWS 1,555,876,157.04 1,441,592,720.30 1,262,662,305.22 1,310,149,816.45
BEES &X4HK  Cash payments for goods purchased

FGLbE and services received 1,066,992,350.69 1,000,338,718.62 853,057,825.71 882,917,963.16
XNEBINRA Cash paid to and on

BIxfimfe behalf of employees 171,799,738.27 132,778,520.19 147,097,161.79 127,298,964.85
XANHEEHE Payments of all types of taxes 65,875,063.72 42,606,345.30 57,302,971.04 40,780,483.75
FAEMELZES  Other cash payments relating to

EBNRS operating activities 7.38 130,617,960.52 132,565,630.11 96,449,919.41 122,147,597.59
EEFDRRKH D SUB-TOTAL OF CASH OUTFLOWS 1,435,285,113.20 1,308,289,214.22 1,153,907,877.95 1,173,145,009.35
EREDELM NET CASH FLOWS FROM

EETd £ 1] OPERATING ACTIVITIES 120,591,043.84 133,303,506.08 108,754,421.21 137,004,807.10

Z RREDELN CASH FLOWS FROM

RgnE: INVESTING ACTIVITIES

WERERIGHE  Cash receipts from disposals and
return of investments 117,000,000.00 - 117,000,000.00 —

DERERR Cash receipts from returns

WERES on investments 4,109,096.06 6,585,061.26 4,109,096.06 6,585,061.26
REETAE Net cash receipts from disposals of

EPEEMEMRE  fixed assets, intangible assets and

EENEMASER other long-term assets 16,638,246.39 10,166,628.02 16,632,050.40 10,166,628.02

RETDAREMEE  Net cash receipts form disposals of
EfREIEEEFE  subsidiaries and other business units = - — -
WEEMEREES  Other cash receipts relating to

E@NRS investing activities = _ - _
REAZDHARFA M SUB-TOTAL OF CASH INFLOWS 137,747,342.45 16,751,689.28 137,741,146.46 16,751,689.28
RREEEE Cash payments to acquire and

EREEMEMRE  construct fixed assets, intangible assets

BEX[NERS and other long-term assets 87,742,491.69 91,192,169.79 85,498,993.95 90,589,258.79
REZfNEE Cash payments to acquire investment 9,158,170.60 13,000,000.00 20,298,170.60 22,008,212.50

EFAEREmESE  Net cash payments for acquisitions of
EMTANRLEE  subsidiaries and other busingss units = - — -
TAEMEREES  Other cash payments relating to

EBNRS investing activities - _ _ _
REZBRQEM ME  SUB-TOTAL OF CASH OUTFLOWS 96,900,662.29 104,192,169.79 105,797,164.55 112,597,471.29
REZDELY NET CASH FLOWS FROM

AeRESH INVESTING ACTIVITIES 40,846,680.16 (87,440,480.51) 31,943,981.91 (95,845,782.01)
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SEHERBAFBREERER o

CONSOLIDATED AND THE PARENT COMPANY'S CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
(ﬁif;;DETffgng%gDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

L Mzt &t BT
Item Notes Consolidated Parent Company
075§ 20065 075K 20065
2007 2006 2007 2006
Current year Last year Current year Last year
cumulatives cumulatives cumulatives cumulatives
ARBT ARETT AR®T ARET
RMB RMB RMB RMB
= EREDEER CASH FLOWS FROM
ReRE: FINANCING ACTIVITIES
RREREIMES  Cash receipts from investors in
making investment in the enterprise — 3,002,737.50 - —
b FAAREOE  Including: Cash receipts from the
S subsidiaries by absorbing the
WilkRs minoriies' equity investment = 3,002,737.50 = =
DEETRZIOEE  Cash receipts from borrowings 260,620,782.00 322,806,150.00 260,620,782.00 317,806,150.00
WElEhEEE Other cash receipts relating to
CELL fkka financing activities = = = =
BEFHRRAA MG SUB-TOTAL OF CASH INFLOWS 260,620,782.00 325,808,887.50 260,620,782.00 317,806,150.00
BEEBZAHNEE  Cash repayments of amounts borrowed 331,767,039.70 502,316,019.22 320,220,063.00 502,316,019.22
AREH - FER Cash payments for distribution of
[EFFIEXMMES  dividends or profits, or cash payments
for interest expenses 19,601,928.40 32,987,403.27 19,199,157.71 32,987,403.27
b FRAATALE  Including: Cash payments by the
RRORA subsidiaries to the
A minority shareholders = = = -
SREMEZEEEH  Other cash payments relating
EBN%E to financing activities = = = =
FEEEHREQAM )  SUB-TOTAL OF CASH OUTFLOWS 351,368,968.10 535,303,422.49 339,419,220.71 535,303,422.49
BREDELR NET CASH FLOWS FROM
AERETH FINANCING ACTIVITIES (90,748,186.10) (209,494,534.99 ) (78,798438.71) (217,497,272.49)
M EXSBHRLR EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RasRmmyE RATE CHANGES ON CASH (3.991,370.85) (1,275,547.85) (3,194,053.69) (1,444,100.70)
 RERBLERM NET INCREASE OF CASH AND
SR CASH EQUIVALENT 66,698,167.05 (164,907,057.27) 58,705,016.78 (177,782,348.10)
n: BNRER Add:  Beginning balance of cash and
ReZENHE cash equivalents 133,134,361.19 298,041,418.46 104,613,535.66 282,395,883.76
~ BRASRES ENDING BALANCE OF CASH AND
SENBRE CASH EQUIVALENT 199,832,528.24 133,134,361.19 163,318,552.44 104,613,535.66

m WRFERERDBR LA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




BEREE DR

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

(R 7 B S5t £ A4 7))
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

007 FEEHRRESET X
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity in 2007
%R BERBLRAEEEG SRREEE REHEAH
Item Total of
Minority ~ Shareholder’s
Equity attributable to the parent company Interest Equity
(-] REOH :EER EBAR -RARER  XPENR R
Share Capital Less: Surplus  General risk  Undistributed
capital surplus  Treasury stock Teserves provision profit Others
ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
- LEEFRE Ending balance of last year 457,312,830.00 558,919,077.15 — 162,285,764.68 — 17189184060 70811579  3,280950.06 1,354,398,578.28
n: EHRKER Add: Effects of the changes of
accounting policies - - - - = = = = —
ABARET Effects of the changes of
prior accounting errors — — — — — — — — —
Z. FEENRE Beginning balance of the year 457,312,830.00 558,919,077.15 — 162,285,764.68 — 171,891,840.60 708,115.79  3,280,950.06 1,354,398,578.28
Z ERREDEEEIU( ) RRT) Increase/decreased in the year
(decrease is presented in bracke) — 291,326,723.70 — 197222533 —  21,604,552.67 (60,177.88) 47,512,153.83 362,355,477.65
() 578 | Net profit = - - - — 32,723,034.60 — 542124984  38,144,284.44
(2) BB ARREROHEREX Il Gain or loss directly included in
shareholders" equity — 291,326,723.70 - - - — (60,177.88)  (854,325.41) 290,412,220.41
1 ARtECHEE a. Net changes in fair value of
LLEEESEE available-fr-sale financial assets — 342,737,322.00 - - - - - — 342,737,322.00
2. BRATHAABMEBRR b Effects of the changes of other
EnZonze shareholders' equity of
the investees under equity method — - — — — — — — —
3. ENARREZEREEN ¢, Effects of income tax related to
igetiZ shareholder's equity — (51,410,598.30) - - - - - — (51,410,598.30)
4. Ef d. Others = = = = = = (60,177.88)  (854,325.41)  (914,503.29)
LROERE) pit Sub-total of | & — 291,326,723.70 - - — 3272303460  (60,177.88) 456692443 328,556,504.85
(Z) BREADFOER IIl Sharefolder's devoted capital and
decreased capital — - - - - — —  42,945229.40  42,945229.40
1. BRERAEK a. Shareholder's devoted capital = = = = = = — 4294520940 42,945,229.40
2. BRBZRHARREGHLE b, Paid in shares included in
shareholders' equity - - - - - - - - -
3. Efp ¢ Others - - = - = - - — _
(m) HEAR IV Profit distribution - - — 197222533 — (11,118,481.93) - —  (9,146,256.60)
1 REEBLR a. Withdrawal of surplus reserves - - — 19720533 - (L972225.33) - - -
2 HRFNAR b, Distributions to shareholders - - - - — (9,146,256.60) - — (9,146,256.60)
3. ER-RERER ¢. Withdrawal of general risk provision - - - - - - - - =
4 Efp d. Others - - - - - - - - -
(1) RRERASES V' Carrying forward internal shareholders’ equity - - - - - - - - -
1 EADEEEER(HRE) a. Capital surplus comversed
to capital (Share capital) — - - - - — — - -
2. BROREERA(GRA) b, Surplus reserves conversed
fo capital (Share capital) - — - - - - - - -
3. RELEERESR ¢ Remedying loss with
surplus reserves - - - - - - - - -
4 Efp d. Others - - = - = - - — _
B 3EEFRE Ending balance of the year 457,312,830.00 850,245,800.85 — 164,257,990.01 — 193,496,393.27 647,937.91  50,793,103.89 1,716,754,055.93
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY (continued)

(RiEh B gt R4 H)

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

2006 FEEHBRESREBE X
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity in 2006
%R BERBLRAEENG YBBRREE BREAAH
Item Total of
Minority ~ Shareholder's
Equity attributable to the parent company Interest Equity
-] REO® W EER EROR -RERER  FREYE i
Share Capital Less: Surplus General risk  Undistributed
capital surplus  Treasury stock reserves provision profit Others
ARET AEET ARET ARET ARET ARET AEET AR NEET
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
- LEEFBE Ending balance of last year 457,312,830.00 558,919,077.15 —160,207,660.67 — 16763617049  (583,12159)  1,091,928.47 1,344,584,545.19
n:EHBREE Add: Effects of the changes of
accounting policies - - - - — 563202623  1,027,247.49 —  6,659,213.72
HEEEET Effects of the changes of
prior accounting errors - - - - - - - - -
Z. FEENRE Beginning balance of the year 457,312,830.00 558,919,077.15 — 160,207,660.67 — 173,268,196.72 44412590 1,091,928.47 1,351,243,818.91
. EEREBRE RO )IRET) Increase/decreased in the year
(decrease is presented in bracket) — - —  2,078,104.01 —  (1,376356.12)  263989.89  2,189,021.59  3,154,759.37
() 578 | Net profit = = - - —  23,567,389.39 —  (81371591) 22,753,673.48
(2) BT ARREANTEREX I Gain or loss directly included in
shareholders' equity — - - - — — 263,989.89 - 263,989.89
1 AfHESREELR a. Net changes in fair value of
EBRDEE available-for-sale financial assets = - - - - - — _ _
2 ERiTRREBMAMRR b.  Effects of the changes of other
EaENYE shareholders’ equity of the
investees under equity method — — — — — — - - -
3. EARREREERBY ¢ Effects of income tax related to
fEnze shareholder's equity - - - - = = = = =
4 Ef d. Others = = = = = = 263,989.89 - 263,989.89
FRERE) M Sub-total of | & II - - - - — 2356738939 263989.89  (813,71591) 23,017,66337
() BREARESER IIl Shareholder's devoted capital and
decreased capital — - - - — — — 3002,737.50  3,002,737.50
1. RRRAER a. Shareholder's devoted capital - - - - - - — 300273750  3,002,737.50
2 RRxfHARRERNLE b, Paid in shares included in
shareholders' equity - - = = = = — — —
3 B ¢ Others - - = - = - — — _
(m) HESE IV Profit distribution - - — 207810401 —  (2494374551) - — (22,865,641.50)
1 RREHLE a. Withdrawal of surplus reserves - - - 2,078,10401 —  (2,078,10401) - - -
2. HRROSE b. Distributions to shareholders - - - - — (22,865,641.50) - — (22,865,641.50)
3 RR-REREE ¢. Withdrawal of general risk provision - - - - - = = = =
4 Ef d. Others - - - - - = = = =
(1) RRERAIES V' Carrying forward internal shareholders' equity - - - - - - - - -
1 BRDEELER (GRE) a. Capital surplus conversed to capital
(Share capital) - - - - - - - - -
2. REDMEELER(GRY) b, Surplus reserves conversed
to capital (Share capital) — - - = = — — — —
3. RRLMERWEE ¢ Remedying loss with
surplus reserves - - — — = = = = —
4 B d. Others - - = - = - — — —
B $EEREH Ending balance of the year 457,312,830.00  558,919,077.15 — 162,285,764.68 — 17189184060 70811579  3,280950.06 1,354,398,578.28
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BRREEEBD R o

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY (continued)

(R 7 B S5t £ A4 7))
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

007 FEBAFIRRERRED R
The Parent Company’s Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity in 2007
B (-] BFLR W EER BRLR  -RERER FARNA i RREEAH
Item Total
Less: Surplus General risk  Undistributed shareholders’
Share capital  Capital surplus  treasury stock reserves provision profit Others equity
NEET NEET AEET NEET NEET AEET NEET NEET
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
- LEEXBE Ending balance of last year 457,312,830.00  558,919,077.15 — 162,011,233.56 — 183,838,213.37 — 1,362,081,354.08
n: EHEREE Add:  Effects of the changes of
accounting policies — - - - - = = -
HHEREL Effects of the changes of prior
accounting errors - = = - - — - —
I FEENBE Beginning balance of the year 457,312,830.00  558,919,077.15 —  162,011,233.56 — 18383821337 — 1362,081,354.08
S EAREDREEIU( ) BRT) Increase/decreased in the year
(decrease is presented in bracket) —  291326,7123.70 - 1,584,215.14 —  18510,280.81 — 31142121965
(=) #HR I Net profit - - - - — 2924075255 — 2924075255
(2) B ARRREOFERER Il Gain or loss directly included in
shareholders' equity —  291326,723.70 - - - - —  291326,723.70
1 ARLESREELR a. Nt changes in fair value of
BEEDTE available-for-sale financial assets —  342,737,322.00 - - - - —  342,737,322.00
2 BRETRREEMEMKR b Effects of the changes of
35 Bl other shareholders' equity of
the investees under equity method — - - - - - = -
3. EHAARRESEAEED ¢ Effects of income tax related to
fisHze shareholder's equity —  (51,410,598.30) = = = = —  (51,410,598.30)
4 B d. Others = = = = - — — _
ERR(2)pst Sub-total of | & I — 29132672370 - - — 2924075255 — 32056747625
(Z) RREANESER Il Shareholder's devoted capital and
decreased capital - = = = — — — _
1. BRRBRARR a.  Shareholder's devoted capital - - = = = = = =
2. BBRRHARRERHSE b, Paid in shares included in
shareholders' equity - - = = — _ _ _
3. Ef ¢ Others - = - - - = - -
(m) HEAE V' Proft distibution = = — 158421514 —  (10730471.74) —  (9,146.256.60)
L RREBLE a. Withdrawal of surplus reserves - - — 158421514 - (1,584,215.14) - -
2 HRROAE b, Distributions to shareholders - - - - —  (9,146,256.60) —  (9,146,256.60)
3. RE-RERER ¢ Withdrawal of general risk provision = = = - - — _ _
4 B d. Others = = = = - — — _
(1) RERaRDES V- Carying forward intemal shareholder’ equity - - - - - - - _
L BRREEHER(IHE) a. Capital surplus conversed to
capital (Share capital) — — - - - - = =
2. BRAREEER(GRE) b Surplus reserves conversed
to capital (Share capital) — - - - - - = -
3. RHLERHER ¢ Remedying loss with surplus reserves - - - - - - - -
4 Efp d. Others - = - _ - _ _ _
B FEERRE Ending balance of the year 457,312,830.00  850,245,800.85 —  163,595,448.70 —  202,348,494.18 — 1,673,502,573.73
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY (continued)

(RiEh B gt R4 H)

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

2006 FEBAFIRRERESBR
The Parent Company’s Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity in 2006
B [ AFOR i EER BROR  -RARER FREHA it REA&AH
ltem Total
Less: Surplus General risk  Undistributed shareholders’
Share capital ~ Capital surplus treasury stock Teserves provision profit Others equity
AEET NEET AEET AEET NEET AEET AEET NEET
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
- LEEFRE Ending balance of last year 457,312,830.00  558,919,077.15 — 159,980,492.82 —  167,861,084.93 — 1,344,073 484.90
0 EHRREE Add: Efects of the changes of accounting policies - - - - —  18558378.30 — 1855837830
HEEREL Effects of the changes of prior accounting errors - - - - - - - -
Z. FEEDRE Beginning balance of the year 457,312,830.00  558,919,077.15 — 159,980,492.82 —  186,419,463.23 — 1,362,631,863.20
S EAREBLE RO ) HRH) Increase/decreased in the year
(decrease is presented in bracket) - - - 2,030,740.74 —  (2581,249.86) - (550,509.12)
(=) BHE I Net profi - - - - - 231513238 - 23151323
(2) EETARREGNHERNEX Il Gain or loss directly included in
shareholders' equity - - - - = = = —
1 AfHESREELR a. Net changes i fair value of
BERDEE available-for-sale financial assets - - - = = = - -
2 BRETRREELEM b, Effects of the changes of other
RERE2DNYE shareholders’ equity of the
investees under equity method — — — — - — = =
3. EXARRESER BN ¢ Effects of income tax related to
fiERzE shareholder's equity - - - - - — _ _
4 i d. Others - = - _ - — _ _
HROERE) M Sub-total of | & Il - - - - - 231513238 - 231513238
() BRRARESER Il Shareholder's devoted capital and
decreased capital - - - - = = = —
L RERAER a.  Shareholder's devoted capital - = = = - — — _
2 BRRNFARRERNSE b Paid in shares included in
shareholders’ equity — - - - - = = =
3 Ef ¢ Others - - = = - - = =
(m) #ESE IV Profit distribution - - - 2,030,740.74 —  (24,896,382.24) —  (22,865,641.50)
1 RBEHDE a. Withdrawal of surplus reserves - - — 2,030,740.74 —  (2,030,740.74) - -
2. HRERMAR b.  Distributions to shareholders - - - - —  (22,865,641.50) —  (22,865,641.50)
3. RO-BERER ¢ Withdrawal of general risk provision = = = - - - - _
4 i d. Others - - - = - - - -
() RRERhILES V' Carying forward internal shareholders' equity = = = - - - - _
L BRDESHLER (FRE) a. Capital surplus conversed to
capital (Share capital) - - - - = = = —
2 BRHDESEER(FRE) b Surplus reserves comversed to
capital (Share capital) — — - - - - = =
3 RRLERAER ¢ Remedying loss with
surplus reserves - - = = - - = -
4 E d. Others - - = = - - = =
W FEERBE Ending balance of the year 457,312,830.00  558,919,077.15 —  162,011,233.56 — 183,838,213.37 — 1,362,081,354.08
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
(FABE S EFHENAARKETF T REML)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Background of the Company

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) was established
in 1993 as the result of the reorganization of Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory. The Company issued its H
Shares at Hong Kong Stock Exchange in December 1996
and listed its A Shares at Shenzhen Stock Exchange in July
1997. The Company became a foreign invested joint stock
company in November 1998 upon approval by the Ministry
of Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation of P.R. China.
The Company issued additional 30 million ordinary A shares
as approved and decreased 3 million state-held shares in
September 2001.

The registered capital of the Company as of 31 December
2007 is RMB457.31 million and its share capital as of 31
December 2007 consists of the following:

B inBE BFeEH i 4]

Shares Amount Ratio

EN3 State-held shares 163,259 163,259 35.70%

ftEE AR Legal-person shares 24,527 24,527 5.36%
=58 K Senior management

-held shares 31 31 0.01%

e ARHE Publicly-held H shares 150,000 150,000 32.80%

e A RAR Publicly-held A shares 119,496 119,496 26.13%

& &F Total 457,313 457,313 100%

AREERNEFME  FHEMBKEE
EBRHE HERETER

BRLURENERMEEN ST
(2001)647 5% X fFHIZBAN - ANA Al
ERAEIMBRMEE -

AR B EMHE LR E S E T =5
RiMEXAZERCTR -

The Company is mainly engaged in developing, manufacturing
and selling bulk pharmaceuticals, preparations and chemicals
products.

According to the Circular “Lu Ke Gao Zi (2001) No. 647"
issued by Shandong Provincial Bureau of Science &
Technology, the Company has been recognized as a new
and high-tech company.

The Company’s place of registration is the Chemical Area in
Zibo New and High Technology Industrial Development Zone,
Shandong Province.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

A REFFE 2

(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)
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Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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2.

Basis of the Preparation of Financial
Statements

The financial statements shall be prepared on the basis on
the assumption of the Company as a going concern.

The company prepared the financial statements according to
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and the
Accounting System for Business Enterprises (hereinafter
referred to as the “old ASBEs”) promulgated by the Ministry
of Finance (“MOF") before 2006. On 1 January 2007, the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (hereinafter
referred to as the “ASBEs”) promulgated by MOF in 2006
was initially carried out by the company. The financial
statements in 2007 shall be firstly presented according to the
ASBEs.

The financial statements in 2007 shall consist of the
comparative information of 2006 which have been adjusted
retrospectively as required by the ASBEs No.38-First-time
Adoption of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
and corresponding practical guidelines promulgated by MOF,
and the Circular on Issuing the No.7 Questions and
Responses of Information Disclosure Standards of Public
Companies — Compilation and Disclosure of the Comparative
Financial Accounting Information during the Transition Period
between the New and Old Accounting Standards, which has
been promulgated by the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (hereinafter referred to as the CSRC). All of the
items of financial statements have been re-presented
according to the ASBEs.

The Statement on Compliance with the
ASBEs

The company believes that the financial statements have
been prepared comply with the requirements of the ASBEs
and presented fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company and the operations results and cash
flows of the Company.
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FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(KB BB RBEI YN RETF LA EL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

4.

(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation

1. Accounting Year

The fiscal year of the Company is from January 1 to
December 31 of each calendar year.

2. Reporting currency

The Company’s reporting currency is Renminbi
(HRMBH).

3, Measurement Basis and its Changes in the
Period

The financial statements have been prepared on an
accrual basis.

The Company measures the accounting elements in
accordance with the prescribed accounting
measurement bases, without any changes during the
reporting period. The accounting elements have been
measured on historical cost principal except for the
held-for-trading financial assets and available-for-sale
financial assets which measured at their fair value.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The cash in the Cash Flow Statement refers to as the
cash-on-hand and deposits that are available for
payment at any time. The cash equivalents refer to
short-term (due within 3 months since the date of
purchase) and highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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(REIEB BELBEIUARET T AEL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(RiEh B gt E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)
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Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

5.

Foreign Currency

5.1

Accounting for Foreign Currency

Foreign currency transactions shall be
translated into RMB at the spot exchange rate
on the first day of the month in which the
transactions occurred. Foreign currency
monetary items shall be translated using the
spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising from the
differences between the spot exchange rate
prevailing at the balance sheet date and those
spot rates used on initial recognition or at the
previous balance sheet date are recognized in
profit or loss for the current period, except for
those difference related to the principal and
interest on a specific-purpose borrowing
denominated in foreign currency for
acquisitions, constructions or production of the
qualified assets, which should be capitalized
as cost of the assets. Foreign currency non-
momentary items measured in fair value shall
be translated using the spot exchange rate at
the date when the fair value was determined.
Exchange differences arising from the
differences of exchange rate are recognized as
changes in fair value in profit or loss for the
current period. Foreign currency non-monetary
items measured in historic cost shall still be
translated using the spot exchange rate when
the transaction occurred.




BEEGHBER - FrHst
MEHMBERERNEHAS
y: X,

5. SR B (F)
5.2. SNEHBEmRNINE

HOMEE M AER (R
RPEEEMA FE
B RBEEREE
A M EDEBE T -
B SR ARS8 B R R H
RFBIER S - £
T8 B 4% A5 465 MO B
BEKTH - HHME
LN
HEMER - KAR
5%t B N A
8 o bty A
B 50 T 4T B
R R E
TEBIIR - BE F
RSB ME R R
B 1) 51 B 15 % B
A EEERBmE
HE N2 - R
BIA BT RS
e RIS RE N E
EBERRERER
TEEHR - BEH
SMEREE - BIEEIN
P LOTNCE B
TR R
AEEE BB -

SNEREHEIARS
SHFRFNRLRE
RAE G RERER
IR T E - [
ERHUREL T Y
& ERSRERD
EHHR -

FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(KB BB RBEI YN RETF LA EL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

4.

(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

5 Foreign Currency (continued)

5.2. Translation of Financial Statements Denominated
in Foreign Currency

The Company shall translate the financial
statements of a foreign operation as follows:
assets and liabilities on the balance sheet will
be translated at the spot rate prevailing at the
balance sheet date, while the equity items
except for undistributed profits on the balance
sheet will be translated at the spot exchange
rate when they occurred. Income and expenses
on the income statement will be translated at
the spot exchange rate at the date of the
transactions. Differences arising from the above
translations shall be presented as a separated
component of shareholders’ equity on the
balance sheet. Exchange differences of the
foreign currency items, which are substantively
net investment to a foreign operation, arising
from the change of the exchange rate shall be
presented as a separated component of
shareholders’ equity on the balance sheet as
well when the Company prepare the combined
financial statements. Exchange differences
related with the disposed foreign operation shall
be transferred to profit or loss as the
proportionate share in which the disposal occurs

Cash flow dominated in foreign currency or
from the foreign subsidiaries shall be translated
at the spot rate when occurs. Effects arising
from change of exchange rate of cash shall be
presented separated in cash flow statement.
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(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
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Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

6.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

6.1

6.2

Classification of financial assets

The Company classified the financial assets as
held-for-trading financial assets, available-for-
sale financial assets, receivables and held-to-
maturity investments by the purpose and
substance of investments.

Recognition and measurement of financial
assets

The financial asset shall be originally measured
at its fair value. Transaction cost arising from
acquisitions of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss shall be charged to the
profit or loss for the current period. For other
financial assets, the transaction costs shall be
included in their initial recognition amounts.
The Company shall derecognize a financial
asset if the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or all the risks
and rewards belonging to the ownership of a
financial asset have been substantively
transferred to the transferee.

After initial recognition, the Company shall
measure the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale
financial assets at their fair values, while
investment in equity instruments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured shall be measured at cost.
Receivables and held-to-maturity investments
shall be measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(KB BB RBEI YN RETF LA EL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

4.

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

6. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(continued)

6.2

Recognition and measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Gain or loss arising from changes in fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss shall be recognized in current profit or
loss. Interests or dividends achieved during the
holding period shall be recognized as
investment income. Difference between fair
value and initial recognized amount arising from
the disposal shall be recognized as investment
income and presented in current profit or loss.

Gain or loss arising from changes in fair value
of available-for-sale financial assets shall be
recognized in shareholders’ equity; Interests
calculated using the effective interest method
achieved during the holding period shall be
recognized as investment income; Dividends
on an available-for-sale equity instruments shall
be recognized as investment income when the
investee declares the dividends. Difference
between the considerations of disposal and the
carrying amount of financial assets deducted
with any accumulative gain or loss that had
been directly recognized in shareholders’ equity
shall be recognized in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

6.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(continued)

6.3

Impairment of financial assets

The Company shall assess the carrying amount
of financial assets other than those at fair value
through profit or loss at the balance sheet date.
If there is objective evidence that the financial
asset is impaired, the Company shall determine
the amount of any impairment loss. When an
available-for-sale financial asset is impaired
substantially or perpetually, the cumulative loss
arising from decline in fair value that had been
recognized directly in owner’s equity shall be
removed from owner’s equity and recognized
in profit or loss. If, after an impairment loss has
been recognized on an available-for-sale debt
instrument, the fair value of the debt instrument
increases in a subsequent period and the
increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized, the impairment loss shall be
reversed, with the amount of the reversal
recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognized for an investment in an equity
instrument classified as available-for-sale shall
be reversed through owner’s equity if the fair
value increases in a subsequent period and
the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized. The impairment loss on an
investment in unquoted equity instrument
without a quoted price in an active market whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured shall not
be reversed.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(KB BB RBEI YN RETF LA EL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Significant Accounting Policies,

Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

6. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(continued)

6.4

6.5

Transfer of Financial Assets

The Company shall derecognize the financial
assets when the Company transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset to the transferee.
If the substantially risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset to the transferee
are retained, the Company shall not
derecognize the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Company classified the financial liabilities
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss and other financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost.

7. Accounting for bad debts loss

7.1

7.2

The receivables shall be recognized as bad
debts when the debtor was dead or went
bankruptcy and could not repay all his debts
with the legacy or bankruptcy property; or the
debtor has not repaid his debt with clear
evidence indicates that the debts cannot be
recovered.

Bad debt losses shall be accounted for using
the allowance method. Provisions for accounts
receivables and other receivables shall be made
on an aging basis at the end of the period, and
reported in the income statement of the period,
except the receivables from the related parties.
Receivables that cannot be recovered with
absolute evidence shall be written off as bad
debt losses after approval at a board meeting,
and reported as reductions of provisions for
bad debts.
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Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

7.

Accounting for bad debts loss (continued)

7.3 Individually significant receivables shall be
accessed by the Company, while any objective
evidence indicates that the receivables cannot
be recovered, and be recognized the difference
between the present value of future cash flow
and the carrying value as the impairment
individually. Individually non-significant
receivables shall be included in a group of
receivables with unimpaired individually
significant receivables, which contain similar
credit risk characteristics, and collectively
assessed for impairment based on the similar
groups.

Provision for bad debts loss shall be made as
follows:

IRES RHR LB
Aging Bad Debts Percentage
—F YA Less than 1 year 0.5%
-2 1-2 years 20%
—E= 2-3 years 60%
ZFENE Over 3 years 100%
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(KB BB RBEI YN RETF LA EL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

4.

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

8. Inventories

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

Inventories mainly include raw materials, work-
in-process, finished products, goods in stock,
low-value consumables and packaging
materials.

Raw materials are stated at the cost of purchase
price plus freight, loading and unloading
charges, and insurance premiums. The cost of
self-made semi-products and finished products
include various expenditures actually incurred
during production.

The valuation of raw materials, self-made semi-
products and finished products is made on a
weighted-average basis when they are shipped
and sold.

Low-value- consumables and packaging
materials are expensed as incurred.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
market value at the end of the period. When the
cost of inventories is higher than their
recoverable amount because they are damaged,
completely or partially obsolescent, or with a
selling price lower than the cost, a provision for
inventory write-down is made after a thorough
examination of inventories at the end of the
period. The provisions for finished goods and
large-amount raw materials are made on the
differences between the costs of inventory items
and their lower net realizable values on an
item-by-item basis. Other inventories items shall
be carried the provisions by categories.
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Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

8. EROBRES® (&) 8. Inventories (continued)

8.6 GFEUERIERT 8.6  Net realizable value of goods-in-stock, work-in-
A EEEm - progress or held-for-sale raw materials shall be
EmAMAR L&/ determined by their estimated sales less the
HEEERARNEEDN related selling expenses and taxes. Net
FmFE - HA#H realizable for held-for-produce raw materials
FEZZEFEERNMET shall be determined by the estimated selling
EEREMTHEE price of finished goods less the estimated cost
ERMERARERERD till completion, selling expenses and taxes. Net
TREMTE  ARAEE realizable value of inventories held-for-contracts
M/BHMEFER shall be determined by the carrying amount of
HA] B FEKRME the contracts. Net realizable value of inventories
EMNEKDAOEETES over the order of contracts shall be determined
B & = 58 TR 5T by the selling price.
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9. FERHBRERBEOEESE 9. Long-term Investments

9.1 RHERERENVSA 9.1 Initial Measurement

A=

BBEE— S TR The initial investment cost of a long-term equity
X5 HEEH R investment acquired through a business
BIZE B HR combination involving enterprise under common
REGHE A control shall be the absorbing party’s share of
EREREREEBAND the owners’ equity of the party being absorbed
BIERRARERE at combination date, while the investment cost
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acquired through a business combination but
not involving enterprise under common control
shall be the combination cost which contain
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed
and equity securities issued as consideration
of business combination on the acquisition date.
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Significant Accounting Policies,

Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

9. Long-term Investments (continued)

9.1

9.2

Initial Measurement (continued)

The initial investment cost of a long-term equity
investment acquired otherwise than through a
business combination shall be determined as
follows: (a). for a long-term equity investment
acquired by paying cash, the initial investment
cost shall be actual purchase price has been
paid, that includes those costs, taxes and other
necessary expenditures directly attributable to
the acquisition of the long-term equity
investment; (b). for a long-term equity
investment acquired by the issue of equity
securities, the initial investment cost shall be
the fair value of the securities issued; (c). for
a long-term equity investment contributed by
an investor, the initial investment cost shall be
value stipulated in the investment contract or
agreement, except where the value stipulated
in the contract or agreement is not fair; (d). for
a long-term equity investment acquired through
an exchange of non-monetary assets or debt
restricting transaction, the initial investment cost
shall be determined in accordance with related
standards in ASBEs.

Subsequent Measurement

Long-term equity investment to subsidiaries
shall be accounted for using the cost method
and be adjusted when the Company prepare
the consolidated financial statements. Long-
term equity investment to joint ventures and
associates shall be accounted for using the
equity method; Long-term equity investment,
where the Company does not have control,
joint control or significant influence over the
investee and the investment is not quoted in an
active market and its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, shall be accounted for using the
cost method; While the long-term equity
investment where the Company does not have
control, joint control or significant influence,
but the investment is quoted in an active market
and its fair value can be reliably measured
shall be accounted as available-for-sale
financial assets.
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Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

10.

Fixed Assets

10.1

10.2

10.3

Fixed assets refer to those tangible assets with
useful lives for more than one accounting year,
which held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, for rental to others, or for
administrative purposes. The fixed asset shall
simultaneously meet the conditions as, firstly it
is probable that economic benefits associated
with the assets will flow to the Company; and
secondly the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably as well.

Fixed assets include house & buildings,
machinery &equipment, vehicles and electronic
apparatus.

Fixed assets shall be initially measured at cost.
The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises
the purchase price, related taxes and any
directly attributable expenditure for bringing the
assets to working condition for its intended
use. The cost of self-constructed fixed asset
comprises those expenditures necessarily
incurred for bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use. The cost of a
fixed asset contributed by an investor shall be
determined in accordance with the value
stipulated in the investment contract or
agreement, except where the value stipulated
in the contract or agreement is not fair. The
cost of a fixed assets acquired by finance lease
shall be the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments at the commencement of the
lease term.
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Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for

y; JE=9) Consolidation (continued)
10. EBEE&EE &) 10. Fixed Assets (continued)

104 BEEEEFELZE: 10.4 Fixed assets (excluding those fully depreciated
BRERRITENMES yet still used in operation) are depreciated on
FRMEEEE ' & a straight-line basis with the estimated net
RAEMEEEEE residual value at 5%. Depreciation of a fixed
FHRITE - SHIRITE asset shall be provided for monthly and,
R FRT9% - depending on the purpose for which the fixed
AB IR YT & K7 A 5t asset is used, shall either be included as part
5 WREBERAES R of the cost of the relayed assets or recognized
AR E ER KA in profit or loss for the current period. The life
HEHER - AAF] and rate of depreciation for different classes of
BEE&EERTFEE fixed assets are as follows:

L5% - HFFEE

= HEFRRER

BT

551 IEFER FREE
Iltems Useful lives Annual Depreciation rate
B EZEY 204 4.75%
House & Buildings 20 Years

Has R 104 9.5%
Machinery & equipment 10 Years

B 54 19%
Electronic apparatus 5 Years

MARBRERTIA 54 19%
Office equipment and vehicles 5 Years

105 BEEBEERESZ LN 10.5 The subsequent expenditures of a fixed asset,
RIE - BEEERER which are mainly arising from mending,
BYHFERFEIE improvement and fitments, shall be included in
T EEHRRE the cost of the fixed asset if the economic
REESTHEANR - benefits associated with the expenditures can

ERBRNEENER
ARERARRFBE

FXABESF] SEH) AT E
B S ABIEEEK
ZANRE 20§ =g Y bl

2 RIEERERE
BE: MAEEMERE
XHERBEERGTAE

&

flow to the Company. While if not, the
expenditures shall be recognized in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

10. Fixed Assets (continued)

10.6

The company shall make a review and proper
adjustments of the estimated useful life,
estimated net residual value, and the
depreciation method of the fixed assets at the
end of each year. Any change happened shall
be disclosed as changes of accounting
estimates.

11. Contrition-in-progress

11.1

11.2

The cost of construction-in-progress is
determined according to expenditures actually
incurred. The cost of construction work
undertaken by the Company itself is determined
according to direct materials cost, direct labour
cost, and direct construction expenses; the cost
of construction work undertaken by a third party
is determined according to amount paid to the
contractor; and the cost of equipment
installation construction is determined according
to the cost of equipment, installation charges
and test run expenses. Capitalized borrowing
costs and exchange profit or loss should also
be included in the related cost of construction-
in-progress.

Construction in progress is transferred to fixed
assets at the date of reaching its usable
conditions at an estimated amount based on
the budget price, the amount paid to the
contractor or actual cost of construction. The
asset will be depreciated from the second month
after it is put into use. The estimated value of
the asset and its accumulated depreciation is
adjusted after going through the procedures for
the final accounts of project completion.
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Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

12. Borrowing Cost

12.1

12.2

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset shall be capitalized as part of
the cost of that asset. The amount of other
borrowing costs incurred shall be recognized
as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred. Qualifying assets are assets (fixed
assets, investment property, inventories, and
etc. ) that necessarily take a substantial period
of time for acquisition, construction or
production to get ready for their intended use
or sale.

The capitalization of borrowing costs can
commence only when all of the following
conditions are satisfied; expenditures for the
asset are being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred; and activities relating to the
acquisition, construction or production of the
asset that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale have commenced.
Capitalization of borrowing costs shall be
suspended during periods in which the
acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset is interrupted abnormally, when
the interruption is for a continuous period of
more than 3 months. Capitalization of borrowing
costs shall cease when the qualifying asset
being acquired, constructed or produced
becomes ready for its intended use or sale.
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Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

12. Borrowing Cost (continued)

12.3

The Company shall determine the capitalized
amount of interest as follows: where funds are
borrowed under a specific-purpose borrowing
for the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying assets, the amount of interest to
be capitalized shall be the actual interest
expense incurred on that borrowing for the
period less any bank interest earned from
depositing the borrowed funds before being
used on the asset or any investment income on
the temporary investment of those funds; where
funds are borrowed under general-purpose
borrowings and are utilized for the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset,
the Company shall determine the amount of
interest to be capitalized on such borrowings
by applying a capitalization rate to the weighted
average of the excess amounts of cumulative
expenditures on the asset over and above the
amounts of specific-purpose borrowings.

13. Intangible Assets

13.1

The Company'’s intangible assets mainly contain
land use right, software use right, non-patented
technology, and etc. The cost of a purchased
intangible asset shall be determined by the
expenditures actually incurred and other costs
related. The cost of a intangible asset
contributed by an investor shall be determined
in accordance with the value stipulated in the
investment contract or agreement, except where
the value stipulated in the contract or agreement
is not fair
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Significant Accounting Policies,

Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

13. Intangible Assets (continued)

13.2 The cost of land use right is amortized evenly

188

over the whole period of the right. The cost of
software use right and non-patented technology
of the Company is amortized evenly over the
amortization period not longer than the shortest
of the expected useful life, the beneficial period
as specified in the contract or the useful life
specified in the law, which is five years in the
Company. The amortization charge shall be
recognized as cost of an intangible asset or
profit or loss for the current period by the object
of benefit derives from the assets.

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life,
the Company shall review the useful life and
amortization method at least at each financial
year-end. If the expected useful life of the asset
or the amortization method differs significantly
from previous assessments, the amortization
period or amortization method shall be changed
accordingly. For an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life, the Company shall
reassess the useful life of the asset in each
accounting period. If there is evidence indicating
that the useful life of that intangible asset is
finite, the Company shall estimate the useful
life of that asset and amortized accordingly.
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4.

Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

14.

Research and Development

According to the nature of expenditures and uncertainty
of the achievement, expenditure on an internal
research and development project shall be classified
into expenditure on the research phase and
expenditure on the development phase.

Expenditure on the research phase of an internal
research and development project shall be recognized
in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
While expenditure on the development phase of that
shall be recognized as an intangible asset when all
the conditions could be satisfied as following: (a). the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale; (b). the
intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it; (c). there is a market for the output of the
intangible asset or the intangible asset itself; (d). the
availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and the ability
to use or sell the intangible asset; (e). its ability to
measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development phase.

Expenditure in the development phase which is failed
to meet all the conditions above should be included
in the profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
The expenditure in the development phase which has
been included in the profit or loss in the prior period
could not be recognized as intangible asset. The
capitalized expenditure in the development phase shall
be recognized as intangible asset when the asset get
ready to its intended use.
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Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

15.

Impairment for Non-financial Assets

The Company shall assess at each balance sheet
date whether there is any indication that the following
assets may be impaired, as long-term equity
investment on subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, fixed assets, construction-in-progress,
intangible assets of finite useful life, and etc. Goodwill
and an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life
shall be tested for impairment annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that the asset may be
impaired. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of the individual asset, the Company shall
determine the recoverable amount of the asset group
or set of asset group to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount, the difference shall be recognized
as an impairment loss. Once the impairment loss is
recognized, it shall not be reversed in a subsequent
period. Recoverable amount of an asset is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and the present value
of the future cash flow expected to be derived from
the asset.
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Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

15.

16.

Impairment for Non-financial Assets (continued)

The following are indications that an asset may be
impaired: (a) during the period, asset’s market value
has declined significantly more than would be expected
as a result of the passage of time or normal use; (b)
significant changes with an adverse effect on the
Company have taken place during the period, or will
take place in the near future, in the technological,
economic or legal environment etc. in which the
Company operates or in the market to which an asset
is dedicated; (c) market interest rates or other market
rates of return on investments have increased during
the period, and those increase are likely to affect the
discount rate used in calculating the present value of
an asset’s expected future cash flows and decrease
the assets recoverable amount materially; (d) evidence
is available of obsolescence or physical damage of an
asset; (e) an asset has become or is becoming idle,
the Company discontinues using an asset or plans to
dispose of an asset before the previously expected
date; (f) evidence is available from internal reporting
that indicates that the economic performance of an
asset is, or will be, worse than expected, for example,
the net cash flows generated or operating profit realized
(or operating loss arising) from the asset are much
less (or more) than the budgeted amounts.; (g) other
factors that indicate an asset may be impaired.

Goodwill

Goodwill refers to the difference at the acquisition
date or purchasing date, which comes from the
investment cost or cost of business combination not
involving enterprises under common control, exceeds
the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the investees’
or acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Goodwill related with subsidiaries shall be separately
presented in consolidated financial statements, while
goodwill related with joint ventures and associates
shall be included in carrying amount of long-term
equity investment.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(KB BB RBEI YN RETF LA EL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Significant Accounting Policies,

Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

16.

17.

18.

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill that is separated presented shall be tested for
impairment at least at each financial year-end. For the
purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of
goodwill shall be allocated on a reasonable basis to the
asset group or set of asset group that is able to benefit
from the synergies of the business combination.

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits mainly include wages or salaries,
bonuses, allowances and subsidies, social security
contributions, housing funds, union running costs and
employee education costs, and other expenditures
incurred in exchange for service rendered by
employees.

In the accounting period in which an employee has
rendered service to the Company, the Company shall
recognize the employee benefits payable as a liability
and, except for compensation for termination of
employment relationship with employees that be
included in the profit or loss in the current period.
Employee benefits shall be accounted as cost of related
assets or charged to profit or loss for the current
period according to the benefits derived from the
employee service.

Provision

18.1 An obligation related to a contingency, such as
guarantees provided to outsiders, pending
litigations or arbitrations, product warranties,
redundancy plan, onerous contract,
reconstructing, expected disposal of fixed
assets, and etc. shall be recognized as a
provision when all of the following conditions
are satisfied: (a) the obligation is a present
obligation of the Company; (b) it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; (c) the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably.

WRHMEFHREROBR QA
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Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

18.

19.

Provision (continued)

18.2

A provision shall be initially measured at the
best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the related present obligation. Factors
pertaining to a contingency such as risk,
uncertainties, and time value of money shall be
taken into account as a whole in reaching the
best estimate. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, the best estimate
shall be determined by discounting the related
future cash outflows. The Company will review
the carrying amount of a provision at the
balance sheet date. Where there is clear
evidence that the carrying amount of a provision
does not reflect the current best estimate, the
carrying amount shall be adjusted to the current
best estimate.

Revenue

The Company’s revenue is mainly from sale of goods,
rendering of services and use by others of enterprise
assets. Revenue could only be recognized as the
following conditions could be satisfied, that is the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably and the
associated economic benefit will flow into the Company,
and for more details as follows:

19.1

Revenue form the sale of goods shall be
recognized only when all of the following
conditions are satisfied: (a) the Company has
transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods; (b) the
Company retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold; (c) the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably; (d) it is probable that the
associated economic benefits will flow into the
Company; and (e) the associated costs incurred
or to be incurred can be measured reliably.
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4.

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

19.

20.

Revenue (continued)

19.2 Revenue from the rendering of services shall
be recognized only when all of the following
conditions are satisfied: the amount of revenue
and costs incurred or to be incurred for the
transaction involving the rendering of services
can be measured reliably; the associated
economic benefits can flow into the Company;
and the stage of completion of the transaction
can be measured reliably. When the transaction
commenced and ended in one year, the revenue
shall be recognized at the completion; when
they are not in one year, the revenue shall be
recognized in percentage of completion method
at the balance sheet date if the outcome of the
transaction can be estimated reliably. The
percentage of completion shall be determined
by the cost incurred and the estimated whole
cost.

19.3 Revenue from use by others of enterprise assets
shall be recognized only when the associated
economic benefit can flow into the Company,
and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities

A deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability shall be
determined by a difference (temporary difference)
between the carrying amount of an asset or liability
and its tax base. The deferred tax asset shall be
recognized for the carry forward of unused deductible
losses and tax credits to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against
which the deductible losses and tax credits can be
utilized. At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities shall be measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled.
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Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for

&) Consolidation (continued)

20. BRERBREEMRIER 20. Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities
#RAR® (&) (continued)
NA B AR 7] RE RS A AR EE The Company shall recognize the corresponding
AT E R 1 = 2 8 FE A deferred tax asset for deductible temporary differences
WMATSE AR - BRBATE as no higher than the taxable profits that will be
MERMERESERLTEM available in the future, against which the temporary
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Frigti & E - B TEstBIRK the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the
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EAMSHEEMREEE - Any such reduction in amount shall be reversed to the
TER P REIETS B B FE AN TS extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
FriS&Eky - A S T A profits will be available.
g .

21. FiERHEHER 21. Income Tax

ARFFEBEIHEE T
MEEEEEEBE - F8
B2 B35 8 BT 1S B RLE
EFTEH - 15 A AR
N2 S EEAY
& HRFRS BB IE A3 B £t
AR - AR EA B
BE A RIS B 2 2
PBEE EIES - E e
P 19 BRI A A 9 4 28 P =%
IELINT R

EHMERERAREERR
BRI TS AR E AT E M E RO £ B
EHRLENZIHMER @ [E
METRIGEMNEER - AVE
QPR EL SRR
BREEARKEHAET
ERNELERSHREENE
EFFEHABEERRESDN
CHAHRFEC RSB
IRV EHE ©

The Company accounted the income tax in a method
of debit in balance sheet. The income tax expenses
include income tax in the current period and deferred
income tax. The income tax that associated with the
events and transactions directly included in the owners’
equity shall be included in the owners’ equity; and the
deferred income tax derived from business combination
shall be included in the carrying amount of goodwill,
except for that above, the income tax expense shall
be included in the profit or loss in the current period.

The income tax expense in the current period refers
to the tax payable, which is calculated according to
the tax laws on the events and transactions incurred
in the current period. The deferred income tax refers
to the difference between the carrying amount and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at the
year-end recognized in the method of debit in the
balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(KB BB RBEI YN RETF LA EL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

4.

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

22.

Business Combination

Business combination refers the event or transaction
that the Company combines two or more separate
enterprises as one reporting entity. The Company
shall recognize the assets and liabilities derived from
business combination at the combination date or
acquisition date. A combination date or acquisition
date is the date on which the Company effectively
obtains control of the company being absorbed.

22.1 The assets and liabilities acquired through a

22.2

business combination involving enterprise under
common control shall be measured by the
acquirer according to the carrying amount
recorded by the acquiree’s at the combination
date. The difference between the consideration
of combination and the carrying amount of the
acquired net assets shall be included in capital
surplus, or it shall be included in retained
earnings continuously if the capital surplus is
not sufficient.

The cost of business combinations not involving
enterprise under common control is the
aggregate of the fair value, at the acquisition
date, of the assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity securities issued by the
acquirer, in exchange for control of the acquiree.
When the costs of business combinations
exceed the acquirer’s identifiable net assets,
the difference shall be recognized as goodwill,
if not, the differences shall be included in the
profit or loss in the current period.
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Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

23. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements

23.1

23.2

The consolidated financial statements include
subsidiaries and special purpose entities
effectively controlled by the Company.

Consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the ASBEs No.
33-Consolidated Financial Statements and
relevant supplementary regulations. All
significant transactions and balances between
the Company and its subsidiaries are eliminated
for the purpose of consolidation. The equity of
subsidiaries not held by the parent company
shall be presented separately as minority
shareholders’ equity in consolidated
shareholders’ equity.

Any difference arising from the inconformity of
accounting year or accounting policies between
the subsidiaries and the Company shall be
adjusted in the consolidated financial
statements.

When preparing the consolidated financial
statements, if the Company acquired the
subsidiary through business combination not
involving under common control, the separate
financial statements shall be adjusted based
on the fair value of identifiable net asset at the
acquisition date. If the subsidiary is acquired
through business combination involving under
common control, the consolidated financial
statements shall included the carrying amount
of assets, liabilities, operating result and cash
flow of the subsidiary at the beginning of the
current period.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(KB BB RBEI YN RETF LA EL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

4.

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

24.

Significant Changes of Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates and Corrections of Errors

The

company applied the ASBEs since 1 January

2007, instead of the old ASBE which was promulgated
by MOF before 2006, and started to recognize,
measure and report the transactions and events in
accordance with the ASBEs. The Company shall make
retrospective adjustments for the changes of
accounting policies arising from the initial adoption of
the ASBEs.

241

24.2

Long-term equity investment of subsidiaries,
which accounted in equity method in the parent
company'’s balance sheet before the first-time
adoption of ASBEs, shall be retrospectively
adjusted as the deemed beginning cost
accounted in cost method on the first-time
adoption date. More details will be elaborated
in Note X-Long-term Equity Investment.

Enterprise Income Tax was accounted in the
method of payable tax before the first ASBEs
financial statements, while the method shall be
changed as the debit in the balance sheet on
the first-time adoption date. More details will be
described in Note X- Enterprise Income Tax.
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Significant Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

24. Significant Changes of Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates and Corrections of Errors
(continued)

24.3

24.4

@)

The foreign currency forward contracts have
not been presented in the financial statements
before the first-time implementation of ASBEs,
while after that, the above contracts shall be
presented as derivate financial instruments in
the balance sheet and measured by fair value.

The impacts from changes in the accounting
policies on the shareholders’ equity on 1
January 2006 and 31 December 2006, and the
net profit in 2006 based on the consolidation
and parent company are listed as follows:

Impacts on the consolidated shareholders’
equity on 1 January 2006

The retrospectively adjustments on deferred
tax asset increased RMB6,576,000 of
undistributed profit; derivative financial
instrument retrospectively increased
RMB83,000 of undistributed profit; shareholders’
equity has been increased of RMB1,092,000
because of the minority shareholders’ equity
has been presented in the shareholders’ equity.
The adjustments above totally increased
RMB7,751,000 of shareholders’ equity as at 1
January 2006.
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(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

Significant Accounting Policies,

Estimates and Basis of Presentation for
Consolidation (continued)

24.

Significant Changes of Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates and Corrections of Errors
(continued)

24.4 (continued)

&)

®)

Impacts on the consolidated net profit in 2006

The retrospectively adjustment on deferred tax
asset increased RMB1,039,000 of net profit;
derivative financial instrument retrospectively
increased RMB51,000 of net profit; change of
presentation of minority shareholder’'s equity
increased RMB-814,000 of net profit; change
of presentation of unconfirmed investment loss
increased RMB-228,000 of net profit. The
adjustments above totally increased
RMB48,000 of net profit in 2006.

Impacts on the consolidated shareholders’
equity on 31 December 2006

The retrospectively adjustments on deferred
tax asset increased RMB7,615,000 of
undistributed profit; derivative financial
instrument retrospectively increased
RMB134,000 of undistributed profit;
shareholders’ equity has been increased of
RMB3,313,000 because of the minority
shareholders’ equity has been presented in the
shareholders’ equity. The adjustments above
totally increased RMB11,062,000 of
shareholders’ equity as at 31 December 2006.
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5.

Taxes

Major taxes and tax rates applicable to the Company are as
follows:

1.

Income tax

According to the document (State Revenue Issue
[1994] No. 151 “The Notice of Applying favorable tax
policies for the new and high technology companies”)
issued by State Bureau of Revenue, the Company is
subject to an income tax rate of 15% starting from
2002 because its place of registration is the chemical
zone in Zibo Municipal New and High Technology
Industrial Development Zone, Shandong Province, and
approved by the local department of revenue. The
Company is subject to 15% income tax for operating
income generated from the development zone and
33% income tax for operating income generated
outside the development zone from 2004, and has put
on records in the local department of revenue.

The other subsidiaries of the Company are subject to
33% income tax except for Sino-USA Zibo Xinhua-
Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company Limited and Zibo
Xinhua-Eastwest Pharmaceutical Company Limited
which are subject for 24%.

Value added tax

The Company is subject to value added tax for its
sales revenues at a VAT rate of 17% or 13% for
domestic sales and 0% for export sales.

In purchasing raw materials, the input VAT is deductible
against output VAT at the rate of 17%.

The VAT payable for the period is the amount of output
VAT less input VAT.

Business tax

Business tax is based on the design revenue, at a rate
of 5%.

Urban maintenance & construction tax and
educational surcharges

Urban maintenance & construction tax and educational
surcharges are based on the sum of VAT payable and
sales tax payable, at the rates of 7%, 3% and 1%
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)
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(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

5. Taxes (continued)
5. Property tax

Property tax is levied based on 70% of the original
cost of the building property of the Company at a rate
of 1.2%. The Company is subject to a 12% tax rate
for rental income from leasing its building property.

#12% °
CEEHREMKHMBEE 6. Business Combination and Consolidated
Financial Statements
1. FAFER 1. Information about Subsidiaries
RERLA  RRE
30 ERES REeH () BH%)
NCEL ] Registered Registered ~ EBHE Initial Holding ~ Voting
Company name address capital Business Scope Investment Ratio(%)  Ratio(%)
IRHERERZARAT WREEET  484980BTARE  EREE 4152898 T ARHE 99.76 99.76
Shandong Xinhua Zibo, Shandong RMB48,498,900  Drug sales RMBA47,528,900 99.76 99.76
Pharmaceutical Trade
Company Limited
WEHEREELD IR EET ETARE  HEEY REELAA 0ETARE 99.52 99.52
ERERAT REHHES BOES
Shandong Xinhua Zibo, Shandong RMB3,000,000  Exporting & Importing RMB3,000,000 99.52 9952
Pharmaceutical of goods and
Export & Import technology, entrepot
Company Limited & counter trade
HENZRER R WRE KR WETARE  BEIRR: 10ETARS )] %
BRAT
Zibo Xinhua Zibo, Shandong RMB2,000,000  Pharmaceuticals RMBA,800,000 90 90
Pharmaceutical project design
Design Institute
Company Limited
HEMEABEEEERAA IIESY 4T WETARE  BRTE 16ETARS 88 88
Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Ziho, Shandong RMB2,000,000  Pharmaceutical retail RMB1,760,000 88 88
Chain Company Limited
REMEREERRAR WRE KB NETARE  ERZE N0ETARE 46,64 46,64
Dongying Xinhua Pharm. Ziho, Shandong RMB900,000  Pharmaceutical retail RMB477,000 46.64 46.64
Company Limited
R EsE (B EEERT bERT  HERERHRTEE S0EET 769 76.9
BRAT
Shandong Xinhua Hamburg, Germany ~ EUR0650,000  Sales of bulk EUR0500,000 76.9 76.9
Pharmaceutical pharmaceuticals
(European) GmbH and etc.
HENE — hERE R EET INEET  EE HERTRESRHE 1258%T 75 75
BRAEFAA
Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest Zibo, Shandong USD1,500,000  Producing & sales of Calcium USD1,125,000 75 75
Pharmaceutical Polycarbophil materials

Company Limited

WRHMEFHREROBR QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)

(RiEh B gt E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

N EEEHRAHHMBER 6.

Business Combination and Consolidated

(#) Financial Statements (continued)
1. FLRER (&) 1. Information about Subsidiaries (continued)
RiR#E
45 EMEx RESE KRLA 47}
INCEE Registered Registered ~ #EHE Initial  Holding  Voting
Company name address capital Business Scope Investment Ratio Ratio
% %
HEHME — BNE WRE R E™ 600BXT 4E HERAFRHE 006X 501 501
NEBEREARAT
Sino-USA Zibo Zibo, Shandong ~ USD6,000,000 Producing & sales USD3,006,000 50.1 50.1
Xinhua-Perrigo of lbuprofen materials
Pharmaceutical
Company Limited
WR A ELS WEESHT  32008TARE EEHECIRBEREN 184BTARE 585625 585625
BRAR
Shandong Dadi Shouguang, RMB32,000,000  Production and sales RMB18,740,000 585625 58.5625
Xinhua Chemical & Shandong of chemical products
Industrial Company (excluded dangerous
Limited chemical)
AYEBRCIARAT  LURESET  L00BTARE  AEHERZ 8T24B T ARK 2987 2987
Weifang Wanyuan Shouguang, RMB10,000,000 Production and sales RMB8,724,000 29.87 29.87
Chemical & Industrial Shandong of bromine

Company Limited

1) ERFEEHE S S
RAE (ATNESHE (28
ERA]]) K 2004
F£8H30H AR
EINS S G a/NGIb: ]
ANE[EHEEHE A
2 BaffEAAR
50087 0 HER
7 B RE L B 5 Bl A
98%#12% ° 200543
NG =Y
1#4,349.89& 7T © &
FARRDRIAEY AR
Nt E4,262.898
T v ST RBEE AR
2AREME A
87.008 7T ' #F 1%
B I T o
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Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

1)

With a registered capital of RMB5 million,
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Trade
Company Limited (hereafter referred to as
“Pharm. Trade”) was established on 30 August
2004 by the Company and Zibo Xinhua Drug
Store Chain Company Limited (a majority-
owned subsidiary of the Company), which hold
98% and 2% of the registered capital,
respectively. In March 2005, the registered
capital increased by 43,498,900, among which,
42,628,900 was contributed by the Company in
tangible assets, and 870,000 was contributed
by Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain Company
Limited in cash. The share of equity interest
held by each shareholder remains unchanged.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(KB BB RBEI YN RETF LA EL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

0. Business Combination and Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

1. Information about Subsidiaries (continued)

2)

3)

4)

With a registered capital of RMB3 million,
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Export &
Import Company Limited (hereafter referred to
as “Xinhua Export& Import”) was established
on 15 July 2006 by Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Trade Company Limited and
Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain Company
Limited, which hold 98% and 2% of the equity
interests respectively, the principle operation
of Xinhua Export& Import is exporting &
importing of goods and technology, entrepot &
counter trade.

With a registered capital of RMB2,000,000,
Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Design Institute
(hereinafter referred to as the “Design Institute”)
was formed in March 2002 by the Company
and Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company
Limited, which hold 90% and 10% of the
registered capital, respectively.

Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain Company Limited
(the name was changed from Zibo Xinhua Drug
Store Company Limited in December 2003,
hereafter referred to as the “Zibo Drug Store”)
was incorporated in July, 1999 with the
registered capital contributed by the Company
and Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company
Limited, which hold 88% and 12% of the equity
interests, respectively. The original registered
capital was RMB1,000,000 and it was increased
to RMB2,000,000 in September 2002.

WRHMEFHREROBR QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Business Combination and Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

1.

Information about Subsidiaries (continued)

5)

6)

7

With a registered capital of RMB900,000,
Dongying Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Dongying
Pharmaceutical”) was formed in March 2002
by Zibo Drug Store and Dongying Lanjing Tech.
Company Limited, which hold 53% and 47% of
equity interests respectively.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (European)
GmbH (hereinafter referred to as the “Xinhua
European”) was established on 25 November
2003. It was jointly invested by the Company
and Mr. LI PENG from Germany. The registered
capital was 1 million Euros. The Company holds
70% of equity interests, while Mr. LIPENG owns
30%. This company was incorporated in
Hamburg, Germany. This company’s reporting
currency is Euro. In July 2006, the registered
capital of the Company was changed to
EURO650,000 according to the resolution of
the Board of Directors’ meeting, and the share
of equity interest held by the Company and Mr.
LI PENG was changed to 76.90% and 23.10%
respectively.

With a registered capital of USD1.5 million,
Zibo Xinhua — Eastwest Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (hereafter referred to as
“Xinhua-Eastwest”) was established on 15
November 2005 by the Company and Eastwest
United Group, Inc., which hold 75% and 25%
of the equity interests respectively, the principle
operation of Zibo Xinhua — Eastwest
Pharmaceutical Company Limited is producing
and sales of Calcium Polycarbophil materials.
On 26 June 2006, the Company and Eastwest
United Group, Inc. injected USD1.125 million
and USDO0.375 million in cash respectively.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(KB BB RBEI YN RETF LA EL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

0. Business Combination and Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

1. Information about Subsidiaries (continued)

8)

9)

Sino-USA Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as
the “Xinhua-Perrigo”) was established by the
Company and Perrigo International Inc. on 11
September 2003, a foreign invested joint
company. With a registered capital of USD6
million, each party holds 50% of equity interests.
On 3 April 2006, Perrigo International Inc.
transferred 0.1% shares of Xinhua-Perrigo to
the Company with a consideration of USD6,000
according to the Mending Agreement of Joint
Venture. The transaction was approved by
Bureau of Economic Development in Zibo New
& high-tech Industrial Development Zone. The
Company held 50.1% shares of Xinhua-Perrigo
as at the end of 31 December 2007.

Shandong Dadi Xinhua Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as
the Dadi Xinhua) was established with the
registered capital of RMB26,000,000 by the
Company and Shandong Dadi Salt Chemical
Group Company Limited on 12 September 2006.
The Company contributes RMB12,740,000,
accounting for 49% of the registered capital.
The Company injected RMB6,000,000 more to
Dadi Xinhua and increased its registered capital
to RMB32,000,000 in November 2007. The
Company held 58.5625% of its shares. The
main business of Dadi Xinhua includes
production and sale of chemical products
(excluded dangerous and poisonous chemical).

WRHMEFHREROBR QA
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Business Combination and Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

1. Information about Subsidiaries (continued)

10)

Weifang Wanyuan Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as
the Wanyuan Chemical) was established on 7
July 2003. The Company purchased
RMB8,724,000 as consideration of 51% shares
of Wanyuan Chemical from Shandong Dadi Salt
chemical Group Company Limited in March
2007. The main business of Wanyuan Chemical
includes production and sales of bromine and
chemical products (excluded dangerous and
poisonous chemical).

HEHERRRE
TEm (TR

33 O
—:'E:iuu °

2. SHEENES 2.

AEEEHSTHEREE
®HE — BAS - K
ENBRLELI =28 &
AEEEE- = TERA
ARIANTE®AEI =Mt
T]) » HR2007FE 48 o

Changes of the Scope of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
included Xinhua-Perrigo, Dadi Xinhua and Wanyuan
Chemical, which were not included in last year’s
consolidation. While Zibo Xinhua-sanhe Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited (hereinafter referred as
“Sanhe Chemical”) was not included as it was cancelled
registration in 2007.

t SHMBERREEREE 7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

= Statements
1. A%ESL 1. Cash & Cash equivalents
2007% 128 31H 200612 A31H
2007.12.31 2006.12.31

F% HHEEE HSARE R% HEEX HAARE

KH Original  Exchange Translated Original ~ Exchange Translated
Item Currency Rate into RMB  Currency Rate  into RMB
EFEL Cash on Hand 149 183
I Including: USD 2 7.3046 11 15 7.8087 114
BT EURO 4 10.6669 39 2 10.2665 25
ok HKD 21 0.9364 19 1 1.00467 1
= JPY 91  0.064064 6 6  0.065630 0
RN Cash in Bank 142,637 122,950
Hep: £5¢ Including: USD 6,795 7.3046 49,634 4,909 7.8087 38,332
Bt EURO 363  10.6669 3,873 245  10.2665 2,520
Hi g% Ze Other Fund 69,472 39,401
He: Xt Including: USD 174 7.3046 1,270 0 7.8087 0
A&t Total 212,258 162,534

m WRFERERGARDF
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(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
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(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

1. Cash & Cash equivalents (continued)

(1) The ending balance of cash and cash equivalents
has increased significantly from that of last year,
mainly because the Company recovered the
investment to Qindao Hisyn Trust & Investment
Company Limited of RMB117,000,000 in 2007.

(2) HIREMEBESH (2)  The ending balance of other fund contained
AR SRTT A E AR bank acceptance deposit of RMB11,155,000,
FEE&FMN11,155F three-month fixed deposit of RMB5,046,000,
7T~ =l A BAE AT freely-drawn notifying deposit of
3£5,046F T * AIBE RMB52,000,000 and letter of credit deposit of
X BUE) @ M E R RMB1,270,000.
52,000F 7T * EA&E
REFELFHL,270F
77: o

oK EMEE 2. Held-for-sale Financial Assets

2007 12A31H 20064124 31H
LREE NREME
Fair Value on Fair Value on

HH 2007.12.31 2006.12.31

TESRMEE Derivate Financial Instruments 15,897 134

1) ARERZGHESEHE (1)  Held-for-trading financial assets referred to the
EARIETESE United States Dollar forward contracts. The
AR EFERREBA Company entered into forward contracts

mERAEE - Hi% denominated in USD for the settlement of
BER T FEEANR exchange of exportation. There is no significant
il o restriction on the returns of investment.

2) HRRZUHcMEE (2)  The ending balance of held-for-trading financial
BREEE EF MK assets has increased as that of last year, mainly
X+ EERHEMN2007 due to the drastic changes of exchange rate
FAREEETIER between RMB and USD in 2007.

BEBNELK o
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t SHMERREERAEE 7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE=) Statements (continued)
3. B =g 3. Notes Receivable
2007% 128 31H 2006F12A31H
REEN ltem 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
RITALESR Bank acceptance 71,966 19,431

(1) HREKRZEHRBEER
EFEENERK EB
= B R AR F]20074F
[ESHE MBI - &
SR ABRITENIES
RMEEF o

(2) #2007 12431
BARARIEBEEZ
A A B B B9 SR 1T A 5
fE2Z244,209F T °

@

(@)

The ending balance of notes receivable has
increased significantly as that of last year,
mainly due to the increasing of sales settled in
bank acceptance in 2007.

The ending balance contained
RMB244,209,000 of bank acceptance endorsed
but not matured.

4. FE U AR B 4, Accounts Receivable
1) FEURERRRSHE (1) Risk Classification of Accounts Receivable
2007¥12R 318 2006F 127317
2007.12.31 2006.12.31
HIRE ERER
& IH  Bad debts b bl Bad debts
EH Item Amount Ratio  Provision Amount Ratio Provision
% %
EBSEEAN  Indvidually significant
FEMERR accounts receivable 63,318 26.91 317 81,857 29.03 409
AWEESEL  Individually non-significant
EAMEYEEF  accounts receivable 171,956 73.09 13,868 200,084 70.97 12,282
Ait Total 235,274 100.00 14,185 281,941 100.00 12,691
BIEHSHEEIANER Individually significant accounts receivable
RN B EBEIE5008 T referred to as individual accounts receivable
LA ERYFEURER TR » 45 with an amount over RMB5,000,000. The
HEIBSREENNE provision for bad debts have been made on

WRRFGETTRE » R
TERMENR - IR
FARRER AT RIEARE
e

WRHMEREROGBER QA
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aging basis as no impairment of individually
significant accounts receivable was found after
the assessing.
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(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)
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(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))
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+t SHMEBREERAE 7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE) Statements (continued)
4, BUWER (&) 4. Accounts Receivable (continued)
(2) FEWERERERER (2)  Aging Analysis
20074128 31H 200612 A31H
2007.12.31 2006.12.31
05 2 BRER
&8 Lfl Bad debts ik tfl  Bad debts
5HH Item Amount Ratio  Provision Amount Ratio  Provision
% %
—EHA Less than 1 year 176,555 75.04 868 221,870 78.70 101
—E-F 1 to 2 years 21,729 9.24 849 42,327 15.01 2,744
“E=F 2 to 3 years 27,707 11.78 3,750 15,930 5.65 8,032
=ENE Over 3 years 9,283 3.94 8,717 1,814 0.64 1,814
ait Total 235,274 100.00 14,184 281,941 100.00 12,691
HIRE MR R ATER The ending balance of accounts receivable has
EERIBKR EE decreased significantly as that of last year,
BN RF20074F mainly due to the increased of settlements in
EHEZE & R E bank acceptance in 2007.
AN BTIRERE
WHE  BREHERA
TRITEGEZNLE
C
(3) EREEMGFIEAE (83)  The provision system for bad debts shall be
Mt f2 B seen above Notes 4.7. The Company recovered
7 o A E U LA AT RMB569,000 of the previous written-off
FEEZEEKER accounts receivable in 2007.
A569F T °
(4) AFERBAARZE (4) RMB5,815,000 of accounts receivable aged
BRIZEHBURAZEH T £ over 3 years has been written off in 2007
ZEE=F LR EIK according to the Company’s accounting policy.
AR 3X5,815F It °
(5) HREWRERFRHITZ (5) In the ending balance, there is no account
B RN F]5% (E5%) receivable due from shareholders who hold 5%
LA B FRORBERR 7 B AR or more of the Company’s voting capital.

REMRK -

WRHMEFHREROBR QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

217




FEHERERE 2
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t. UM ERREERBH 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE=) Statements (continued)
4, P AR =% (&) 4. Accounts Receivable (continued)
(6) EARMAFERILGIEVAE (6)  The balance of accounts receivable due from
WER R & %A AT the top five debtors is RMB55,913,000,
55,913F T * il & accounting for 23.77% of the total balance of
23.77% - accounts receivable.
(7)  HAGRBREE P e U fFE B (7)  The balance of accounts receivables due from
7 RIBE 5T45,734F the related parties is RMB45,734,000,
I~ Bl A19.44% o accounting for 19.44% of the total balance of
accounts receivable.
(8) EUWERFFRBEAT (8) The ending balance of accounts receivable
HNESERER expressed in the foreign currency is as follows:
2007% 128 318 200612 A31H
2007.12.31 2006.12.31

F% HHEEE HSARW R% HEEX FAARE

Original Exchange Translated Original  Exchange Translated

S RE Item Currency Rate into RMB  Currency Rate into RMB
ey USsD 15,821 7.3046 115,570 18,619 7.8087 145,386
Bl EURO 89 10.6669 952 30 10.2665 304
& Total 116,522 145,690
5. FfRE 5. Advances to Suppliers
2007.12.31 2006.12.31

2007%12A31H 2006F12 A31H
&# :4: ] &# :4:]
H Item Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
% %
1F A Less than 1 year 20,905 97.51 19,647 98.87
1-2% 1 to 2 years 14 0.07 189 0.95
2—-3F 2 to 3 years 290 1.35 36 0.18
3EHE Over 3 years 229 1.07 0 0
&t Total 21,438 100.00 19,872 100.00

m WURFTEREZRBGERLQ A
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FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(KB BB RBEI YN RETF LA EL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

EHMBERETEREHE 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
- JE) Statements (continued)
5. ARRIE (&) 5. Advances to Suppliers (continued)
(1) AADF2007FHRE (1)  Aging system of the ending balance of advances
FEES - B to suppliers in 2007 was logically unreasonable
RERER B FFRTE compared with that of 2006, which mainly due
o RERBALFRN to the change of consolidated scope of financial
FERERREZR M A statements. Advance payments aged over one
HEE TR MER year yet still not recovered are mainly payments
for materials pending settlement.
(2) HRENFERTE (2)  The ending balance of advance payments does
AR F5% (55%) not have any advance payment due from
LA EFRORBERR 7 B AR shareholders who hold 5% or more of the
FHEIFA - Company’s voting capital.
(8) TEMFFKIEREINE SR (3) There is no advance payment expressed in
¥ o foreign currency in the ending balance.
6. H fth FE Uy 3R 6. Other Receivable
(1) EtEYsRERS (1)  Risk Classification of Other Receivable
20075128 31H 2006512 A31H
2007.12.31 2006.12.31
BIRER BRER
&# W@  Bad debts i 6l Bad debts
RA Item Amount Ratio  Provision Amount Ratio  Provision
% %
BESEEA  Individually significant
BEMENF  other receivable 6,196 22.01 6,196 11,835 26.65 0
E®ESE  Individually
TEAH non-significant
Eth MR other receivable 21,951 77.99 1,370 32,565 73.35 2,776
Bt Total 28,147 100.00 7,566 44,400 100.00 2,776
BIFSREAMEAM Individually significant other receivable referred
FE WK /5 B 185008 to as individual other receivable with an amount
TCUA B H R R over RMB5,000,000. The provision for bad debts
MR BIEGHES have been made on aging basis as no
N B HL b & W T impairment of individually significant other

BT - KBTI
S - R AR R
R -

receivable was found after the assessing.

WRHMEFHREROBR QA
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FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(KHFEG SEHBEIUN R T BEL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(RiEh B gt E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t. SHHMERRFTEBRAHE
- JE=)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

6. HthEW R (&) 6. Other Receivable (continued)
(2) HittelsaREe (2)  Aging Analysis
2007 128 318 2006 12 A31H
2007.12.31 2006.12.31

HIRER B

&8 IH  Bad debts e bl Bad debts

HE tem Amount Ratio  Provision Amount Ratio  Provision

% %

—EP R Less than 1 year 16,986 55.73 28 17,184 38.70 10
—aTiE 1to 2 years 1,139 4.05 30 16,671 37.55 166
= 2 to 3 years 2,954 10.49 450 2,306 5.19 533
=ENE Over 3 years 7,068 29.73 7,058 8,239 18.56 2,067

5l Total 28,147 100.00 7,566 44,400 100.00 2,776

HoR K1t U 4 48
BEFRDBA - =
ZRARAAAIA
TERNE - BB
BT 5 H i K

=5
N

(3) EEREBIOFETA
Ko e Bl 2 5K £
7 o

(4) AEEZRBARRNRIE
BRIZEBRAZIE T =
BAE=F FHEM
FEUFK1,856T T °

(5) HIREAMEUGRERER
B S R IR IR
B~ A SREHLE R
TR NEE
MERFTRERSE
o

(6) HiRHEAMEUW R
= WNE A=
5%) LA R RHEW D
BOPR SR BE (A7 R B o

WRHMEREROGBER QA
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®)

(6)

The ending balance of other receivable has
decreased significantly as that of last year,
mainly due to the efforts of settlements and
recoveries of the Company on other receivable
in 2007.

The provision system for bad debts shall be
seen above Notes 4.7.

RMB1,856,000 of other receivable aged over
three years have been written off in 2007
according to the Company’s accounting policy.

The ending balance of other receivable include
deductable input VAT, output VAT for exporting
before applying to customs. No bad debts
provision is made on these items.

In the ending balance, there is no other
receivable due from shareholders who hold
5%or more of the Company’s voting capital.




FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t. SHMERREERAF 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE) Statements (continued)
6. HthEWH* (&) 6. Other Receivable (continued)

(7) EAREREERI AMAYA (7)  The balance of other receivable due from the
fib fE W SR & B8 & &F top five debtors is RMB15,616,000, accounting
15,616F 7T * LAl for 55.48% of the total balance of other
55.48% ° receivable.

(8)  HAKEREEAP FE Uk B (8)  The balance of other receivable due from the
A HIBEF388F relayed parties is RMB388,000, accounting for
T~ b5l 51.38% © 1.38% of the total balance of other receivable.

(9) EHAbEYFFBFEA (99 The ending balance of other receivable
TONEEERER - expressed in foreign currency is as follows:

2007128 318 2006512 A31H
2007.12.31 2006.12.31

% HEEE HcAR® R% HEEX HFAEARE

Original Exchange Translated Original ~ Exchange Translated

SERE Item Currency Rate into RMB  Currency Rate into RMB
BT EURO 75 10.6669 804 61 10.2665 624
7. FERBEER 7. Inventories
1) HFENER (1) Classification of Inventories and Provisions
2007.12.31 2006.12.31

2007%12A31H 20069 12 531H
FREEER FEGEEE
8% Provision for 8%  Provision for
5HH Item Balance impairment Balance impairment
R Raw material 46,678 0 31,458 0
EEM Work-in-progress 51,528 0 67,456 0
EfKm Finished goods 114,773 7,771 86,844 5,969
B Goods-in-stock 68,704 825 32,410 1,168
EKEZHER Low-value consumables 11,357 0 11,727 0

BEREDE  Special materials for

Government 1,597 0 1,597 0
it Total 294,637 8,596 231,492 7,137

WERFERERBBERDE (0
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FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(KHFEG SEHBEIUN R T BEL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(RiEh B gt E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t. SHHMERRFTEBRAHE
- JE=)

7. FHARBKERER (Z)

(1) FESERE)

HRTFEHER EF
NN EEZ2H
AN ATI2007E 4 E
HIBER  FEHR
EFEEEm R
2007F A HrEEE R
I T EIRFE °

FRIERERNE
JES R A8 -

8. THHHESMRE

7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

7. Inventories (continued)

1) Classification of Inventories and Provisions
(continued)

The ending balance of inventories has increased
significantly as that of last year, mainly due to
the enlargement of sales and productions in
2007. Also, the change of consolidated scope
of financial statements has increased the ending
balance of inventories.

Provision system for impairment of inventories
shall be seen above Notes 4.8
8. Available-for-sale Financial Assets

2007#12A31H  2006%12A31H
Item 2007.12.31 2006.12.31

RBIRITENR
AFFRBIEAR
K I 7 B AE

ARHESREERE
B - RARE R E

ARHEEREEFE

Equity of Ruiheng
Pharmaceutical &
Technology Investment

Company Limited 3,200 3,200
Legal-person share of

Bank of Communications 116,713 13,577
Legal-person share of Pacific

Insurance Company Limited 247,250 7,000
Equity of Tiantong Securities

Company Limited 30,000 30,000
Total 397,163 53,777

Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets 30,000 30,000
Including: Impairment on Equity
of Tiantong Securities

Company Limited 30,000 30,000
Net value of available-for-sale
financial assets 367,163 23,777

WRHMEREROGBER QA
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FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t. SHMERREERAF 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- XE ) Statements (continued)

8. AHHESHEE (&) 8. Available-for-sale Financial Assets (continued)
HRA it ES R EERTE The ending balance of available-for-sale financial
BEFEMNRK - BERR assets has increased much as that of last year, mainly
AIRTT - K EFREBBERER due to the market price of shares of Bank of
20074 £ - EFERMELL Communications and Pacific Insurance Company
FAILINEK o Limited because of both their stocks going public in

2007.
9. BEEINRSE 9. Held-to-maturity Investment
2007%12A31H 2006F 12A 31H

HAE Item 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
BEBHETERE Qingdao Hysin Trust &

Investment Company limited 0 117,000
MEHESES Municipal Construction Funds 0 76
At Total 0 117,076
HRAI L E S B EERE The ending balance of held-to-maturity investment
BREFRILBRK - BHRAE has decreased significantly as that of last year, mainly
ARIN2007F Y E T 5B due to the recovery of investment to Qingdao Hysin
MEFERE ° Trust & Investment Company limited in 2007.

10. RHEBRERS 10. Long-term Equity Investment
1) FHERERE (1) Long-term Equity Investment

2007%12A31H 2006F 124 31H
HH Item 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
B EEE Accounted in cost method 0 0
REBRERE
B ERE Accounted in equity method 23,512 42,580
RERERE
RYPRERESET  Total 23,512 42,580
B REIEEERE  Less: Impairment of Long-term
B equity investment 0 0
ROREREF Net value of Long-term equity
investment 23,512 42,580

WRHMEFHREROBR QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

223




FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t. UM ERREERBH 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE=) Statements (continued)
10. RHRERSE (&) 10. Long-term Equity Investment (continued)
(2) itrERE (2)  Accounted in Equity Method
EESR
AeHH
BEEA DReE FORE FXBE Dividends
BRERGAE Holding  Original Balance in ~ &8 K& Balance in received
Name of investee Ratio Cost 2006.12.31  Addition Deduction 2007.12.31  in 2007
%
BERERE
Accounted in equity method
1L EENE-ANERERRREAT
Sino-USA Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 50.10 24,831 19,027 46 19,073 0 0

2. WIRKHHECBRRAR
Shandong Dadi Xinhua Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited 58.56 5,300 5300 13,790 19,090 0 0
3. IRMERECIARAR
Shandong Xinhua Longxin Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited 40 10,000 10,694 (330) 0 10,364 0
4 LWRHFERECIRBEERAR
Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical
Equipment Company Limited 35 7,700 7,559 (1,810) 0 5,749 0
5. WREEHEREERAA
Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical

Company Limited 20 10,179 0 7,399 0 7,399 0
ait
Total 42,580 19,095 38,163 23,512 0
HIR RHA IR IR & £ The ending balance of long-term equity investment has
BEREFRIBA - decreased significantly as that of last year, mainly because
FEZEHM2007F R Xinhua-Perrigo and Dadi Xinhua were included in the
NEEFEE- B RS consolidated financial statements in 2007 and expressed as
R 3 8 2 5 AR L 191 3 deductions above. Details could be seen above notes 6.2
- BERAEHE Change of the Scope of Consolidation.

AEREAMR DS
RoERIN2 &
HrEE & -

M WRFEREZRGARDF
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

EHMBERREERAE 7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE) Statements (continued)
10. RERERE (&) 10. Long-term Equity Investment (continued)
(3) FHREREREE (3) Impairment on Long-term Equity Investment
1#
NARRERERE No provision for impairment is made and no
MEERERBE @ R evidence indicates any impairment of long-term
FHRRHEAIREREZLE equity investment at the end of the period.
i e
(4) EZEeEELE BHEd (4)  Joint Ventures and Associates
E
FERE
FLR BREEM MRBEE FHER
RRULE RAELH #E  BABE FHRNE
HREELAR it EBRE Holding Voting Net Assets  Turnover Nt profit
Name of investee Registered address  Business scope Ratio Ratio on 2007.1231 in 2007 in 2007
Betz
Joint Ventures
L WRFEREMIARAR WREHETRER KBRZJIERN
21552995 EEMHE
Shandong Xinhua Longxin ~ 299th Ethene Road,  Production and sales 40% 40% 25,904 90,750 (825)
Chemical & Industrial Linzi Dist., Zobo, of Salicylic acid series
Company Limited Shandong
2 RHMEREVIRE  STERUE=EN +ZREEHE
ERAF L IRERE
Shandong Xinhua Changxing Sanlihe, Changshan  Production and sales of  35% 35% 16,426 17,264 (5,171)
Chemical Equipment Town, Zouping, chemical facilities and
Company Limited Shandong fittings
3 WREEMEREERAR WREBTRNEG EEYE
PERERILIE
Shandong Zibo XinCat Chemical Area in Preparation of 20% 20% 29,293 154,653 (13,901)
Pharmaceutical Zibo New & chemical medicine
Company Limited High-Tech Industrial
Development Zone,
Shandong
(5) AREERIPEIEERE (5) There is no significant restriction on the
BEEAXIEAR Company to disposal the long-term equity
il o investments.

WRHMEFHREROBR QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




EHEEER o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t. UM ERREERBH 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE=) Statements (continued)
11. EBEEEE 11.  Fixed Assets
(1) BEEERMEER (1) Details of fixed assets

EEREN L i BB LS

Houses &  Machinery & REft  Electronic 8
Buildings Equipment Vehicles Apparatus Total
RiE Original cost
2006 12B31H at beginning of year 486,525 1,097,378 18,025 27,342 1,629,270
m: AEEN Add: Increases in the yr. 55,167 150,076 1,575 8,965 215,783
He: AETEEA  Including: Construction-in-progress
transferred in 23,103 53,241 4 167 76,515
W AERS Less:  Decreases in the yr. 15,518 46,365 1,634 1,979 65,496
2007%12A 318 Cost at the end of year 526,174 1,201,089 17,966 34,328 1,779,557
RiHAE Accumulated depreciation
2006 12R31H at beginning of year 206,314 609,992 12,987 21,230 850,523
m: o REEmM Add: Increases in the yr. 22,048 92,131 1,765 4,413 120,357
W AERD Less:  Decrease in the yr. 8,921 32,429 1,359 1,878 44,587
2007124 318 Accumulated depreciation
at the end of year 219,441 669,694 13,393 23,765 926,293
BEER Provision for impairment
2006 12R31R at beginning of year 0 0 0 0 0
me A Add: Increases in the yr. 0 0 0 0 0
THER Reversed in the yr. 0 0 0 0 0
W AEEMED  Lesss  Other decrease in the yr. 0 0 0 0 0
2007124 318 Provision for impairment
at the end of year 0 0 0 0 0
BE Net value
2006%12A 318 Net value at 2006.12.31 280,211 487,386 5,038 6,112 718,747
2007%12A 318 Net value at 2007.12.31 306,733 531,395 4573 10,563 853,264

WRHMEREROGBER QA
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t. SHMERREERAF 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE) Statements (continued)
11. BEESEE (&) 11. Fixed Assets (continued)

(2 HBRETEEHTER (2) The ending balance of fixed assets has
EFENRKR E2 increased significantly as that of last year,
= HRRARRF2007F mainly due the change of the scope of
& prEEE AR - consolidation.

(38) ARATINEERRK (8)  Asatthe end of 2007, the certificates of property
NEERES : right were out of acquirement as follows:

R{E
BEREB Original BE [FERS
Name Cost  Net value Status
SHTR R B 12
Workshop of cephalothin 2,462 2,462 On-going
B ERE B E B R R AER
Warehouse of cephalothin 34 34 On-going
BEEARRE B E B MR IR AR R
Warehouse of Pharm. Trade 1,500 1,425 On-going
BEEBRREE BEF N EMHERIEH
Warehouse of Pharm. Trade 1,802 1,802 On-going
BERRRE FEFE I RIEH
Warehouse of Pharm. Trade 12,976 11,230 On-going
BRKIEERE BEFREHIZAER
Workshop of calcium polycarbophil 1,784 1,784 On-going
&t
Total 20,558 18,737

(4) HREEEESHESD (4) The ending balance of fixed assets included
KEHEREMER RMB8,975,000 of original cost and
R %&8,975F T RMB4,309,000 of net value of houses &
YF{H4,309F T ° buildings used for operational rent.

WRHMEFHREROBR QA
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t SHMERREERAEE 7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE=) Statements (continued)
12. #EBIE 12.  Construction-in-progress
(1) ERIRAMAXR (1)  Detailed list of construction in projects
BAL
RELA
20065 FHEE 2007 Investment
12R31A Transfer ~ Eft®P  12A31  REKR accounts
I8EH I#RE Beginning  #H@EM to fixed Other Ending  Source for the
Project Budget balance Addition assets  deduction balance  of fund budget
RERMEEIR B
Caffeine project 160,000 673 5,814 6,487 0 0  Raised
HE (AR ERIZE BE
Xinhua (West) Intel’ building 0 4,628 4,324 0 0 8,952  Self-owned
HERE)ERIZE BE
Xinhua ( East) Intel' building 0 709 145 0 0 854 Self-owned
£ GMPERiE 25
Injection GMP Revamping 80,000 15 1,695 1,710 0 0 Raised
EREZELM BE
Propyphenazone project 12,500 266 1,476 1,742 0 0  Self-owned
BRI TR
Calcium Polycarbophil project 0 188 0 0 0 188
MERBHKZS
Xinhua (East) Park water
supply system 0 10 0 0 0 10
BHEAEMETR
Supply and marking warehouse
renovation project 0 99 221 320 0 0
20055 DKiEE 85
2005 DK production expansion 5,000 1,630 273 1,903 0 0  Self-owned
05 B Bk R B IBUE BE
2005 high concentration waste 6,000 5,248 0 0 926 4322  Self-owned 87%
water treatment shop
renovation project
riE% BHER (L380) BB
380 30,000 0 18,323 0 0 18,323 Self-owned 61%
FE RS (iR EAIHE) BE
R&D centre in West Park 95,000 0 2,213 0 0 2,213 Self-owned 2%
£t
Other 0 67,578 33,878 64,353 785 36,318
A
Total 81,044 68,362 76,515 1,711 71,180
H o ERRAERLAE
Include: Capitalized borrowing
expense 0 0 0 0 0

WRFERERDBR LA
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

+t SHMEBREERAE 7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE) Statements (continued)
12. EBRIR® (B 12.  Construction-in-progress (continued)
(2) ARALRHEREEIRE (2)  No provision for impairment is made and no
TNEEREBERBRE - & evidence indicates any impairment of
SHEEZ I ERMESE construction-in-progress at the end of the
= period.
13. EESEE 13. Intangible Assets
1) EREE (1) Details of Intangible Assets
THERAE BEERE ESHE®
Land Software Non-patented &t
HE Item use right use right  technology Total
RE Original cost at
2006124 31H beginning of year 106,091 2,791 6,550 115,432
o AREEm Add: Increases in the yr. 7,553 35 8 7,596
W ARERE D Less: Decreases in the yr. 226 136 0 362
2007%12A31H Cost at the end of year 113,418 2,690 6,558 122,666
RrHES Accumulated amortization
2006128 310 at beginning of year 17,059 1,574 3,498 22,131
o AHEH Add: Increases in the yr. 2,536 370 1,138 4,044
" AER D Less: Decrease in the yr. 20 136 0 156
20075 12A31H Accumulated amortization
at the end of year 19,575 1,808 4,636 26,019
BERE Book Value
200612 A31H Net value at 2006.12.31 89,032 1,217 3,052 93,301
2007124318 Net value at 2007.12.31 93,843 882 1,922 96,647
RARER2007F 12 A The Company purchased the land use right
10 B WefE 1L 3RS 3T from Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical

ERBER N RIS
T ERE  FR
[t 11.BE&E
(1)l -

Company limited on 10 December 2007. More
details see Notes 7.11. Fixed Assets (1).

WRFTERERGDBR LA r_
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t. UM ERREERBH 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE=) Statements (continued)
13. EEEE (&) 13. Intangible Assets (continued)
(2) ARAITH|LhER (2)  As at the end of 2007, the certificates of land
T 8 R BTG E B use right were out of acquirement as follows:
=z .
T 1R {E
T E Address Net value
WAk 5 R b Land for Engine Branch 1,293
TheZE i Land for L-dopa(L380) 3,839
SETAE i Land for cephalothin 859
B 25 [ 3R B0 T3 PR SR it Land in Industry Road, 2,189
Development Zone, Zibo
FREFETLER (FEE) Land in West Park of Xinhua 19,765
T b5 e
MEERFETER GRE) Land in East Park of Xinhua, 6,421
T A Development Zone, Zibo
B E—A 5 3 e Land for Xinhua-Perrigo 1,102
AREEAR B
&t Total 35,468
(B8) ZARRHMRENEE (3)  No provision for impairment is made and no
TEERERBE X evidence indicates any impairment of intangible
FHREREERBELE assets at the end of the period.
1 o
14. BREFRBMEE 14. Deferred Tax Assets
(1) EERELEMSHE (1) Recognized deferred tax assets
B

20074 128 31H 2006512 A31H
HE Item 2007.12.31 2006.12.31

AIEMEREER  Deferred Tax Assets from
ZHEHERE deductable temporary difference 9,678 7,615

| WU RFTEREZRBGERAQ A
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- JE)

14. EREFRBNEE (&)

(2) HBREBBELMRE
MEENERIEER

R ERERE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

14. Deferred Tax Assets (continued)

2) Deductable temporary difference of deferred
tax assets at the ending balance

BH
Items of deductable 2007#12A31H 200612 31H
ENEREERER temporary difference 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
AL EeHEE Provision for impairment
IEAEE=ES of available-for-sale
financial assets 30,000 30,000
B Provision for impairment
of receivables 20,751 14,800
FERELEE Provision for impairment
of inventories 8,019 5,969
aEr Total 58,770 50,769
Bx Tax rate 15%, 25% 15%
BRELFEREE Deferred Tax Assets 9,678 7,615
15. RAMER 15.  Short-term Loans
2007128318 20064128 31H
ERER ltem 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
= AfER Credit loans 126,819 55,234
REBEBR Secured borrowings 80,000 180,000
EEr Total 206,819 235,234
Q) EREZxREEEE (1) The ending balance of credit loans contained
IR B BR Y P S5 5 RMB40,000,000 of discounted but not matured
£ 2240,000F 7T * 7% trade acceptance. The maturity date is 16
Z R E|HIH A2008F January 2008.
1816H -
(2) REBXEHERAZ (2) The Secured borrowing was secured by

TR AR R R S Shandong Hualu Holding Group Company
B ARAAIREE Limited, the ultimate shareholder of the
= e Company.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t. UM ERREERBH 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE=) Statements (continued)
16. EHERE 16. Notes Payable
2007% 12R 31H 200612 A31H
REER Item 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
IRITARGES Bank acceptance 30,184 97,067
JERT =& 2 B3 B & 20084 3 The maturity date of notes payable is from 26 March
H26H-2008%F6 A11H - 2008 to 11 June 2008.
17. EMFERER 17.  Accounts Payable
2007% 128 318 2006412 A31H
HH Item 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
JE1S BR 3R Accounts payable 154,100 121,905
(1) HBRENERFTE (1)  The ending balance of accounts payable does
AN A15% (55%) not have any amount due to the shareholders
LA £ RIRBERR (7 Y AR who hold 5% or more of the Company’s voting
HRE(IFA o capital.
(2 HBRERBBLEFNERN (2)  Accounts payable aged over one year were
R AR REZEM unsettled payments for raw materials.
(38) ENERFEBFEAT (3) The ending balance of accounts payable
HNEE pREE expressed in foreign currency is as follows:
2007% 128 31H 200612 A31H
2007.12.31 2006.12.31

F% HHEEE HSARW R% HEEX FaARE

Original Exchange Translated Original  Exchange Translated

SRR Item Currency Rate into RMB  Currency Rate into RMB
e usD 82 7.3046 599 0 7.8087 0
BT EURO 851 10.6669 3,805 7 10.2665 67
s Total 4,404 67
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

+t SHMEBREERAE 7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE) Statements (continued)
18. FWMIA 18.  Advances from Customers
20074128 31H 20064124 31H
RHE Item 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
TE R K Advances from customers 22,386 9,651
(1) EIRTEUERFREATERR (1) The ending balance of advances from
EEEMRKR - £ E customers has increased significantly as that
=R F]20074 of last year, mainly due to the enlargement of

EREHERRE
K- HERBERER
e -

(2) HIRFEWERFHFPTE ()
AR A F)5% (2 5%)
LA £ RRER (D HI AR
HEBALFIE o

sales in 2007.

The ending balance of advances from
customers does not have any amount due to
the shareholders who hold 5% or more of the
Company'’s voting capital.

() FRIREBMAIFHTAW (3) The advance of RMB1,680,000 from customers
KIE1,680F L EZE aged over one year was unsettled petty
EHAEENTER expense.
=,

19. EfEIFMH 19. Employee Benefits Payable
20064 20074
12A31F  FHEME FHIMAE 12R31R
5H Item 2006.12.31 Additions Payment  2007.12.31

1% (5Hs - Salaries (including bonuses,

BRI L) allowance and subsidies) 0 110,117 110,117 0
BIRHNE Staff welfare 15,297 0 9,702 5,595
HEREE Social securities 0 31,025 31,025 0
Hh: 1 BERKRE Including: 1. Medical insurance 0 6,461 6,461 0

2. BERBZRRE 2. Pension insurance 0 21,152 21,152 0

3. RERRE 3. Unemployment insurance 0 1,854 1,854 0

4. THERRE 4. Work injury insurance 0 910 910 0

5 £FRRE 5. Maternity insurance 0 648 648 0

ERAES Housing funds 328 14,141 13,605 864
TeLBEMBET Union running costs and

BRE employee education costs 12,646 3,883 2,900 13,629

ESE=REE Directors’ and Supervisors'

AEM& remuneration 1,356 2,977 2,313 2,020
R 2 2R R Compensation to employees

LT HRE for termination of

employment relationship 0 17 17 0

it Other 2,121 17,618 2,121 17,618

Hep: DREFEN Including:  Stock-based payment
Rips A settled in cash 0 0 0 0

Bt Total 31,748 179,778 171,800 39,726

WRHMEFHREROBR QA
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(REIEB BELBEIUARET T AEL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(RiEh B gt E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t SHMERREERAEE 7.

L. JE-)
19. EABIHH (&)
H fth F B 2 R B E92007

Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

19.

Employee Benefits Payable (continued)

The ending balance of other mainly included

FHIEEFES2458 T TR RMB2,458,000 of committing- target-bonus in 2007
2007-2008F E &% 8 LHr and remunerations for mainstay of employees.
B
20. ExXHRE 20. Tax Payables
ERRE 20074 2006
Applicable 12A31H 12H31H
nE Item tax rates 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
HEH Value added tax (3,707) (3,009)
LR Business tax 3%, 5% 46 43
T AR Urban maintenance &
construction tax 7% 504 (867)
TEMEH Income tax 15%, 24%, 33% (146) 3,320
BAFTEE Payroll tax 177 122
BEMR Property tax 1.2% 20 15
I B AR A Land VAT 1
ENTERE Stamp tax 150 48
HAEEMM Educational surcharges 4% 257 (315)
&t Total (2,698) (643)
21. BT 21. Dividends Payable
2007% 128 318 2006412 A31H
HE Item 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
IWRAME(LEBBR A7  Shandong Dadi Salt Chemical
Group Company Limited 122 0
FEF Ms. Ren Aiging 117 0
Hit Others 5,268 5,826
EEr Total 5,507 5,826
22. HMUEMR 22. Other Payable
2007%12A 318 200612 A31H
HE Item 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
HAth JE A5 5K Other payable 40,581 29,022
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

+t SHMEBREERAE 7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE) Statements (continued)
22. HMEFERE) 22.  Other Payable (continued)

(1) HAREfh B REREE (1) The ending balance of other payable mainly
FERENNIER includes the payment of constructions, housing
KRR EFELQEEE funds, and etc.

IE o

(2) HEIREMEMAKAT (2) The ending balance of other payable does not
SHARASN (T have any amount due to the shareholders who
5%) DA _EFRIRER 5D hold 5% or more of the Company’s voting
HIPMRFR B i FRIE o capital.

(3) FRECEBE—FHEM (3)  Other payable aged over one year in the ending
JERT R EE R AR A balance was mainly unsettled payment of
HOTRER - constructions.

(4) HEIRARBEAERMSK (4) Individually significant other payable in the

ending balance is as follows:

HH ReedE RE HERANE
Name Amount Ages Content
METERNARA A 1EAR TIEH
Xinhua Industrial & Trading Company Limited 2,270 Less than 1 year Construction
MEREROARA A 1EAR BE HNE
Zibo Thermoelectricity Company Limited 2,116 Less than 1 year Power
BIEENHERMSERRAR 1FLAR TIE®
Jingjiang Saideli Pharmaceutical Machine Company Limited 1,171 Less than 1 year Construction
ENBREREOLR) BRA A 1F AR TIE®
Dasima Environmental Technology (Beijing) Company Limited 958 Less than 1 year Construction
MEREIRARIERBERERR LELR I
Industry Installation Branch of Zibo Architecture &

Constructing Company Limited 915 Less than 1 year Construction
CH)
Total 7,430

5y EfEMSRFREN (5) The ending balance of other payable expressed
TN ERER in foreign currency is as follows:

20074128 31R 200612 A 31H
2007.12.31 2006.12.31
F% HWHEE HAAR% Rl WEEX fEARE
Original Exchange Translated Original ~ Exchange Translated
SR Item Currency Rate into RMB  Currency Rate into RMB
BT EURO 6 10.6669 65 4 10.2665 43
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t SHMERREERAEE 7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE=) Statements (continued)
23. EERTBRAR 23. Deferred Tax Liabilities
(1) EERELMSEHE (1) Recognized deferred tax liabilities
&
2007%12A 318 2006412 A31H
HE ltem 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
JEMTHERMEZRE  Income tax from taxable
P temporary difference 53,795 0
(2 HREERELEME (2)  Deductable temporary difference of deferred
MBENTREEZRE tax liabilities at the ending balance
EY=
R Items of taxable 20074 12R 31R 2006F12A31H
ERHH temporary difference 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
AHHESREE  Changes of fair value of
DR EEED available-for-sale financial assets 342,737 0
REHEMCHEE Changes of fair value of
NRBEZE held-for-trading financial assets 15,897 0
CH) Total 358,634 0
B=E Tax rate 15% 15%
EREEMEHAE Deferred tax liabilities 53,795 0

WRFERERDBR LA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

236




R ERERE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

SHMERRTEREE 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
- JE) Statements (continued)
24. B*F 24.  Share Capital
2007%12A31H 2006F 12 31H
BRRER Item 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
FREE R Conditional tradable shares
Bl & 58 Ik State-held shares 163,259 163,259
BB EARR State-owned legal-person
held shares 0 0
HEMRERFR Domestic-funded-held shares 24,558 41,286
He o \EARR Including: Domestic legal-person
held shares 24,527 41,247
BN EAARR Domestic natural person
held shares 31 39
HNVE R IR Foreign-funded-held shares 0 0
Hep o BANEAIFRR Including: Foreign legal-person
held shares 0 0
BNE AANFR Foreign natural person
held shares 0 0
FREGEHBRAEH Sub-total 187,817 204,545
EREEHRR Unconditional tradable shares
ARB L AR Domestically listed RMB A shares 119,496 102,768
BN EmINE IR Domestically listed foreign
invested shares 0 0
BN ETINE IR (HAR) Overseas listed foreign
invested H shares 150,000 150,000
Hh Others 0 0
EREGRERO S Sub-total 269,496 252,768
Rin#EE Total stock 457,313 457,313
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(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t SHMERREERAEE 7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

238

- JE=) Statements (continued)
25. BFLE 25.  Capital Surplus
20065 20074
12A31H EEBm *ERD 12A31H

EH Item 2006.12.31 Additions  Deductions  2007.12.31

BEEMEE Upward revaluation of assets 60,910 0 0 60,910

R (B Premium of stock 496,851 0 0 496,851

BXEHE Receipt of donation 1,158 0 0 1,158

Hith & ARNDTE Others 0 342,737 51,410 291,327

ast Total 558,919 342,737 51,410 850,246

(1) HtEXRXREZER] (1)  Others capital surplus mainly accounting for
HEECHEERR the change in fair value of available-for-sale
BIRTTIE AR F financial assets, which were legal-person held
FIRBE AR A shares of Bank of Communications and Pacific
BEZE - Insurance Company Limited.

(2) HREARHEHER (2) The ending balance of capital surplus has
EFEEMRKR - £2 increased much as that of last year, mainly due
RHERZBRIT - K to the market price of shares of Bank of
FERBRF20074F £ Communications and Pacific Insurance
M HERMELSF Company Limited because of both their stocks
g INE K o going public in 2007.

26. EBRAR 26. Surplus Reserves
20064F 20074
12A31R FEEM EERD 12A318

EH Item 2006.12.31 Additions  Deductions ~ 2007.12.31

FEBBAE Statutory surplus reserves 97,489 1,972 0 99,461

EFERBAE Discretionary surplus reserve 64,797 0 0 64,797

G Total 162,286 1,972 0 164,258

27. XRoE#HE 27.  Undistributed Profits
1)  FESE L (1)  Distribution Proportion
PEER 20074F B 20064F £
RH Item Distributed base 2007 2006
IREA SR ATEE  Appropriation of statutory 5 Fl 10% 10%

surplus reserve

Net profit
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(KB BB RBEI YN RETF LA EL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

EHMBERETEREHE 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
- XE ) Statements (continued)
27. ROE#NAE) 27.  Undistributed Profits (continued)
(2) AMEPEEE (2)  Profit Distribution Statement
2007 12310 200612 A31H
B Item 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
AR DB Undistributed profit
at beginning of the year 171,892 166,609
m: BORIE Add: adjustment to the undistributed
GipERCE: S profit at beginning of the year 0 6,660
me RERENE Add: Net profit of the year 32,723 23,567
B RRERLES Less: Appropriation of statutory
surplus reserve 1,972 2,078
PEEBRRA Dividends payable on
common stock 9,146 22,866
HR R 2 B Al Undistributed profit at the end of the year 193,497 171,892
Heb o BORH 2R Including: dividend in cash to be distributed 13,719 9,146

@ AAE)EH2007F1A1 () The retrospective adjustments on the
HERITHEESE undistributed profit at beginning of the year
R - HEYRAER due to the adoption of ASBEs on 1 January
FMErEPARFR 2007 have been detailed in Notes 4.24
[P0~ 24 EREETK Significant Changes of Accounting Policies and
® - BEMEFTEEA Accounting Estimates and Corrections of Errors.
BASFEEEIE] -

(i) 20076 H158 * & (i) The General Meeting for 2006 held on 15 June
A E]2006 4 E B F ik 2007 passed the resolution on the proposal for
RAZHIBAE #2006 2006 profit distribution. Under the resolution,
FEMBIEAR - the shareholders will be allocated cash dividend
FEIRELL0% A ER of RMB0.02 per share (before tax) based on
BHRAERRE - LER the total number of 457,312,830 shares after
7X457,312,8300% A& £ providing for 10% statutory surplus reserve.
- MEERFEIRE
REAMFRARKE
0.027T (BH) °

(i) 20084 4H18H @ K& (iii)  According to the resolution on the preliminary

NAFERAEEESE
TR EZHBREH
2007F E R B o B TE
£ ERRI0%H) A
TARBAEEE - N
4% R 457,312,830
BMAEES  mEER
HRE IR A F &%
AR¥0.037T (&
i) » %2007 EF
B B TE =R M AR
RARZHE -

proposal for 2007 profit distribution passed at
the 14th Meeting of the 5th Board of Directors
on 18 April 2008, the Company allocated cash
dividend of RMBO0.03 per share (before tax)
based on the total number of 457,312,830
shares after providing for 10% statutory surplus
reserve. The resolution should be approved by
shareholders of annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )
(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t SHMEBRRETERAH

7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE=) Statements (continued)
28. SHERES 28.  Minority Interest
DHBRELH 2007% 20065
Ratio of equity 12A 318 12A 318
PBRRER Name interests 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
IWRHEBEEEEFEIAR  Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Group Company Limited 10% 49 34
IWRFEBLEEEFETAR  Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Group Company Limited 12% 256 180
LI PENG LI PENG 23.1% 684 743
Eastwest United Group, INC Eastwest United Group, INC 25% 3,622 2,996
BAREMERERAR Perrigo Asia Holding Company 49.9% 23,698 0
WEAELEBFRAR Shandong Dadi Salt &
Industrial Company Limited 41.4375% 13,613 0
FEFR Ms. Ren aigin 49% 8,871 0
REEHNRREAH Dongying Lanjing Technology
Development Company Limited 471% 0 (233)
AAAMER At Nippon Gonghe Pharmaceutical
Corporation 30% 0 (439)
a3 Total 50,793 3,281
29. EBEWA - -EBEXRF 29. Operating Income and Cost
(1) EERA - EERAK (1)  Operating Income and Cost
20074 B 2006F £
HH Iltem 2007 2006
FEEBKA Income from main operation 1,845,036 1,667,252
HEBKA Income from other operation 41,943 55,648
EUN Sub-total 1,886,979 1,722,900
RSB B HER Sales to top 5 customers 259,029 278,885
IEEEEEWALLR Accounting of the total sales 14.04% 16.73%
FEEBRAR Cost from main operation 1,557,883 1,390,346
HAbEBKA Cost from other operation 44,534 49,300
= % N= Sub-total 1,602,417 1,439,646
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t. SHMERREERAF 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE) Statements (continued)
29. EBEWA - -BERF B 29. Operating Income and Cost (continued)
(2) FEEBRAKEK — (2) Income and Cost from Main Operation Listed
REmDHE by Products
20075 20064 £

HH Iltem 2007 2006

FEEBRA Income from main operation

R} B Bulk Pharmaceuticals 1,163,054 977,319

Her: EFZED  Including: Export sales 852,098 733,652
07| Preparations 340,345 271,657
(SEinbil Commerce circulations 332,795 399,622
{t TR EA Chemical and others 8,842 18,654

CH) Sub-total 1,845,036 1,667,252

EEEBEA Cost from main operation

[ 2 Bulk Pharmaceuticals 982,289 787,452

Hep: REREHD  Including: Export sales 743,843 592,941
2L Preparations 262,239 187,814
SEinkil Commerce circulations 308,973 395,367
TR E A Chemical and others 4,382 19,713

EEr Sub-total 1,557,883 1,390,346

FTEEBER Gross margin from main operation

JR¥} 5% Bulk Pharmaceuticals 180,765 189,867

He o FERZED  Including: Export sales 108,255 140,711
B3| Preparations 78,106 83,843
EERA Commerce circulations 23,822 4,255
LI REAM Chemical and others 4,460 (1,059)

G Sub-total 287,153 276,906
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t SHMERREERAEE 7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE=) Statements (continued)
30. EExRaRMm 30. Taxes and Surcharges
FHBE B
HH Base of (1 1:4%) 20075 & 20064 &
Iltem computation Tax rate 2007 2006
EED FETBUWA
Business tax Design revenue 5% 179 ig3
TR MR R TR
Urban maintenance &
construction tax VAT 7% 7,536 5,792
A BN AR
Educational surcharges VAT 4% 4,199 3,309
a&t
Total 11,914 9,234
31. HM¥aEHA 31. Financial Expenses
20074E B 2006 &
HA Item 2007 2006
e Interest expenses 12,183 20,372
A FBUA Less: interest income 2,311 4,681
o0 B EK Add: exchange loss 8,969 3,835
e FEE Add: commission charges 881 1,114
o Hphse Add: others 499 103
G Total 20,221 20,743
32. BERERX% 32. Impairment Loss of Assets
200756 E 20064 &
HH Item 2007 2006
ZEIRIE R Impairment loss of bad debts 12,900 14,503
EN=4SEEES Impairment loss of inventories 1,866 4,630
TEMERBEER Impairment loss of
constructing materials 1,159 0
&t Total 15,925 19,133
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

EHMBEEREERAHE 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
- JE) Statements (continued)
33. LAREEEHKS 33. Gain or Loss from changes in fair value
20074E & 20065 E
HA Item 2007 2006
RH5ESREENR Gain or loss from changes in
EEEF S fair value of held-for-trading
financial assets 15,763 51
AEERAABEEH KR During this year, gain or Loss from changes in fair value rise due

EFEENEKR - TERHR
REXSPTE  ERFEAQ
ATEEREEAABER

to the impact of exchange rate, fair value of derivative financial
assets of the Company change.

BEK o
34. KBEKE 34. Investment Gain or Loss
Sources of 2007 & 2006 £
EERBRBOHRE Investment gain or loss 2007 2006
AT 4 & 5 Bl Dividends from the
BEBMIREDE available-for-sale financial assets 914 141
BT E WS Bond investment gain or loss 1,647 6,588
FRABENWIKE Adjustment on the investee’s
BRFAEE#ER shareholders’ equity
FILRH 2R at the end of the year (3,581) (699)
B &F Total (1,020) 6,030
AN B E W S H e N F There is no significant restriction on the returns of investment
fEE KPR income.
35. EEMEA 35. Non-operating Income
(1) &EEINEABRMA (1) Detailed list of non-operating income
20074 & 20064 [&
HE Item 2007 2006
FRBEERSEFS Proceeds from disposal of
non-current assets 6,031 2,831
BT BS Government Subsidies 5,479 600
BER Income from penalties 3,869 0
HAth Others 3,349 717
aEr Total 18,728 4,148

WRHMEFHREROBR QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t. UM ERREERBH 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE=) Statements (continued)
35. EEMEA (E) 35. Non-operating Income (continued)
(2) BTHBIEAAR : (2) Details of Government subsidies
HHESR &8 BEXR
Item Amount Circular No.
MNEAREEEREASE S 81 £2[2007]97%%
Compensation on experiment in ecological
environment near Xiaoging River 600  Zi Cai Qi [2007] No. 97
RIECEY SR E[2007]26%;
EE1{4[2007]69%%
Subsidies on R&D 400  Zi Zheng Fa [2007] No.26;
Lu Cai Qi [2007] No. 69
BBEERFEES HERTRNEXRER
ERZEETH
Supporting funds from government 4,479 From Management Committee of
Zibo New & High-tech Industrial
Development Zone
/_\?-I-
[=s)
Total 5,479
36. EXEHZH 36. Non-operating Expense
20074E B 20065 &
RE Item 2007 2006
EMBEEREBERRX Loss from disposal of
non-current assets 3,990 542
N MRS Donations for commonweal 44 603
SR RA RS H Overdue fines and penalties 1,820 378
Hith Others 1,817 1,556
= Total 7,671 3,079
37. FBRER 37. Income Tax Expenses
20075 B 20064F £
HE Item 2007 2006
EHFENER Income tax expenses in
current period 8,044 7,643
RLEMSTER Deferred income tax expenses 322 (1,039)
CE Total 8,366 6,604
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t. SHMERREERAF 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE) Statements (continued)
38. HaREXR 38. Cash Flow Statement
(1) JIFERBEERERD (1) Cash and its equivalents presented in cash
ReNBEEBYIE flow statement
1z
207K 20065
EH ltem 2007 2006
e Cash 199,833 133,134
i : EREe Including: ~ Cash in hand 149 184
AR AR Bank deposit available for
HRTER payment at any moment 142,638 132,950
MR AR A Other funds available for
MEMERES payment at any moment 57,046 0
ReZEN Cash equivalents 0 0
Heb: ZAAMZEE  Including:  debt investment with
BT A a maturity of 3 months 0 0
HRREANH S Ending balance of cash and equivalents 199,833 133,134
EENHRE
Hep : B2FHE®  Including:  cash and equivalents
AFARIER restricted to use by
RREEE S parent company or
NEEEEY subsidiaries in the Group. 0 0
2 WE IR EA R (2) Other Cash Received/Paid Relating to
KEEBHENIER S Operating Activities
1) U 21| Y E th E2 1) Other Cash Received Relating to
KR H M Operating Activities
IR &
2007 E 20065
HE Item 2007 2006
M EBA Interest income 1,814 3,456
TN Subsidies income 5,479 600
ERZK Fund transactions 0 11,240
RORLEZRES Bank acceptance deposit 16,976 35,748
MEERHE Allowance on R&D 3,760 0
it Other 3,485 655
&t Total 31,514 51,699
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FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

t. UM ERREERBH 7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

- JE=) Statements (continued)
38. BleREXR (A 38. Cash Flow Statement (continued)
) K E), A B H i £R (2) Other Cash Received/Paid Relating to
i“‘%ﬁ@ﬁféa # IR & Operating Activities (continued)
(&)
2) A 9 E At £ 2)  Other Cash Paid Relating to Operating
KREEHEHA Activities
RIR &
2007 20065 £
HE Item 2007 2006
WA Office expenses 4,861 2,116
EIRE Travel expenses 1,479 1,151
IHEE  BiE - Annual listing fee, audit fee
5 and Board's fee 7,240 7,727
g Sewage discharge fees 7,929 5,183
BE  mEREE Advertising and marketing
expenses 25,363 58,025
B8 Freight charges 28,924 19,942
EBRAEE Entertainment expenses 2,920 1,932
RiiFAEE Research and development
expenses 11,330 16,982
FRT Funds transactions 16,274 0
Hit Others 24,298 19,508
Bt Total 130,618 132,566
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38. HeHRER#E)
B) AHBRERERBR

R ERERE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

7. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

38. Cash Flow Statement (continued)

) Supplementary Information to Consolidated

B Cash Flow Statement
207FE 20065 %
EH ltem 2007 2006
1. BENERSA 1. Reconciliation of net income to
BERBRERE : cash flows from operating activities
i) Net profit 38,144 22,754
m: EEREER Add:  Provisions for assets impairment 15,925 19,133
B EENE Depreciation of fixed assets 101,088 98,719
BYEERE Amortization of intangible assets 4,044 4,074
REETEE Losses on disposal of fixed assets,
BYEENEM intangible assets and
RPEENEL other long-term assets
(W bh [-JE50) (or deduct: gains) -2,041 -2,290
NAEEEDER Profit or loss from changes
UeDARE ) in fair value (or deduct: gains) -15,763 51
BBEM (e [-1E3)) Financial expense (or deduct: gains) 12172 20,372
RERK (Rzbh[-123]) Investment loss (or deduct: gains) 1,020 -6,030
BRAMEHEERNRD Decrease in deferred tax assets
(% MBA -1 851) (or deduct; increase) -2,063 -1,039
BEMEHARHEN Increase in deferred tax liabilities
(Rl DIA[-1851) (or deduct: decrease) 53,795 0
FERRD Decrease in inventories
(it [-]5331) (or deduct; increase) -63,145 45779
LENEREANR D Decrease in operating receivables
(A T-JE5)) (or deduct; increase) 8,819 39,987
e EABE LN Increase in operating payables
(R BAT-JE51) (or deduct; decrease) -31,404 -108,104
BREEELY Net cash flows from
BERENE operating activities 120,591 133,304
2. M RBEITH 2. Significant investing and financing activities
EARENELES: not involving cash receipt or payment:
BEERER Conversion of a debts to capital 0 0
—FRIBNTERARE Convertible bonds due within one year 0 0
HERABTEAE Financial lease-in fixed assets 0 0
3 ReRBALEEMFEYER: 3. Changes in cash and cash equivalents:
RAeNHRAE Ending balance of cash 199,832 133,134
B RenBRE Less: beginning balance of cash 133,134 298,041
n: ReSEMNRRRE Add:  ending balance of cash equivalents 0 0
B BeEENMANRE Less: heginning balance of cash equivalents 0 0
ReRAESENFENE Net increase of cash and cash equivalents 66,698 -164,907
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FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

N. BATIMERERETEIRH 8. Notes to the Financial Statements of the

HE Parent Company
1. FE U AR &% 1. Accounts Receivable
(1) YR ER S (1) Risk Classification of Accounts Receivable
2007 12A 310 2006124318
2007.12.31 2006.12.31
BRER ERERE
4] @ Bad debts Ex ffl Bad debts
HE Item Amount Ratio  Provision Amount Ratio Provision
% %

BESEEALN  Individually significant

el accounts receivable 63,318 28.52 317 81,857 31.32 409
EHEBESEAE  Individually non-significant
ROERER accounts receivable 158,723 7148 6,378 179,489 68.68 11,750
At Total 222,041 100.00 6,695 261,346 100.00 12,159
BIFSRE AN R Individually significant accounts receivable
SR X A EIH5008 T referred to as individual accounts receivable
PA &) FEUBR 3R+ &8 with an amount over RMB5,000,000. The
HEFESHEEANE provision for bad debts have been made on
WERFEITRE © K aging basis as no impairment of individually
BEREDR - 8K significant accounts receivable was found after
FBRE AT IR AR AE the assessing.
1 o
(2) EUREFRERER (2)  Aging Analysis
2007%12A 318 200612/ 317
2007.12.31 2006.12.31
BIEER BIRE
&8 KA  Bad debts £ ftfl Bad debts
RH Item Amount Ratio  Provision Amount Ratio  Provision
% %
1ELAR Less than 1 year 175,207 78.91 692 204,140 78.11 933
1-24F 1to 2 years 18,818 8.48 294 40,513 15.50 2,381
-3 2 to 3 years 23,864 10.75 1,558 15,807 6.05 7,959
SENE Over 3 years 4,152 1.87 4,151 886 0.34 886
ar Total 222,041 100.00 6,695 261,346 100.00 12,159
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FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(KB BB RBEI YN RETF LA EL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

8. Notes to the Financial Statements of the
Parent Company (continued)

1. Accounts Receivable (continued)

®)

The provision system for bad debts shall be
seen above Notes 4.7. The Company recovered
RMB288,000 of the previous written-off
accounts receivable in 2007.

AEERBARER (4) RMB3,238,000 of accounts receivable aged
ZHBRIZET £ 2 over 3 years has been written off in 2007
R=F LA Er e W AR according to the Company’s accounting policy.
343,238 F T °
R EWBR R T & (5) In the ending balance, there is no account
A RA FI5% (55%) receivable due from shareholders who hold 5%
PA_E FRAHE AR D B9 A% or more of the Company’s voting capital.
REMNRK -
BAZR fR BB B AL A P& (6)  The balance of accounts receivable due from
KWEREEAF the top five debtors is RMB222,041,000
222,041F 7T ~ b accounting for 25.18% of the total balance of
£525.18% ° accounts receivable.
BAZR R 58 e Uk A B (7)  The balance of accounts receivables due from
FFRIEE 5145,734F the related parties is RMB45,734,000,
JC ~ EEilA20.60% © accounting for 20.60% of the total balance of
accounts receivable.
FEUBR X B AT (8) The ending balance of accounts receivable
HSNESBREE expressed in the foreign currency is as follows:
2007 12R 318 20065128311
2007.12.31 2006.12.31
F% HHEX HEAR® & FEEX HEARE

Original  Exchange  Translated Original ~ Exchange  Translated
R Item Currency Rate  into RMB Currency Rate into RMB
e usb 15,073 7.3046 110,101 18,282 7.8087 142,760

WRHMEFHREROBR QA
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FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

N. BATIMERERETEIRH 8. Notes to the Financial Statements of the

:3: 369 Parent Company (continued)
2. 3 fth FE e Bk 2. Other Receivable
(1) EmEYRERS R (1) Risk Classification of Other Receivable
2007¥12R 318 2006124317
2007.12.31 2006.12.31
BIRE EREE
& H  Bad debts e bl Bad debts
HE [tem Amount Ratio  Provision Amount Ratio  Provision
% %

EBSEEAN  Indvidually significant

el other receivable 6,196 17.94 6,196 11,835 20.39 0
EEHSEAE  Individually non-significant

AEJEAMEME  other receivable 28,347 82.06 219 46,211 79.61 4,238
At Total 34,543 100.00 6,415 58,046 100.00 4,238
BIRSREEAMNEAM Individually significant other receivable referred
FE WK 7 B TH5008 to as individual other receivable with an amount
TC A BB H Ath B IR over RMB5,000,000. The provision for bad debts
R KEBIR SRR have been made on aging basis as no
N B H b & YR ETT impairment of individually significant other
RE - REBRBED receivable was found after the assessing.

R - WA REORRT
TR -

(2) HitnElsaREe (2)  Aging Analysis
2007¥12R 318 2006124317
2007.12.31 2006.12.31
BIRE ERER
& IH  Bad debts e bl Bad debts
EH [tem Amount Ratio  Provision Amount Ratio  Provision
% %
1EUR Less than 1 year 25,074 72.59 4 27,211 46.88 10
1-26 1to 2 years 989 2.86 0 18,790 32.37 166
2-3F 2 to 3 years 908 2.63 139 2,306 3.97 533
3FEL L Over 3 years 7572 21.92 6,272 9,739 16.78 3,529
i Total 34,543 100.00 6,415 58,046 100.00 4,238
(38) EEREMHEBAEHES A (83)  The provision system for bad debts shall be
T Lt Bl 2 B AR Bt & seen above Notes 4.7.
Pg-7o
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FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(KB BB RBEI YN RETF LA EL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

8. Notes to the Financial Statements of the
Parent Company (continued)

2.

Other Receivable (continued)

(4)

®)

(6)

)

®)

)

RMB1,821,000 of other receivable aged over
three years have been written off in 2007
according to the Company’s accounting policy.

The ending balance of other receivable includes
output VAT for exporting before applying to
customs. No bad debts provision is made on
these items.

In the ending balance, there is no other
receivable due from shareholders who hold 5%
or more of the Company’s voting capital.

The balance of other receivable due from the
top five debtors is RMB10,365,000, accounting
for 30.01% of the total balance of other
receivable.

The balance of other receivable due from the
relayed parties is RMB388,000, accounting for
1.10% of the total balance of other receivable.

There is no other receivable expressed in
foreign currency in its ending balance.

Long-term Equity Investment

REIRERE (1) Long-term Equity Investment

5A Item 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
BRAEZERERERE  Accounted in cost method 108,311 97,722
REZARERSERERE  Accounted in equity method 23,512 18,253
REREREAH Total 131,823 115,975
A RERERERNEER Less: Impairment of Long-term equity investment 0 0
REREREFE Net value of Long-term equity investment 131,823 115,975

WRHMEFHREROBR QA
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FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

N. BATIMERERETEIRH 8. Notes to the Financial Statements of the

:3: 369 Parent Company (continued)
3. REKRERRE (&) 3. Long-term Equity Investment (continued)
(2) EREREE - EmE (2)  Accounted in Equity Method and Cost Method
EESR
REf
BELA DReE S£VEE EXBE Dividends
BRERGAE Holding  Original Balance in ~ &8 K& Balance in received
Name of investee Ratio Cost 2006.12.31  Addition Deduction 2007.12.31  in 2007
RARERE

Accounted in cost method
1L WRHEZZEFERAT
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Trade Company Limited 100% 47,529 47,529 0 0 47,529 0
2. MEBHEBERHRERAT
Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Design
Institute Company Limited 90% 1,800 1,800 0 0 1,800 0
3. HEBHEAEEEHERAT
Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain
Company Limited 88% 1,760 1,760 0 0 1,760 0
4, EEHE-ZACIERAHF
Zibo Xinhua-Sanhe Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited 70% 2,897 2,897 0 2,897 0 0
5. WRHEHE (BN ARAA
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(European) GmbH 76.90% 4,597 4,597 0 0 4,597 0
6. HENE-PAREEREALT
Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest Pharmaceutical
Company Limited 75% 9,008 9,008 0 0 9,008 0
1. HBHE-RNRREAREEAA
Sino-USA Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 50.10% 24,831 24,831 46 0 24877 0
8. WRAMHEEERAA
Shandong Dadi Xinhua Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited 5,300 5,300 13,440 0 18,740 0

it
Sub-total 97,722 13,486 2,897 108,311 0

WRHMEREROGBER QA
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R ERERE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

IN. BAFIMEEREERH 8. Notes to the Financial Statements of the

i3 ¥E) Parent Company (continued)
3. REBRERE (&) 3. Long-term Equity Investment (continued)
(2) A E ERE (2)  Accounted in Equity Method and Cost Method
(#) (continued)
EENR
RefF
BRILA PDReE FNRE EXBE Dividends
HREEARE Holding  Original Balance in ~ &8 KM Balance in  received
Name of investee Ratio Cost 2006.12.31  Addition Deduction 2007.12.31  in 2007
BRERE

Accounted in equity method
L WRHERECIBERAA
Shandong Xinhua Longxin Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited 40% 10,000 10,694 (330) 0 10,364 0
2. IRHERECIRBARRA
Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical
Equipment Company Limited 35% 7,700 7,559 (1,810) 0 5,749 0
3. IREBHEREZARAR

Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical

Company Limited 20% 10,179 0 7,399 0 7,399 0

NGt

Sub-total 18,253 5,259 0 23,512 0

CH

Total 115,975 18,745 2,897 131,823 0
(38) FHREKRERELE (3) Impairment on Long-term Equity Investment

1

RATRARERE No provision for impairment is made and no

MFERERBE @ R evidence indicates any impairment of long-term

FHRRHEAIRERELE equity investment at the end of the period.

1 o
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FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

N, BRAFRMBEHEREERE 8.

Notes to the Financial Statements of the

:3: 369 Parent Company (continued)
3. REKRERRE (&) 3. Long-term Equity Investment (continued)
(4) EEEME  BED (4)  Joint Ventures and Associates
E
RRRE MRBEE
BER HRREM 88  xHER
RRLA RRELH Net HWARE #HB3HA
HREELER H RERE Holding Voting  Assets on  Turnover  Net profit
Name of investee Registered address ~ Business scope Ratio Ratio  2007.12.31 in 2007 in 2007
BEbR
Joint Ventures
L WRHERELIARAA WFBEBTEEE KBRZNERY
L155%299% EENHE
Shandong Xinhua Longxin ~ 299th Ethene Road, ~ Production and sales of ~ 40% 40% 25,904 90,750 (825)
Chemical & Industrial Linzi Dist., Zobo, Salicylic acid series
Company Limited Shandong
2 IRHERENIRE PTERUE=BN IB4EHENT
BRAT BRI
Shandong Xinhua Sanlihe, Changshan ~ Production and sales of ~ 35% 35% 16,426 17,264 (5171)
Changxing Chemical Town, Zouping, chemical facilities
Equipment Company Shandong and fittings
Limited
3. WREBHEHEARAA WFHETRNMEG HERY
PERERIIE
Shandong Zibo XinCat Chemical Area in Zibo Preparation of chemical ~ 20% 20% 29293 154,653 (13,901)
Pharmaceutical Company ~ New & High- Tech  medicine
Limited Industrial Development

Zone, Shandong

WRFERERDBR LA
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R ERERE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

IN. BAFIMEEREERH 8. Notes to the Financial Statements of the

i3 ¥E) Parent Company (continued)
4. BXWA  BERT 4, Operating Income and Cost
(1) EERA - EERN (1) Operating Income and Cost
20075 & 2006 £
EH Item 2007 2006
FEEBUA Income from main operation 1,378,898 1,315,999
HinZEBWA Income from other operation 62,823 49,811
EEBAEH Sub-total 1,441,721 1,365,810
RISARFHEER Sales to top 5 customers 259,029 278,885
EEEEBWALG  Accounting of the total sales 18.79% 21.19%
FEERKA Cost from main operation 1,168,317 1,050,990
HihEHRA Cost from other operation 66,622 49,221
EERFSH Sub-total 1,234,939 1,100,211

LRFERERGERD T (m
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FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

N. BATIMERERETEIRH 8. Notes to the Financial Statements of the

:3: 369 Parent Company (continued)
4. EXWA  EBERF (B) 4. Operating Income and Cost (continued)
(2) FEEBWRAKE— (2) Income and Cost from Main Operation—
REmDE Products Segment
2007 & 2006F £
HH [tem 2007 2006
FEEBBA Income from main operation
[RR} Bulk Pharmaceuticals 1,051,152 982,444
Heb o O R & Including: Export sales 740,196 738,776
2H Preparations 324,747 283,945
HERB Commerce circulations 1,024 33,605
EIREM Chemical and others 1,975 16,005
=113 Sub-total 1,378,898 1,315,999
FERBEF Cost from main operation
[RA 8 Bulk Pharmaceuticals 888,254 796,208
Heh WA RE Including: Export sales 649,807 598,065
B3| Preparations 277,277 201,172
BERB Commerce circulations 1,883 33,809
EIREAM Chemical and others 903 19,801
At Sub-total 1,168,317 1,050,990
IEEEEN Gross margin from main operation
FRR B Bulk Pharmaceuticals 162,898 186,236
He: HORK & Including: Export sales 90,389 140,711
27 Preparations 47,470 82,773
BERB Commerce circulations (859) (204)
LT REA Chemical and others 1,072 (3,796)
&t Sub-total 210,581 265,009
5. BEKE 5. Investment Gain or Loss
2007EE 20065
EEREGHENEKE Sources of Investment income 2007 2006
fAENESREEEN Dividends from the available-for-sale

BEAAENREAIA financial assets 914 141
ERRE M Bond investment income 1,647 6,588
ERARMBEREEN Adjustment on the investee’s shareholders’

FEERRFEANEE equity at the end of the year (7,817) (231)
Ch Total (5,256) 6,498
RR AR E Wb B D E There is no significant restriction on the returns of
EEARRH ° investment income.
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R ERERE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

h. RARFREREZH 9. Related Party Relationship and

Transaction
(—) BRBARE 1. Related Party Relationship
FEEGIBENFRARIFR Detailed subsidiaries under a control relationship shall
MIEEN « DEEFRA G be seen in Notes 6. Business Combination and
TEH K o Consolidated Financial Statements.
1. I ERNH A 1. Related Parties under a control relationship
Eol:iba)
A ER ARMERE Bl HENFNE  EEHE EEREA
Related Code of Place of TEER Relation with Legal
Party Name Organization registration Main operations the Company Nature  Representative
LRHEREEE 164132472 WEEEETRER RERBETIRMR P UNT PASYNCI- Y op #=
ARELEAH BB 145 FHERE  £8%
Shandong Xinhua No. 14, East 1st Road,  Investment in Parent company  State-owned Guo Qin
Pharmaceutical Group Zhangdian Dist., the design of construction of the Company
Company Limited Zibo, Shandong projects, property development
Province. and food and beverage, etc.
ZERREBERAT 771039712 WREEETERELIE  HLE ALEXRE REEEE  BRAzERRR  EEEE ZRE
Shandong Hualu Holding No. 1, Bangpeng Street,  Investment and management in The ultimate ~ State-owned Li Tongdao
Group Company Limited Jinan, Shandong fertilizer and petrochemicals, etc. holding company
Province.
2. TrE iz fl B R E A 2. Registered capital and its changes of related
BT B & R & parties under a control relationship
HE(t
RELEM KERD
WES 2B Related Party Name 2006.12.31 Addition  Deduction  2007.12.31
LR EREEE Shandong Xinhua
BREEAT Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited 298,500 0 0 298,500
Z2PREEABLE  Shandong Hualu Holding
Group Company Limited 800,000 0 0 800,000
3. GHEZEHIBENEMD 3. Share holdings and their changes of related
A B 77 & P IR (0 K parties under a control relationship
HE(L
HFReH 1:4:47 |
Amount of shares Ratio
REkS RE Related Party Name 2007 2006 2007 2006
LWRFEREEE Shandong Xinhua
BAREEAT Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited 163,259 163,259 35.70% 35.70%

WRFTERERGDBR LA r_

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

h REBEFTRERRAXS @) 9. Related Party Relationship and
Transaction (continued)
(—) FMBBRE E) 1. Related Party Relationship (continued)
4. I 1 2 Il R O R 4. Nature of related parties under no control
B 5 B 1 relationships
UL L L] HERRRNZANE
Related Party Name Relationship Related Transactions with the Company
WRHETERRBARRA R — & RAEH REBNR=F  RERIH
Shandong Xinhua Industry & Under the common control of Sale of power and waste materials,
Trade Company Limited parent company and purchase of raw materials
WRHZEREEENERS KA — BRI BEXBBRES  HEDN
RBBREL AT
Zibo All-purpose Service Under the common control of Purchase of services and sale of power
Company Limited of parent company

Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group*

IWRHEERCT AR SYNIEL REBRWH
BEREMERLA
Shandong Xinhua Bobang Under the common control of Purchase of materials
Chemical & Industrial parent company
Company Limited
WRHESBLIFRAA R — &N Al TREE R M A
Shandong Xinhua Wanho Under the common control of Purchase of materials
Chemical & Industrial parent company
Company Limited
IWRHMEEECIFRDA ARRBERE REBRMHK
Shandong Xinhua Longxin Joint venture Purchase of materials

Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited

LWRFERE(NT NGl A HERE EEM  BERI
RBERRA

Shandong Xinhua Changxing Joint venture Sale of equipments, work-in-progress and
Chemical Equipment technology
Company Limited

LR EREFR AR XE-—SAREHN2RAR  HEHH HERE

Shandong Zibo Xincat Pharmaceutical ~ Under the common control of Sale of power and housing renting.
Company Limited parent company and partially

held by the Company
WREEHE-FZHEFRAR  BRFAZ2RAF HEPNREBRME
Shandong Zibo Xinhua-Chemferm Partially held by parent company  Sale of power and Purchase of materials

Pharmaceutical Company Limited

4 IR R [ * Zibo All-purpose Service Company Limited of Shandong
SBR A RIEAR Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group has been written off on 31
EERAIBE& December 2007.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FABE S EFHENAARKETF T REML)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

. FRBRAREREXS @ 9. Related Party Relationship and
Transaction (continued)
(Z) HAWXS 2. Related Transactions
1. EBEE 1. Pricing Policy

AN/ =y e The Company sells products and purchases

B2 on DA R e R BSE 5 the materials to related parties at the market

BERMENERK price.

MEEEREEBE

o

2. KEYE 2. Purchase of materials
007K 20065
2007 2006
WRAER RHRE &f 47 F igt]
Related Party Name Transaction contents Amount Rate Amount Rate
WERHETIZRABRAR RITHRICEAH
Shandong Xinhua Industry & Raw materials and 5,710 0.68% 12,484 2.02%
Trade Company Limited chemical reagent

WERHEBEIARAR RiTE

Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Raw materials 40,667 4.83% 20,430 3.31%
Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited

WEHERB L IAREAAR RH

Shandong Xinhua Bobang Raw materials 18,271 2.17% 8,761 1.42%
Chemical & Industrial

WREERE-BEFHERRAT  RiH

Shandong Zibo Xinhua-Chemferm ~ Raw materials 32,082 3.81% 16,989 2.75%
Pharmaceutical Company Limited

WRHER G IARAR RITH

Shandong Xinhua Longxin Raw materials 2,989 0.35% 5,033 0.82%
Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited

WEHERECIREBRAR EREREREE

Shandong Xinhua Changxing Daubed glass retorts 442 0.05% 0 0%
Chemical Equipment
Company Limited

WR A E S FRA A RIH

Shandong Dadi Xinhua Raw materials 31,337 3.72% 0 0%
Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited*

* K ETEE /A S BF * Related transactions with Dadi Xinhua referred the
HEREABED transactions with Dadi Xinhua as joint venture before
ERLENBET it was included in the consolidated financial
5 o statements.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(KHFEG SEHBEIUN R T BEL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(RiEh B gt E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

h BREFRERERXS @ 9. Related Party Relationship and
Transaction (continued)
(Z) BmxE® (E) 2. Related Transactions (continued)
3. HEEY 3. Sale of merchandise
PANNE:3: 20065
2007 2006

WRAEE ZAME &8 :4:] Exd sl

Related Party Name Transaction contents Amount Rate Amount Rate

WRHETERAERARA HEBNR=E

Shandong Xinhua Industry & Sale of power and 3,641 7.54% 8,571 15.44%
Trade Company Limited waste materials

WRHEERCIARRA HEBNR=E

Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Sale of power and 4,326 8.95% 0 0%
Chemical & Industrial waste materials
Company Limited

WRHEEACIAEREEAA HEDN

Shandong Xinhua Bobang Sale of power 0 0% 3 0.01%
Chemical & Industrial

WREERE-FFHERRAR  HEBN

Shandong Zibo Xinhua Sale of power 4,483 19.74% 3,482 6.27%
—Chemferm Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

WRFERECIRBAERDR  HEEEM

Shandong Xinhua Changxing Sale of work-in-progress 0 0% 4,759 100.00%
Chemical Equipment
Company Limited

WEREEERHERRA A HEBN

Shandong Zibo XinCat Sale of power 1,586 6.98% 1,100 1.98%

Pharmaceutical Company

Limited
4. B ER 4. Guaranty secured
RAREBERITE The Company entered a facility contract of

FEMEXAREREY
TRIGREREREE
2B TTE W - AR
RITAHESR - "5
BEHME OEE - 5
{Z HifS B 200749 A
26 H £ 200849 A25
Bz EHaat
RNALRFEEEE
BAERE TR ARHE
ER o 2= 2007F12
A31HARAEXIL
R EREEEGR
EERQ AR EAER
©%827,184F 7T

WRHMEREROGBER QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

RMB200,000,000 as bank acceptance, short-
term loans and bills purchased for exporting
with Branch of New & High-tech Industrial
Development Zone, China Merchant Bank. The
facility is available from 26 September 2007 to
25 September 2008. Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited, the
parent company, provided guaranty for the
facility. As at the end of 2007, the Company
acquired the guaranty secured by the parent
company in a mount of RMB27,184,000.




h BARFREREEZS @)

(Z) WBxXH (#E)

4.

BXERE)

AR EAEE RO
BRITRFERAE A
80,000 F ;LK E Z 1%
=% EFEIME A2007
11 A5H £20084F
11A5H ' B& A A
ZIERR AR R EE B
EBHRE A RIRMIE
# o

RARIR2007F12 A
108 B2 |1 SRS 5
BlEAHR AR (AT
I (R RlEE |) &
AIEEEERE W
BE R IE L BN A 18
MR /G @R —BK145%
EEE AT FE2,528.85
FRANEERER
& /2,072.37F K
By Hb{E A - LR
BE% L B EE A
BHER QAR
AT KB BREH
E(2007) () =5
24605 T LB RS
A B R K[2007]3
1625 &= E & B &
e b e
£ 4586.218 7T © =
EFF{HEE A249.61
EJL * & 77335.828
TCAERER -

FEHERERE 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(KB BB RBEI YN RETF LA EL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

9. Related Party Relationship and
Transaction (continued)

2. Related Transactions (continued)

4.

Guaranty secured (continued)

The Company entered a loan contract with
China Import & Export Bank with a contracted
amount of RMB80,000,000 and for a period
from 5 November 2007 to 5 November 2008.
Shandong Hualu Holding Group Company
Limited, the ultimate shareholders, provided
guaranty for the liabilities of the Company under
the above borrowing contract.

Purchase of Assets

The Company entered an assets transferring
agreement with Shandong Zibo Xincat
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (hereinafter
referred to as Xincat) and purchased a plant with
a total construction area of 2,528.85 square
meters and a land use right which occupied area
of 2,072.37 square meters. The consideration of
the transaction was RMB3,358,200, including
RMB862,100 of land and RMB2,496,100 of
property, which based on the appraisal report of
land ((Zibo) Lusheng Property (2007) (gu) No.
2460) and appraisal report of property (Zibo
Pinggu [2007] No. 162) which were both issued
by Shandong Lusheng Appraisal & Advisory
Company Limited.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(REIEB BELBEIUARET T AEL)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(RiEh B gt E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

h BREAFRERERS @) 0.

Transaction (continued)

Related Party Relationship and

(Z) BmxE® (E) 2. Related Transactions (continued)
6. BEMEE 6. Lease of Assets
L EBELA (1) Lease-out assets
RARE
CLbE Transaction XA 20075 K 20065 %
Name of Related Party contents Effective period 2007 2006
WREBHERERRAA FELH XS
Shandong Zibo XinCat
Pharmaceutical Company Limited  Lease-out of house Whole year 952 1,438
(2 EBEMEA (2) Lease-in assets
RAKE
CLyE Transaction XARME 20075 K 20065 %
Name of Related Party contents Effective period 2007 2006
LR EREEEAREAAT BEARE 2%
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Group Company Limited Lease-in of house Whole year 500 500
WRHEIERABRAA HABE 91l A
Shandong Xinhua Industry &
Trade Company Limited Lease-in of house 9months 370 0
7. HMiz5 7. Other Transactions
(1) EERERE (1)  Trademark Using Fee
WBLER ARZAAE 2007 20065 &
Name of Related Party Transaction contents 2007 2006
WRHEBEEBFRAEAF HRERE
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Group Company Limited Trademark using fee 1,100 1,000

| WURAFTERERBGERAQ A

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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R ERERE o

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FABE S EFHENAARKETF T REML)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

9. Related Party Relationship and
Transaction (continued)

2. Related Transactions (continued)
7. Other Transactions (continued)
1) Trademark Using Fee (continued)

Pursuant to the Trademark License
Agreement signed by the holding
company and the Company on 7
December 1996, the Company was
granted the exclusive right to use the
trademark “Xinhua” (“Trademark”) by the
holding company for its existing and
future products in and outside the PRC
at an initial annual fee of RMB600,000
increasing at the rate of an extra
RMB100,000 per year until the annual
fee reaches the cap amount of
RMB1,100,000, which shall 1,100,000
stay as such until the agreement is
terminated.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

h. RBATRERERS @) 9. Related Party Relationship and
Transaction (continued)
(Z) FAmXES (&) 2. Related Transactions (continued)
7. HEMiz 5 (&) 7. Other Transactions (continued)
(2 RBHE® (2 Offering Service
WBLER ARXARE 2007 K 20065
Name of Related Party Transaction contents 2007 2006

WREEHE -5 FREBERDA TERARS
Shandong Zibo Xinhua—Chemferm
Pharmaceutical Company Limited Design 10 0
WRFERECIREFRAF TERARS
Shandong Xinhua Changxing
Chemical Equipment

Company Limited Design 26 0
WRAMTECEERAA TEFH R
Shandong Dadi Xinhua Chemical &

Industrial Company Limited Design 5 0

(38) XERERIT ii. Acquiring the shares of Bank of

A% Communications
ANATE B E The Company entered a transferring agree
ETIZRD on 22 January 2007 about 144,000 shares
BRAAR of bank of communication with Xinhua
20075 1H22 Industry and Commercial Company
HEGI Rk Limited at a consideration of RMB4.50
EieE o IR per share or totally RMB648,000.
FETZERMD
BRARBHE
FE R RBIR

1714.48 085K
A B A & B
4 .50 BB
L R RVING/N
A » SR
64.88 7T °

WRFERERDBR LA
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

R EREE o

(FEBEBRZEEHEINAARE T TREL)
(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

9. Related Party Relationship and
Transaction (continued)

(2) FABAERERHE 3. Related Party Current Account Balances
20074 12A31H 2006512 A31H
MBAEE Name of Related Party 2007.12.31 2006.12.31
PRI AR Accounts receivable
WRHETLERNERAA Shandong Xinhua Industry &
Trade Company Limited 40,776 40,668
WRFERENRT Shandong Xinhua Changxing
FHEERAA Chemical Equipment Company Limited 0 6,467
RSB EREER AR Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical
Company Limited 4,958 8,048
R R Advances to Suppliers
WRHMEBBLIERAA Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited 8,258 2,959
R ERE({CTERAT Shandong Xinhua Longxin Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited 2,600 2,123
Hi kR Other Receivable
IR FERE LR Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
BREARAR Group Company Limited 0 (6)
WRHETERNERAA Shandong Xinhua Industry &
Trade Company Limited 8 0
WRFEREEBMIFRS Zibo All-purpose Service Company
BBEREEAR Limited of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group 0 1,374
WRHERENRT Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical
REERRA Equipment Company Limited 380 26
FET R 3K Accounts Payable
WRHETLERNDERAT Shandong Xinhua Industry & Trade
Company Limited 1,545 1,371
WRHESH IR AR Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited 1,109 0
IWRFEEHT Shandong Xinhua Bobang Chemical &
BREERA Industrial Company Limited 1,458 598
s Shandong Zibo Xinhua-Chemferm
- BERHBERRAT Pharmaceutical Company Limited 3,311 2,992
WRHMERELT Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical
FEER LA Equipment Company Limited 505 0
TR R Advances from Customers
WRHMEEBLEIERAA Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited 0 4
Hib AR Other Payable
WRHETLERNERAA Shandong Xinhua Industry &
Trade Company Limited 2,271 273
IWRHFEBHT Shandong Xinhua Bobang Chemical &
BREERA Industrial Company Limited 1 0
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(RFBBFZETHEINAARE T T BEN)
(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

+ BEER

10. Contingencies

1. HIMEHEREBRHEE 1. Guaranty for the third party
=L
RARIR20074F7 278 £ The Company entered an agreement with Anyang
T REEFR AT (AT Qiankang Pharmaceutical Company Limited
i (R 5 RE]) FERER (hereinafter referred to as Anyang Qiankang) and
RITRDBR AR LEZIT Anyang Branch of Guangdong Development Bank
(ATEBIEEREZT]) Company Limited (hereinafter referred to GDB) on 27
2 EEhE  HERG® July 2007. The agreement stipulated that the Company
RABBELZGXTEHERNR should guarantee the risk exposure of gap between
TERAEZRAARREZFR the amounts of bank acceptance issued by Anyang
AIEEARIXNER A2 Qiankang in GDB, which was used for the payment to
RAIR UL IER o FEHEIRER Xinhua Pharmaceutical & Trade, a subsidiary of the
FRA -+ LnAE 8 A SR 1T B Company and the amounts of delivering notice issued
Z@i - BIARQRIREER by GDB, which was used for take delivery of goods.
AERENEZZMAS T The guaranty will be available from 27 July 2007 to
HMBREZEREZTE A 27 July 2008 with an utmost amount of
ERNEReBUNENR RMB14,000,000. As at 31 December 2007, Anyang
B RMEBERGIITAEES Qiankang has issued RMB7,000,000 of the bank
HRREE - L@ acceptance and GDB has issued RMB6,500,000 of
REEE 1,4008 7T - HIR & the delivering notice to Xinhua Pharmaceutical & Trade.
20077 H27H Z£200847
R278 - #1-2007% 124
318 - EEXBRITEHREA
O SR T A B 3E R B I AN
BELREDRIAT00E T « 650
BT °

2. M1 baisi B =18 - & 2. The Company has no significant contingencies besides
12007412 B31H @ A2 F] the above to be disclosed on 31 December 2007.
EHMBEBANEER °

+— REEIE 11. Commitment

1. BRI EESRERET 1. Large-Sum Agreed-Upon Contractual

MAXEZESR Disbursements
AR&H RI&H

HH&® ltems Contractual Amount Amount Unpaid
gIFTRIEE Innovation Zone 1,413 570
hE% BaTEm(L380)E B L-380 Projects 12,723 4,751
202 1 E AR E Lidushen project in plant 202 850 38
Kip AR IBIEELE Theophylline expansion 248 25
1065 f/57KE 12 Pollution discharge in plant 106 318 32
HEAETHE End of injection project 732 238
St Land in Shouguang 23,480 18,480
ity Others 7,488 2,377
A&t Total 47,252 26,511

2. MRIFE EallAGEEIEIN - & 2. The Company has no other capital commitments

1F2007%12A31H © &AA 7]
HH fth 8B A AFEEIE o

signed except for the above-mentioned on 31
December 2007

Y WRFTEREZBRBGERRQ A
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

(FFBBEZETHEINAARE T TREN)

(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

T EEERFRHEFER 12. Post Balance Sheet Date Events
AAREFSHEENEREEARBR The Company has no significant subsequent events to be
Hi& %=1 o disclosed.
+= HtiEESHR 13. Other Important Events
1. RA B BB S S E R 1. After the ban of share sales be lifted to a limit of 25%
DATRME LT ARAEBES by the Company in Shenzhen Branch of China Security
[E A B 5 Bt 1 259% Lt {7 i 22 Clearing Centre, the wife of Mr. Gao ginggang, a

% EERERNTERBR supervisor of the Company, sold 500 shares of the
2007458 238 & H = E Ml Company in an account dominated by Mr. Gao on 23
BERPRMERERD May 2007, and bought 500 shares of the Company in
500/% © 7200745 A 24 the same account on 24 May 2007. The transactions
AXNUmERBEAFEREE were breach of Law of Security and the related rules.
FER EAR(H5008% © AR Pursuant to the certain rules, the Company asked Mr.
BEEEF24.55T o lARE Gao to turn over the earning of RMB24.5 arising from
BETRERT(ESFEAB the transactions and have gotten it on 29 May 2007.

BT - ARRREHEBER
F o 2R2007F58 290 #8
= B AKX B 2 AR
EFTEW 524, 5T KR A A
FrA&

2. Br Lt EIESN - E1E20074F 2. The Company has no significant events to be disclosed.
12A318 * ARGIEFRE
BWHMEEEIE o

+H #HREEH 14. Supplementary Information
1. FREHEBERE 1. Non-Routine Profit or Loss

HE Item 2007 2006
FRBEEREER Profit or loss from disposal of

non-current assets 2,041 2,290
AR HERNBNEE Government subsidies in the

current profit or loss 5,479 600
PR BB IESNO E A Non-operating income or

EELIN S cost except items above 3,538 (1,821)

RS BEERABEZE  Change in fair value of

held-for-trading financial assets 15,763 51
HHESREES kS Income distributed from

available-for-sale financial assets 747 141
FERIMKREARE Ka Income from disposal of

held-to-maturity investment 1,647 6,588
STARHBEERNEIESH Fund occupancy expenses from

TEUBNESHAE non-financial company in

current profit or loss 0 270
Nat Sub-total 29,215 8,119
FEHT g Income tax 6,518 2,252
FEERBREAH Total net non-routine

profit or loss 22,697 5,866
2 BERERRRE Including: attributable to

the parent company 22,763 5,866
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(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

+TH.#BREEH @) 14. Supplementary Information (continued)

268

2. SHEVURERSEKRER

R B EE (AR ETE
FERBME S RERBRA A
FNHR—FEERDZETMNE
BT E R RE) N E
Ko ARE(HAKE) 20
EE NN EAFEE
EREEREREENT

2. Rate of Return on Equity (ROE) and Earnings
per Share (EPS)

According to the requirements of “Rule 9 on the
Information Disclosure and Presentation of Companies
That Issue Securities to the Public — Calculation and
Disclosure of Rate of Return on Equity and Earnings
per Share” issued by China Securities Regulatory
Commission, the fully diluted and weighted average
rate of return on equity and earnings per share of the
Company are as follows:

(1) 2007FE (1) In 2007
BEERGE BREE
ROE EPS
2EME niEFEy EFEREE FESRKES
Net income in Full Weighted
BERNA reporting period diluted average Basic Diluted

FENEARRRNEFNE

Net profit attributed to
the parent company 1.96% 2.40% 0.07 0.07

GBREARRRE Net profit attributed to
MER I B the parent company

BERNFNE

after deductions of
extraordinary gains

or losses 0.60% 0.73% 0.02 0.02
(2) 20064 Z (2) In 2006
BRERRE shka
ROE EPS
2mEE NEFY EFBREE RESREKE
Net income in Full Weighted
RERTR reporting period diluted average Basic Diluted

EERSRABRRMNENE

Net profit attributed to
the parent company 1.74% 1.75% 0.05 0.05

FERBRARRKRE - Net profit attributed to
MBRIEE T 1 the parent company

R & HFNE

after deductions of
extraordinary gains
or losses 1.31% 1.31% 0.04 0.04

WRHMEREROGBER QA

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




R ERERE o
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(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)
(R 7+ B S5t £ A4 7))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

+H.HREEHE 2

14. Supplementary Information (continued)

3. HEREERAME 3. Statement of Provision for Impairment of
Assets
FHAME 3 F A
Additions Deductions
IR 1A RT
EEER
AGRE HERER
20064  Provision Recovery of EfE 20076
12A31H Recognized  written-off Elm Other  12R31H
HH ltem 2006.12.31 in the period  bad debts  Reversion transferring  2007.12.31
ERAEER Provision for impairment of
bad debts 15,467 12,900 568 0 7,185 21,750
FEREER Provision for impairment
of inventories 7,136 1,867 0 0 407 8,596
TEWERHERE  Provision for impairment of
constructing materials 0 1,159 0 1,159 0
AEEESEEE  Provision for impairment of
REER available-for-sale
financial assets 30,000 0 0 0 0 30,000
At Total 52,603 15,926 568 0 8,751 60,346
4. 2006 FEEHBEEER 4, Reconciliation of Transitional Adjustment in

FeEi® Consolidated Equity in 2006 arising from
Difference between the old ASBEs and ASBEs

20065 B

HE Item 2006
REHEEBERZ Consolidated equity applied for

FEESR old ASBEs
ERAE Adjustments: 1,343,337
(1) BREFISTHEE (1) Deferred tax assets 7,615
@) mEesTA (2) Derivative financial instruments 134
) LEREERIES (3) Minority shareholders’ equity 3,313

IR R =R presented in shareholders’ equity

= RPN Sub-total 11,062
MEANEHEEASER Consolidated equity 1,354,399

ZFREESRE applied for ASBEs
Hrp : BERNEAQF Including: Attributable to the 1,351,118

FEE parent company

WRHMEFHREROBR QA
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(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB' 000)
(IRiZ+ B 5t E R4 )

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

+TH.#REEH @ 14. Supplementary Information (continued)
5. 2006 FEEHBHHEER 5. Reconciliation of Transitional Adjustment in
LGRS Consolidated Net Profit in 2006 arising from
Difference between the old ASBEs and ASBEs
2006 E
"E Item 2006
REHMEERZ Consolidated net profit applied for 22,706
FEM B old ASBEs
EEFE Adjustments:
(1) BEMEHEES (1) Adjustment to income tax expense
Fris i & A a) & from the deferred tax assets 1,039
@ TEemITA (2) Derivative financial instruments 51
(3) P EERER (3) Changes in presentation of
F T N E minority shareholders’ equity (814)
(4) REERTEBL (4) Changes in presentation of
5 ¥Rk &1L unconfirmed investment loss (228)
=E AN Sub-total 48
FERE HFEER 2 Consolidated net profit 22,754
FHEEEE applied for ASBEs
Ho : ZBREAA Including: Attributable to the
pEiw I parent company 23,567

| W RFEREZRBGERAD A
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
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(UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, ALL FIGURES ARE STATED IN RMB’ 000)

(REF EEat E R4 b))

(PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS)

14. Supplementary Information (continued)

6. MEHENRRERE 6. Comparative Table of Reconciliation Difference
RAMRYHHEESR between the old ASBEs and ASBEs
200744 20064 3R
1 BEY REEH =2 A
Ref. HHER Item 2007 2006 Difference Notes
2006F 12431 Bk E:  Equity as at 31 December 2006 1,343,337 1,343,337 0
1 fTEeBIA Derivative financial instrument 134 134 0
2 PG Income tax 7,615 8,049 (434) ()
3 DURRER Minority shareholders’ equity 3,281 3,313 (32) )
4 it Other 32 0 32 )
2007F1A1A%F#ER  Equity as at 1 Janurary 2007 1,354,399 1,354,833 (434) )

1) BEESEELR
F185% — FIfs i)/
I - ANAFE)E2006
F12 A31 HRIREFT
BREEET TR

==

IE °

(2) 1RIE2007F4 8 #1T
¥ et ER —
ER)PFNERZ
K+ AR A #2006 4F
12A 318 D E xR
=P EEESHT AR
fREEEE32T T - A
BEELEBRE#ERIE
T WHEERERS
BE 7 o

Th MEREHE

IR BA TG R4 HA 2008464 B 18 H B AR
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According to Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprise No.18-Income Tax, the Company
recognized the deferred tax assets as at 31
December 2006.

According to Interpretations on Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprise which were
promulgated in April 2007, the Company
adjusted RMB32,000 of the excess loss of
subsidiaries in the minority shareholders’ equity,
which should be attributed to minority
shareholders on 31 December 2006.

15. Approval of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements have been approved to report on
18 April 2008 by the Board of Directors.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007
signed by the Chairman of the Board, the financial controller
of the Company and appropriate accounting staff.

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007
signed by the Certified Public Accountants both from domestic
and international auditors with their respective company seals.

All original copies of the Company’s announcement made on
the newspapers designated by the CSRC in the reporting
period.

The Articles of Association of the Company.
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Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Add: Chemical Industry Area of Zibo Hi-tech Industry Development Zone, Zibo City, Shandong Province, PRC
Postal Code: 255005

Tel : B6-533-216 6666

Fax : 86-533-228 7508

Website : http://www.xhzy.com
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